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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M RE
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
BE-Z—tH& HE-ZT—RF
t=A=t-H +t=—A=+—H
LFE IEFE
HK$'millionE & T HK$’ million & & 78 7T
Revenue =2 43,159.5 35,830.3 +20%
EBITDA* RIBRFIE ~ BE
ERBHNER 10,442.4 7,251.6 +44%
Profit before tax* RBR#% A2 Al 8,348.4 4,872.3 +71%
Net profit attributable to owners &2 F#H AR
of the Company
— Underlying net profit* — BT 5,589.1 3,283.5 +70%
— Reported net profit —BRmEAEA 5,503.4 5.026.8 +11%
Basic earnings per share SREXRER
— Based on underlying net profit* —AEARGF G E HK$5.3587# 7t HK$3.193% 7T +68%
— Based on reported net profit —ABREAEFETE HK$5.3637 7T HK$4.889/% 7T +10%
Interim dividend per share FRAPERE HK60 centsiE Al HK30 centsi& il +100%
Proposed final dividend per share EZSRAIKE HK100 centsi& il HK70 centsi&1ll +43%
Proposed special final ERSREBIRERE
dividend per share = HK30 centsi& Il N/ATNE A
Net asset value per share BREERE HK$43.278 T HK$36.28 7T +19%
Net gearing FAMELR 20% 24%
* Excluding: * TELE
1) Gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$41.6 million, net (1) KEMELAFEEY 2 K&
of portion shared by non-controlling shareholders (2016: HK$17.2 million). MF—ERNTEET - MRIEERRR
EENE(ZE—RF  —FTta=+
BABTT) ©
©) Share-based payments of HK$3.1 million, net of portion shared by non- ©) UG ERANRZR=ZE—+&BT M
controlling shareholders (2016: HK$20.9 million). IR A R (R 5B (= F — N4 -
ZFTA+EET)
€] Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale investments of HK$34.2 ) MAMHEDERERR I BEEBE
million, net of portion shared by non-controlling shareholders (2016: =FOBE =8B - RIEERARR
HK$27.8 million). ELEOE(ZZE—RF : —FEAaNT
BABTT) ©
(4) Gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$1,573.7 million, net of portion (4) RZEBE—REHEWB R 2K
shared by non-controlling shareholders in 2016 (2017: Nil). TRECF=ac+8EET - HbRIEE
RRREIE (=T —+F : 8F) °
(5) Income from relocation compensation of HK$201.1 million, net of portion (5) R-IE—RNFRBHERA_ES

shared by non-controlling shareholders in 2016 (2017: Nil).

—BH—TEET - MR IR
E(ZF—LF :8A) °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited
(the “Company”), | am delighted to report an outstanding performance by the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31
December 2017. As strong market demand for laminates and their upstream
materials led to product price surges across all categories, the laminates
division posted a set of record results during the year. The printed circuit
board (“PCB”) division also registered satisfactory order growth against
relatively-competitive market situation, while its production efficiency has
been raised steadily. The chemical industry has also recovered from its over-
capacity. Major products of the chemical division have recorded significant
price increases, thereby contributing continued growth in earnings. For the
property division, rental income from commercial property leases and sales of
residential units also increased at a stable pace.

Turnover Breakdown by Products & ¥ %89 47

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFE®HE

BUSI N ESS REVI EW (continued)

Revenue of the Group increased by 20% to HK$43,159.5 million in 2017,
posting an underlying net profit (excluding non-recurring items) of HK$5,589.1
million, representing a significant growth of 70%. Basic earnings per share
were HK$5.358. The Group maintained a robust financial position and the
Board has therefore proposed a final dividend of HK100 cents per share,
subject to shareholders’ approval. Together with the interim dividend of HK60
cents per share, this will constitute a full-year dividend of HK160 cents per
share.

PERFORMANCE

Being the world’s largest laminates producer, the Group enjoys unrivalled
economies of scale. The Group’s sophisticated and comprehensive vertically
integrated business model enables it to continuously expand its competitive
advantage. During the year, shortages in the supply of copper foil, glass
yarn and epoxy resin have brought price hikes for these materials, leading to
several price increases for laminates. The laminates division’s profit margin
increased accordingly. Segment turnover (including inter-segment sales)
increased by 20% to HK$16,655.2 million, while earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) went up substantially by 45% to
HK$4,489.2 million.

The PCB division recorded notable growth in orders for use in the
telecommunications equipment, automobile and home appliances sectors.
The product portfolio continued to evolve towards the higher-grade and the
high-value-added end. Efforts to control costs and raise production efficiency
have yielded an expanded profit margin, which is among the highest in the
industry. The PCB division reported a segment turnover of HK$8,194.1
million, up 10%, and delivered an EBITDA of HK$1,179.8 million, an increase
of 35%.

With the tightening up of China’s environmental policy and efforts to control
overcapacity, excess and backward chemical capacities have gradually exited
from the market. The Group’s major chemical products, including methanol,
coke, caustic soda and phenol acetone, have recorded significant price
increases. This has driven the segment’s turnover (including inter-segment
sales) to increase 30% to HK$13,996.2 million, with EBITDA growing 47% to
HK$1,625.8 million.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFE®HE

PERFORMANCE (ontinved)

The partial booking of sales from the projects, including Huagiao Kingboard
Yu Garden Phase 3, Kunshan Development Zone Kingboard Yu Garden
Phase 3 and Qiandeng Kingboard Yu Garden Phase 2, contributed property
sales turnover of HK$5,570.2 million during the year. Together with rental
income of HK$897.4 million, property segment turnover grew 18% to
HK$6,467.6 million with EBITDA increased by 16% to HK$1,969.8 million.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s financial and liquidity position continued to be robust. As at
31 December 2017, net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
approximately HK$25,184.1 million (31 December 2016: HK$12,176.1 million)
and 2.26 (31 December 2016: 1.54) respectively.

The net working capital cycle remained at 41 days as at 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2017 on the following key metrics:

- Inventories, in terms of stock turnover days, was 23 days (31
December 2016: 23 days).

- Trade receivables, in terms of debtors turnover days, was 53 days (31
December 2016: 53 days).

- Trade and bills payable (excluding bills payable to property, plant
and equipment), in terms of creditors turnover days, was 35 days (31
December 2016: 35 days).

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

ERKRE

FAEBRERTEE=H  BLHAZEREZER
EE=#kTEREEHRTE _MFHE 280
HEAR MEHESZXREI+TRELTE
—t+&Ex - ERASBRANEATEED T
BRET FHESBMAEEBRLA1BRE
ANTEEARTEAEARNTEET - RIAKF
B BE MERBEZANLEA16%E
TABRTABNT&EET -

RBE S R MBI

SEMNMBRRFERSER SRR _Z
—tEF A=t HZABEEFER
ZEARTBNATHE—+E8EL(ZE—XF
+ZA=+-8: "Bt EBETRE—T
BB  RBhERAE226(ZE—RNEFT A
=+—H:154)-

FEEEEERN T -RF+-A=+—
BTttt - A=+—"H#HFO+—
Bt

- GFEREHAE-_+=A(ZZT—X F
+=ZA=+—RH:Z=+=H)-

- BHRUFERERAA+=A(=F
—RETZA=t+—H:A+=R)-

- O REBREMNRFTBER(TRIER
EME BERREBEZEAEE) R
=t+RA(ZE—R"E+=-ZA=+—
H:=+FA)-



009

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

(continued)

The Group’s net gearing ratio (ratio of interest-bearing borrowings net of cash
and cash equivalents to total equity) was 20% as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: 24%), while the proportion of bank borrowings between
short term and long term stood at 28%:72% (31 December 2016: 47%:53%).
During the year, the Group invested approximately HK$2.0 billion and
HK$4.0 billion in new production capacity and property development projects
respectively. Backed by a highly experienced professional management
team, the Group is confident that these investments will deliver stable and
satisfactory returns to shareholders over the long term.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management policy. It did
not enter into any material derivative financial instruments, nor did the Group
have any material foreign exchange exposure during the year. The Group’s
revenue, mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US dollars,
was fairly matched with the currency requirements of its operating expenses.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a global workforce of
approximately 42,800 (31 December 2016: 41,800) to cope with business
development. In addition to offering competitive salary packages, the Group
grants share options and discretionary bonuses to eligible employees based
on the Group’s overall financial achievements and individual employee
performance. The Group’s continued success relies on a solid human
resources strategy, part of which involved the establishment of the Kingboard
Institute of Management to provide management training for middle and
senior management of the Group. The Group also recruits fresh graduates
from mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan each year in its search for
talents to nurture. This talent pool will give the Group new impetus to its long-
term development.
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PROSPECTS

Management has full confidence in the prospects for the Group’s ongoing
development. The Group has boosted its profitability and unlocked the
synergies among its core divisions, resulting in strong growth momentum
ahead. Upon continuous input to upgrade its operations, the Group
has raised its production efficiency, marketing strength, research and
development and environmental standards to the top of the industry. Against
a backdrop of positive global economic activity and demand growth, the
Group will actively expand its market share with an aim of generating long-
term and steady returns.

Demand in the electronics sector continues to be rampant, with growth
more broad-based. Tight supply of laminates and their upstream materials
will likely continue. The laminates division will make timely moves to raise
product prices. The division has also entered another capacity expansion
cycle in support of its long-term sustainable growth. New glass yarn and
fabric facilities completed at the end of last year have started to ramp up, and
are expected to make full-year contributions going forward. The planned new
laminates and copper foil capacities are under construction and expected to
commence operation consecutively. These new facilities will help the division
meet high demands from downstream, and will support ongoing market
developments.

Significant growth is expected for the automobile sector, and automobile
electronics will continue to proliferate and be upgraded. Demand for
home appliances will also grow steadily on the back of new residential
unit completions. These demand pulls, together with the imminent arrival
of the 5G telecommunications era, signal significant growth potential for
the PCB business. In order to meet this strong market demand, the PCB
division will continue to undertake demand-led facilities optimisation and to
expand the capacities in the area that have competitive advantage, such as
telecommunications and automobile.

Heading into 2018, chemical products, in particular caustic soda and phenol
acetone, will experience continued price hikes. As the PRC authorities tighten
up environmental checks and push for industrial upgrades, it is anticipated
that backward facilities will exit the market, creating room for steadily
improving profitability. The chemicals division will adhere to its low-carbon
model and will fully utilise its existing facilities in order to yield higher profits.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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P ROS P ECTS (continued)

Control measures on housing in Kunshan and other parts of China are
gradually coming to an end. Latent housing demand is expected to be
unleashed. The property division plans to expand the sales of residential units
with a view to expediting cash inflow. The factory land in Hengyang, Hunan
province could be redeveloped in residential use and the Group increase two
pieces of land bank in Kunshan. Thus, the residential sales income will likely
show a growing contribution. Rental income will also increase significantly,
benefitting from the newly acquired commercial property, 15 Canada Square
in London, as well as the leasing out of Shanghai Kingboard Plaza Phases
1-3. Newly-bought land in the Qianhai free-trade zone of Shenzhen is under
planning and will be used as the headquarter of Southern China of the Group
and for leasing.

The floor heating product using graphene was launched last year with highly
positive market response. The Group will continue to enhance the product’s
functionalities and to add smart control modules to improve user experience.
The Group will increase capacity for this product, which is expected to
contribute new growth drivers.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, banks, the management
and employees for their unreserved support to the Group in the past year.

Cheung Kwok Wing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

EERGREEAEBZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wing, aged 62, BBS, is the chairman and a co-founder
of the Group, and the chairman and a non-executive director of Elec &
Eltek International Company Limited (“EEIC”), which is a subsidiary of the
Company listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”)
and dual-listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Cheung was the chairman and director of Kingboard Copper
Foil Holdings Limited (“KBCF”) which is the subsidiary of the Company listed
on the SGX up to 3 January 2012. Mr. Cheung is a director of Hallgain
Management Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Cheung
is the brother of Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie, the cousin of Mr. Cheung
Kwong Kwan, the brother-in-law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin
Sang and the father of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing. Mr. Cheung had over 13 years’
experience in the sales and distribution of electronic components including
laminates prior to the establishment of the Group. Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall strategic planning of the Group and sets the general direction
and goals for the Group. Mr. Cheung won the Young Industrialist Award of
Hong Kong 1993, which was organized by the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and was described as “far-sighted, enterprising, and having insight
in the business”. Mr. Cheung was the winner of the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong
Business Award, accredited with the Owner-Operator Award in 2006. In
2011, Mr. Cheung was awarded the Honorary University Fellowships of The
University of Hong Kong. In 2013, Mr. Cheung was appointed as a member
of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of The People’s Republic of China. In 2017, Mr. Cheung was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

Mr. CHANG Wing Yiu, aged 51, is the managing director of the Group. He
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin,
Stephanie and the uncle-in-law of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing. He joined the Group
in 1989 and has over 28 years’ experience in laminates production. Mr.
Chang graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a higher
diploma in marine electronics. He is responsible for the Group’s chemical
refinery plant and phenol/acetone plant in Yangzhou, Jiangsu province and
phenol/acetone plant in Huizhou, Guangdong province. He was re-designated
from a non-executive director to an executive director of EEIC with effect from
1 August 2014.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwong Kwan, aged 53, is the cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and the uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka
Shing. He joined the Group in 1988 and has been working in the PCB industry
since 1984 with particularly extensive experience in marketing components
and materials required for PCB production. Mr. Cheung is responsible for
the Group’s chemical business operations and property developments in
southern China.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. HO Yin Sang, aged 683, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing
and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and the uncle-in-law of Mr. Cheung
Ka Shing. He joined the Group in 1989 and is responsible for the Group’s
chemical business operations in Hebei and Shanxi province. He is also a non-
executive director of KBCF.

Ms. CHEUNG Wai Lin, Stephanie, aged 47, is the sister of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing, the sister-in-law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the
cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the auntie of Mr. Cheung Ka Shing.
She joined the Group in 2002. Ms. Cheung was appointed as an executive
director and the vice chairperson of EEIC with effect from 1 August 2014 and
responsible for the strategic planning of EEIC. Prior to joining the Group, she
worked as an administration assistant manager in a listed company for about
5 years.

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Shing, aged 30, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 1 August 2014. He joined the Group in 2009
and is responsible for the property development business of the Group in
eastern China. Mr. Cheung obtained his Bachelor of Science degree in the
study of Management with International Business at the University of London
in 2009. Mr. Cheung is the son of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, the nephew of Ms.
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and nephew-in-
law of Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang.

Mr. CHEN Maosheng, aged 54, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 11 January 2011. He joined the Group in 1996 and is
currently the chief financial controller of the Group in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”). He is responsible for the management of the finance and tax
matters of the Group in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, he worked with
the finance and economics department of the government of the PRC for 12
years. Mr. Chen graduated from Jiangxi Finance and Economics University
(formerly known as Jiangxi Finance and Economics Institution) in 1990. He is
an accountant certified by the finance department of the government of the
PRC.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Ming Man, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non
executive director of the Company with effect from 1 November 2015. Mr.
Cheung has extensive experience in the performance and cultural sector. Mr.
Cheung has participated in a number of community associations, including
the Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association (Vice Honorary
Secretary); The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Election Committee
(First, Second and Third Election Committee Member); Deputy of the National
People’s Congress of PRC Election Committee (Ninth, Tenth and Eleventh
Election Committee Member) and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
2010. Mr. Cheung was elected as the Hong Kong deputy to the 12th National
People’s Congress in December 2012. Mr. Cheung was an independent
non-executive director of Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (stock code:
00391), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Dr. CHONG Kin Ki, aged 62, was appointed as independent non-executive
Director in 1 July 2016. He obtained a Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in 1980. He became a Fellow of the
Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh in 1984, a Foundation Fellow of the
Hong Kong Academy of Medicine in 1993, a Foundation Fellow of the Hong
Kong College of Surgeons in 1993. Dr. Chong has been a private medical
practitioner since 1989 and become a Registered Specialist in General
Surgery since 1993.

Mr. LEUNG Tai Chiu, aged 71, was appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 1 October 2016. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong
in 1969. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He has broad experience in accounting and auditing matters,
having worked in the auditing profession for over 30 years, 20 years of which
he served as a partner. Mr. Leung retired from PricewaterhouseCoopers in
2005. Mr. Leung was the President of Lions Club of Victoria in 1986 and
1998 and a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995 to 1997. He is a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Leung is an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the audit committee, and a member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (“KLHL”"), a subsidiary of the Company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Leung is also an independent non-executive director
of two other companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
namely Eva Precision Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0838) and
G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 0657).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTO RS (continued)

Mr. CHAN Wing Kee, GBM, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 71, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 1 July, 2017. He received a
Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering in 1970 and he has over 35
years of experience in the textiles and garment manufacturing industry. Mr.
Chan joined Yangtzekiang Garment Limited (stock code: 294), a garment
manufacturer, in 1970 as was appointed as a managing director in 1987
and has been an executive director of which since then. He is an executive
director of YGM Trading Limited (stock code: 375), a marketer and builder of
international apparel brands in Asia. He also serves as an independent non-
executive director at China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited
(stock code: 308), an investment holding company engaged in, among other
things, travel, theme park, hotel and resort business, and China Construction
Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited, a licensed bank in Hong Kong. He is a
Standing Committee Member of The 10th, 11th and 12th of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference; Deputy of the 8th and 9th National
People’s Congress of China; Ex-member of Commission on Strategic
Development of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of
Economic Council of Macau Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of the
Textile Advisory Board; Ex-Committee Member of the Preparatory Committee
for Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong
Affairs.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 44, the Company Secretary, joined the Group in
May 1999. Prior to that, he was an accountant at an international accounting
firm. Mr. Lo is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Professional Accountancy
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is in charge of the company
secretarial work of the Group. He is a non-executive director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (“KLHL”), a 69.32% owned subsidiary listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2017 in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associates are set out in Notes 42 and 19 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 can
be found in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report,
which forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties which are specific to
the Group and/or the industries in which the Group operates. These risks may
materially affect the Group’s business operations, financial condition, results
of operations and business prospects. The Group has identified the key risks
and uncertainties as follows:

Product defects

The products of the Group may contain defects that can only be detected
when the electronics systems into which they are incorporated are in use.
The Group could be exposed to significant liability claims in the event that its
products are found to be defective. While the Group has implemented sound
systems to monitor its products at various stages of its production processes,
no assurance can be given that the Group’s products are free of defects.
Any significant liability claims could have an adverse impact on the results of
operations and reputation of the Group.

Customer contracts

The Group typically enters into one-off purchase orders with its customers. As
such, the amount of purchase orders may vary significantly from time to time,
and it is difficult to forecast the amount of orders to be received by the Group
in the future. No assurance can be given that the Group’s customers will
continue to place purchase orders with it in the future in similar amounts to
prior periods, if at all. As a result, the results of operations of the Group may
vary significantly in the future.

Competitive industry

The business segments in which the Group operates are highly competitive.
No assurance can be given that the Group will be able to compete
successfully against its current competitors or emerging companies in
the future. If the Group fails to compete effectively, the Group’s results of
operations, financial condition and business prospects may be materially and
adversely affected.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Recent global market fluctuations and economic conditions

The recent global market fluctuations and economic conditions have adversely
affected economies and businesses around the world. A slowdown in the
global economy, in particular, the PRC economy, could lead to a reduction in
demand for the Group’s products and may materially and adversely affect its
business operations, financial condition and results of operations.

The risks and uncertainties stated above are not meant to be exhaustive.
There may be other risks or uncertainties that are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability. The Group
endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use
of resources, waste reduction and energy saving. For instance, the in-house
manufacturing facilities of the Group operate in compliance with the relevant
environmental rules and regulations. The Group reviews its environmental
policies on a regular basis.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the ESG Reporting Guide contained in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report will be available on our website within three months from
the publication of this annual report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group and its business operations are subject to various laws, rules and
regulations. The Company seeks to ensure adherence to such laws, rules
and regulations through various measures such as internal controls, approval
procedures, staff trainings and oversight of business operations at different
levels of the Group. The Board also monitors the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations on a regular
basis.

So far as the Directors and senior management are aware, for the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group has obtained the approvals, permits,
consents, licences and registrations required for its business and operations,
and there was no material breach of the relevant laws and regulations by our
Group that have a significant impact on the Group.
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BUSI N ESS REVI EW (continued)

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers in order to operate in a
sustainable manner and to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

The Company strongly believes that employees are its most important
and valuable assets. In order to recognise the performance of and provide
incentives for its employees, the Group reviews its policies on remuneration
and benefits for its employees regularly to ensure that they are in line with the
market standard. The Group reviews and improves catering, residence and
recreational facilities and services to provide a pleasant living environment to
the employees regularly. The Group organises various recreational activities
for its staff to participate to maintain a close relationship with its employees.

The Company maintains sound relationships with its customers and suppliers
which enable the Group to foster long term business benefits. The Directors
and senior management of the Company endeavours to exchange business
ideas and updates of the Group with its customers and suppliers from time to
time. To maintain its competitiveness, the Group aims to deliver high quality
of products and services to its customers.

During the year, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its employees, customers or suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 66.

An interim dividend of HK60 cents per ordinary share amounting to
HK$639,872,000 in aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the year.
The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK100 cents
per ordinary share to the shareholders on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 6 June 2018, being the record date for determining
the entitlement of shareholders to the proposed final dividend, amounting to
HK$1,066,452,000, in aggregate, and the retention of the remaining profit in
the Company.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has in aggregate
approximately HK$6,526 million available-for-sale investments, representing
approximately 7% of the total asset of the Group as at 31 December
2017, which consist of mostly securities listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and bonds issued mainly by companies
also listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Company acquired its available-for-sale investments through a market
purchase. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 5 November
2017 (“Disposal Announcement”), the vendors (namely the Company (in
respect of 44,657,000 the ordinary shares (“Cathay Pacific Shares”) of Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited (stock code: 293)(“Cathay Pacific”)), Kingboard
Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (in respect
of 311,632,000 Cathay Pacific Shares), and Kingboard Laminates Limited,
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (in respect of 21,899,000
Cathay Pacific Shares)), entered into the agreement with Qatar Airways
Q.C.S.C., pursuant to which the vendors agreed to sell, and Qatar Airways
Q.C.S.C. agreed to acquire an aggregate of 378,188,000 shares in the share
capital of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (stock code: 293), representing
approximately 9.61% of the total issued share capital of Cathay Pacific, at
a total consideration of HK$5,162,266,000. The completion of the disposal
took place on 6 November 2017. Please refer to the Disposal Announcement

for information.

The Group will from time to time monitor the price movement of prices in
securities and bonds and may adjust its investment portfolio as and when

appropriate.

The following table sets out the Group’s major available-for-sale investments

as at 31 December 2017:

Name of available-for-sale investments

Bond listed on SGX by Country Garden
Holdings Limited (HK stock code: 2007)
with fixed coupon interest 4.75% per annum
and maturity date on 28 September 2023
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

Save as the available-for-sale investments as set out in the table above, the
aggregate fair value of other available-for-sale investments held by the Group
as at 31 December 2017 do not exceed 5% of the consolidated total assets
of the Group as at 31 December 2017.

Based on the announcement of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2007) (“CGH”") dated 21 September 2016, the senior notes (“CGH
Senior Notes”) were issued by CGH in September 2016, and due in 2023.
The CGH Senior Notes are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and carries an interest of 4.75% per annum and interests are payable
semi-annually. The proceeds from the CGH Senior Notes was intended to be
used for refinancing certain of CGH’s existing indebtedness and for its general
working capital purposes. According to the annual results announcement
dated 20 March 2018 for the year ended 31 December 2017 of CGH, as
at 31 December 2017, its group’s net gearing ratio increased slightly from
approximately 48.7% as at 31 December 2016 to approximately 56.9% as at
31 December 2017.

Based on the announcement of Guangzhou R&F Properties Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 2777) (“GRFP”) dated 13 November 2017, the senior notes (“GRFP
Senior Notes”) were issued by GRFP in November 2017, and due in February
2023. The GRFP Senior Notes are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited and carries an interest of 5.875% per annum and interests
are payable semi-annually. The proceeds from the Senior Notes was intended
to be used for refinancing of debt and for general corporate purposes of
GRFP. According to the 2017 annual report of GRFP, the net debt to total
equity ratio of GRFP as at 31 December 2017 was 169.6%, and the maturity
profile of the GRFP group’s total borrowings was well balanced between
short, medium and long term debt.

For further information of the business and financial performance of the above
companies, please refer to the reports and announcement referred in the
above paragraphs for details. Please also refer to the respective publications
of the above companies from time to time for updates on prospects and
performances of the respective companies. The reports and announcement
referred above do not form part of this annual report and do not constitute
any publication issued by, or any opinion, advice or view of, the Company or
any of its directors.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to shareholders
of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, apart from issue of shares as a result of the exercise of share
options by the Directors and certain employees of the Group, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of the
Company’s listed securities on the Stock Exchange.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2017 comprised the retained profit of HK$144,918,000 (2016:
retained profit of HK$596,559,000).

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share premium and the
special surplus account of the Company are also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

At 31 December 2017, the sum of the retained profits and the share premium
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$6,011,451,000 (2016:
HK$5,249,087,000).
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan

Mr. Ho Yin Sang

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing

Mr. Chen Maosheng

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Ming Man

Dr. Chong Kin Ki

Mr. Leung Tai Chiu

Mr. Chan Wing Kee (appointed on 1 July 2017)

Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher (retired on 29 May 2017)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, each of Mr.
Chang Wing Yiu, Mr. Chen Maosheng and Mr. Cheung Ka Shing, being
executive Directors and Mr. Cheung Ming Man, being an independent non-
executive Director, will retire from directorship by rotation and will be eligible
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of Association. Mr.
Chang Wing Yiu, Mr. Chen Maosheng and Mr. Cheung Ka Shing, being
executive Directors, and Mr. Cheung Ming Man, being an independent non-
executive Director, will offer themselves for re-election.

In addition, Mr. Chan Wing Kee was appointed by the Board as an
independent non-executive Directors with effect on 1 July 2017. In
accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association. Mr.
Chan Wing Kee will hold directorship only until the next general meeting of
the Company following his appointment and will be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Chan Wing Kee will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and will be eligible for re-election as an independent
non-executive Directors.

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the section “Directors’
and Senior Management’s Biographies”.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES EEZRERE

At 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors and their associates RIZE—+F+-_A=+—"H EFEELHEZ
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its HEATHAARR A MEREEE(TEREHFR
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and BRI ([ 5535 1 BB 101 ) SEXVER) 2 B ~
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the HERMDSEST - BEAARIRIEES KL
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the BIEGE352(8FE 2 &L MATEE R 2 xS - 3¢
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities RIE ETBITAETEHEITESFRHHIFLESTE

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows: EMEARA R MR 2 BN

Long position RE

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company (“Shares”) (a) AATEREEIIBIZEER(R
%7 1)

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
Number of share capital
issued of the Company
Shares held P NN
Name of Director Capacity FrisE 81T EEBTRA
EEng ERtE RGBE 2R B
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing (Note 1) Beneficial owner/interest of spouse 2,880,470 0.2701%
SREIEE S A (M EET) ERaA A iEEs
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 7,787,228 0.7302%
Bk R S A (MEE2) EnlEAAN/ TiBkExR
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 464,500 0.044%
REBLE BEmfEa A
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 3) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 1,588,200 0.148%
{38 AE S A (PEES) ERaA A TiEE
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie (Note 4) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 1,499,000 0.141%
sRfEE A (FisE4) EnlEAAN/ Bk
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner 1,231,000 0.115%
SRR BEmEa A
Mr. Cheung Ming Man Beneficial owner 10,000 0.001%
SREAGISEAE EmEE A
Dr. Chong Kin Ki Beneficial owner 60,000 0.006%
HTEREH S Em=EAA
Notes: BeE -
(1) Out of the 2,880,470 Shares, 1,142,405 Shares were held by Mr. Cheung 1) R % 2,880,470 & ik & & - E b
Kwok Wing and 1,738,065 Shares were held by his spouse. 1,142,405 % B0 T R B &8 e A AR A
A - 1,738,005 A 10 A 5 H B 4B
ESZ=I
2 Out of the 7,787,228 Shares, 6,216,488 Shares were held by Mr. Chang @) R 7787228 8l & & - H ek
Wing Yiu and 1,570,740 Shares were held by his spouse. 6,216,488 i% {7 Jh R B KB o E AR A
A+ 1,570,740 B 17 A (5 E A 4B
BH -
) Out of the 1,683,200 Shares, 812,500 Shares were held by Mr. Ho Yin 3) A 3% 1,583,200 i% i 10 & h - Hdh
Sang and 770,700 Shares were held by his spouse. 812,5000% f& 15 Jh R A R £ SE £ AR A
A - 770,700 B A 15 Bl By H A2 1B 5%
5o
(4) Out of the 1,499,000 Shares, 1,479,000 Shares were held by Ms. Cheung (4) 3% 1,499,000 KR D g B - Eh
Wai Lin, Stephanie and 20,000 Shares were held by her spouse. 1,479,000 B& 15 B 3R 18 38 &2 =78 A5

% -+ 20,0008 A (0 B th B ACBHFA ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ot EEZ BRI ERR )

Long position (continued) RE®
(b)  Share options of the Company (“Share Options”) (b) ALTREEBRE(ELERE]D
Interest in underlying Shares
Name of Director Capacity pursuant to Share Options
EEpE RS BEBREMEREROER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 3,360,000
SREIER S EmfEAA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 2,660,000
LIPS BB A
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner 1,960,000
REBLE BEmERA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 3,100,000
fa B A 5 A (M EE) EnlEAAN/ T BER
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie Beneficial owner 2,460,000
SRIZEL L BEnERA
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner 3,160,000
REKEE BEmERA
Note:  Out of the 3,100,000 Share Options, 1,440,000 Share Options were held Misk : M5%3,100,0000 B LB ES R - H

by Mr. Ho Yin Sang and 1,660,000 Share Options were held by his spouse. #11,440,00019 8 Jc B AR 4 Ty R (Al £
FERAFEE  1,660,00015 18 5L iE
PRIERI R A B o

The Company adopted its first share option scheme on 11 May 1998, and AKRARIR—NWNANFREA+—BRHNEHEE
such share option scheme was terminated upon the adoption of its second SRR HEZELBREAZIIN -
share option scheme (“2002 Scheme”) on 2 July 2002 for the duration of 10 E-FHA-ARENEF —_@AAHSH+FE2E
years. In view of the changes to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities EREREE( ZEE_F12 ) MK - A
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in 2009, a new share option NI FTEA EMRB([ EHRA D) R=_TE
scheme (the “Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company at NEZEE KRR EOR=_ZEZENF=A
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23 March 2009. “+ =BT 2ARABRESRIANE EHE—
The 2002 Scheme was accordingly terminated on the same day without B ELEBIRETRI([ZETE]) - —ZTEZE -4
affecting the rights of holders of any options granted and outstanding under FEIEEMRRIBKRIE T -FE|
the 2002 Scheme. ETEAERERBARITEZ BEBRERA
ANEFIWNZELE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (oniniesy EEBZRTER @)

Long position (continued) RE®
(c) Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (“KLHL Shares”) in KLHL, a (c) AT EEEENBATRERER
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company SERAEEIBTZEER(EHEERE
w43 1)
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of share capital
issued KLHL of KLHL
Shares held HRERER
Name of Director Capacity Frise#1TEH EBTRA
EEpE RS BERRGEHE ZEHNBED
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 1,043,000 0.034%
SREIER S BEREAA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu (Note) Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse 9,200,000 0.299%
BPIRR ST A (MHET) EnlEAATEER
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse 543,000 0.018%
Al B A A4 [iRLk
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner 379,000 0.012%
REKEE BEREAA
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie Beneficial owner 200,000 0.006%
SRIZEL L BEREAA
Note:  Out of the 9,200,000 KLHL Shares, 7,500,000 KLHL Shares were held by MisE : 7 5%9,200,000 % 22 0% FE 8 R AR 1D &

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and 1,700,000 KLHL Shares were held by his spouse. o H 7,500,000 B 2 E 1E B IR
BT EREKBEERNATEE - M
1,700,000 0% 2 86 78 /B AR A% 1) BIl B EL
BisA -

(d)  Share options of KLHL (“KLHL Share Options”) (d BEEERELBRE(ZEREBRE
FERAED

Interest in underlying
KLHL Shares pursuant to

Name of Director Capacity KLHL Share Options
EEEERELEBREERT

B HEEEEER RO ER

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse -

I A A Ao (B s

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing Beneficial owner -

SRR ST AE BEmEEA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)

(e) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in the share
capital of Kingboard Laminates Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity

EEHR REME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner
SREIE e 4 BEmEBA
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner
LIPS S tad BB A
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan Beneficial owner
REELE BEmERA
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner
Al B A A BEmERA

Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates Limited are
held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no rights to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of Kingboard Laminates
Limited and have practically no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

(f) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital of EEIC, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity
E=pnA Rzt E

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing Beneficial owner
REISR ST & EREEA

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu Beneficial owner
LIS e EREEA

Mr. Ho Yin Sang Beneficial owner

fHeERLE BEEAA

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

EECRDER

RE@®

() ZAAAIEFEEWBLARNRTEER
ERATARETSRABIEBTZER
ERELRD

Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
(Note)

IR EREIRT
R BB

(F&E)

1,904,400
423,200
846,400

529,000

s AREHMESFREEERERARZ
BEREEELERD - ZFRERH) I E
B A UK BUR B R AR A IR A RUE A%
RREBEXHEBRRAG RN G LE
SZHER - TR B BB B R
EBEA IR BERHER

(  ARRFZEHEHEDFEEICKREH
Z&BER(TEEICKH )

Approximate

Number of percentage of
issued EEIC the issued share
Shares held capital of EEIC

FrFE 1T {GEEICE#{TIRA

EEICRA & B 2N B
1,547,200 0.8277%
486,600 0.2603%
486,600 0.2603%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (ontinued)

Long position (continued)

(9) Ordinary shares (“KBCF Shares”) of US$0.1 each in the
share capital of KBCF, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company

Name of Director Capacity
EEpE EEME
Mr. Ho Yin Sang Interest of spouse
Al A A Bt

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2017.
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EECRDER

RE®)

(9 AAFAK2EHEEKELTKBCFRE
HEREECIETZZER(KBCFR
% 1)

Approximate
Number of percentage of
issued KBCF the issued share

Shares held capital of KBCF
B R {5KBCFE 1T
KBCFRBE - REZHMABIL

2,000 0.0002%

B b EEIN R B F+ - RA=+—
B BESEEXREIHEALINARFLE
EAEEER (EE R B SF B RDIEXVED)
ZAEAR - AR RESTHEE E AR

HHEE -
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SHARE OPTIONS

The new share option scheme of KLHL (the “2017 KLHL Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company and the shareholders of KLHL
on 29 May 2017 and the 2017 KLHL Scheme took effect upon receiving
approval from the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange on 2 November
2017. The share option scheme of KLHL which took effect in July 2007 has
expired at the end of term of the scheme on 5 July 2017 and before the 2017
KLHL Scheme becoming effective. The purpose of the 2017 KLHL Scheme
is to provide incentive or reward to the eligible participants of the 2017
KLHL Scheme for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of KLHL and its subsidiaries.

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company, and EEIC and the
2017 KLHL Scheme (including their vesting and exercise period) are set out in
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 10 July 2017 and 26 September 2017, an aggregate of 500,000 and
27,552,000 share options were exercised at the exercise price of HK$12.424
and HK$33.92 per share respectively with a closing market price per share
of HK$32.65 and HK$40.1 on the immediately preceding business day when
the options were exercised for ordinary share of the Company of HK$0.1
each. Save as disclosed, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled
or had lapsed under the Company’s share option schemes during the year
under review. The following table discloses movements in the Share Options
under the Scheme during the year:

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BiRz@rBRE e —E—tFtAR
H(EZAEdsR —RAHRE_T—+
FRBRERE LB B EMATRLE - =
T EFREEERELERETEZANZ
ATt FREEEREBEBREFEAE
RS2 EE IR S SRR E R M LM B A Rl
HZ BRI R BB B IR B 2 A s M+
BIEHL 2 B NRE S B ERE -

ARRRIREEICZ BB & R —F—tF
BEEERECERER EIFHE (@%Eénf'ﬁﬁ
RATE ) B iR & BTE IR M 5E29 ©

R-ZE—+tFEtA+BEE-ZTE—tFNA
_+/\ B #£A500,000%27, 552 ooofﬁ@ﬁ'aﬁﬁ
fofiéﬁéﬂﬁ TEED R AR 12.424 % 33.92
BT BRELERERETEN —EEER

AAREREEOABTHE R ZWHES
FHE32.65 %401 7T o B EXFTIEETEE SN
EEFERNARG 2 BBREREIE T I &
B 1T S ELBRERE L ERER
B TRIFEBZATEENELBRENTFAZ

2

Outstanding as
at 1.1.2017
R=B—tF
—A—H

e RATBE

Outstanding as
at 31.12.2017
R=B—+tF
+=—A=+—H
e RATE

Exercised

during
the year

RERITHE

Category 1: Directors F1f EF

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing RBIGESEAE 6,760,000 (3,400,000) 3,360,000
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu BRK RS 5,820,000 (3,160,000) 2,660,000
Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan REELAE 5,120,000 (3,160,000) 1,960,000
Mr. Ho Yin Sang (Note 1) e A oA (fFE) 4,620,000 (3,180,000) 1,440,000
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie REEZL 5,620,000 (3,160,000) 2,460,000
Mr. Cheung Ka Shing KRR LE 6,128,000 (2,968,000) 3,160,000

34,068,000 (19,028,000) 15,040,000
Category 2: Employees (Note 1) 2% - BB (MIRE1) 10,684,000 (9,024,000) 1,660,000
Total all categories FrEfERI&R 44,752,000 (28,052,000) 16,700,000

Note 1: In addition to 1,440,000 Share Options held by Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the spouse of Mr. BEEET © BR{ATIR 4 5% £ 45 G #91,440,000 17 18 5t B8 AR 4

Ho Yin Sang held 1,660,000 Share Options. S - fa] A S A 2 BR 4B 7R #F A5 1,660,00017 12 5t
BERAGHE -
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SHAR E O PTlO N S (continued)

The following table discloses movements in KLHL Share Options during the
year:

On 11 January 2017, 6 April 2017 and 10 May 2017, 60,000,000, 600,000
and 20,400,000 KLHL Share Options were exercised at HK$6.54 per option
respectively. The closing price per share of KLHL on the date immediately
preceding business day which the options were exercised was HK$8.01,
HK$10.4 and HK$9.56 respectively.

R=Z2—tF
—H—AH
o RATE

Directors and employees of KLHL
(Note)

EEEEREFERES (M)

RELTIEEARA S
PR

Outstanding

81,000,000

BRERE

TREFZEEERELBRERNFAZE

W—_ZE—+F—A+—8  _T—+tFNA
NAERZZE—+tFHA+H 60,000,000
600,000 %220,400,00017 25 1& 8 1R & ST BB A% 1
AB76.54 L0 RIEITE - NEEELER
FEETHENAT—EAEEA  BEEERERK
MmEDHIA8.01ETT « 10.48 7T K&9.56/8 7T °

Outstanding
as at
31.12.2017
R=Z—tF
+=A=+—8H
e RATE

as at
1.1.2017 Exercised
during
the year

RERTT

(81,000,000) -

Total &&t

81,000,000

(81,000,000 -

Note: ~ Among these KLHL Share Options, some of which were granted to a Director and a

Director’s associate. Please refer to page 25 for details.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the options as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

M ZEREREBRELBREES  STELER
BT EER I EENBEAL - 5515
HERO5H ©

BEROIES 22 H

B E X BB - RRR AT
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangement or contract of significance in which a director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its subsidiaries, its substantial shareholder or any subsidiaries
of its substantial shareholder was a party subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year under review.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company.

Capacity
RERMEE

Name of shareholder

BRI A

Hallgain Management Limited (“Hallgain”) (Note) Beneficial owner

(PEE) BEnEAA

FMR LLC Investment manager
REKE

Fidelity Puritan Trust Investment Manager
REKIE

L) The letter “L” denotes a long position.

Note:  As at 31 December 2017: (i) no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more of the voting power at
general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its directors were not accustomed to
act in accordance with any shareholder’s direction; and (i) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing,
being a Director, was also a director of Hallgain.

N

EEEEARS - ZE¥HE
WIET KR

B AT SLAE AN F RS F AR DA LR
MEFHREFEMECERERKHRER
BABRZEARS  HRAH

BARE WS | —BRREE W BHRERMT
MW EEIN » REREEEFEANEFE
B ARE - EMBAR  TERRILETE
PR Z AT B A RIS R L S A SR B XA
EEBEAIRS  THRAK -

FERR

REBEARRBIZES M EGRIIFEIB6HATE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2017 which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has adopted the principles of
good corporate governance and complied with the applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2017, save for the deviation that independent non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms pursuant to paragraph A.4.1 of the CG Code.
For further information on the Group’s corporate governance practices during
the year, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in this annual
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2017, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (which are also related party transactions) within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@) KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement

On 26 October 2016, the Company and Hallgain entered into
a purchase framework agreement (the “KBC/Hallgain Purchase
Framework Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to
purchase certain materials for the production of PCBs such as
copper balls and drill bits from Hallgain and its subsidiaries (the
“Hallgain Group”) from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. Under
the KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement, the amount of
materials to be purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market
price) of the materials under the KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by the
Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the KBC/Hallgain Purchase
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

(b)

KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement (continued)

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
the table below. Details of the KBC/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s joint announcement
dated 26 October 2016.

KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework Agreement

On 26 October 2016, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a supply
framework agreement (the “KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to supply
copper and laminates to the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2019. Under the KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework
Agreement the amount to be supplied is not fixed but is to be
determined and agreed between the parties from time to time. The
actual quantity, specification and price (with reference to the prevailing
market price) of the products under the KLHL/Hallgain Supply
Framework Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed
by the Hallgain Group with the KLHL Group.

The transactions contemplated under the KLHL/Hallgain Supply
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules,
and KLHL is a subsidiary of the Company.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the table below.
Details of the KLHL/Hallgain Supply Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the Company’s joint announcement dated 26 October
2016, and KLHL's circular dated 21 November 2016 for information.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement

On 26 October 2016, KLHL and Hallgain entered into a purchase
framework agreement (the “KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement”) pursuant to which the KLHL Group agreed to purchase
materials for production of laminates such as drill bits and machineries
from the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. Under the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework Agreement,
the amount to be purchased is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market
price) of materials under the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement will be subject to the individual orders placed by the KLHL
Group with the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the
basis that Hallgain is a substantial shareholder of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules,
and KLHL is a subsidiary of the Company.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
the table below. Details of the KLHL/Hallgain Purchase Framework
Agreement were disclosed in the circular of the Company’s joint
announcement dated 26 October 2016 and KLHL'’s circular dated 21
November 2016 for information.
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CO N N ECTE D TRAN SACTI ONS (continued)

The annual caps and actual transaction amounts of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the table below.

(i) Purchase of copper balls and drill bits from
the Hallgain Group by the Group under
the Purchase Framework Agreement

(ii) Sales of coppers and laminates to the
Hallgain Group by the KLHL Group under
the KLHL Supply Framework Agreement & SR & B SR E AR

(iii) Purchase of drill bits and machineries from
the Hallgain Group by the KLHL Group
under the KLHL Purchase Framework
Agreement

B EHBE M tkas
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BT FBT
493,118 520,000
659,021 700,000
270,285 350,000

The amounts of the above transactions did not exceed the corresponding
annual caps for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 as announced
by the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on
normal commercial terms and that the terms thereof and the relevant annual
caps thereto are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the company and
the shareholder as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2017 disclosed by the Group
from pages 31 to 34 of this annual report in accordance with Listing Rule
14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange. The auditors has confirmed that nothing has come to its
attention that causes it to believe that the continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017:

(@) have not been approved by the board;
(b) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group; have been entered into in accordance with the

terms of the relevant agreement governing such transactions;

() were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the cap.
The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure

requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of transactions during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in Note 29
to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration paid to a senior management (excluding the directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2017 was within the following band:

HK$2,000,001 or above
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
company laws in the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient
public float of the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the articles of association of the Company, every Director,
agent, auditor, secretary or other officer for the time being and from time to
time of the Company (and the personal representatives of those persons, as
the case may be) shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and funds of the Company against all actions, proceedings, costs, charges,
expenses, losses, damages or liabilities incurred or sustained by him in or
about the conduct of the Company’s business or affairs or in the execution or
discharge of his duties, powers, authorities or discretions, including, without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any costs, expenses, losses or
liabilities incurred by him in defending (whether successfully or otherwise) any
civil proceedings concerning the Company or its affairs in any court whether
in the Cayman Islands or elsewhere.

Appropriate insurance covering for the Directors’ and senior management’s

liabilities arising out of activities of the Group has been arranged by the
Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales or purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers combined or suppliers combined were less than 30%
of the Group’s sales or purchases respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed during
the year under review.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD MEHESH
Please refer to Note 43 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for REAREHFELR2HAEBEAE T BRENF
event after the reporting period. 43
AUDITOR 2 RED
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint BRERRAFAE LIRE—BRER - NER
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company. 28 o BEMR FETANIT/AAND RIAZEAED -
On behalf of the Board EERGD
Cheung Kwok Wing FE
CHAIRMAN REE

23 March 2018 —E-N\F=ZA=-+=H
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The Board recognises the importance of corporate governance practice of a
listed company. It is in the interest of the stakeholders and shareholders for
a listed company to operate in a transparent manner with the adoptions of
various self-regulatory policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms and
a clear definition of accountability of directors and management.

The Company has adopted the principles of good corporate governance and
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017, save for the deviation from paragraph
A.4.1 of the CG Code since the independent non-executive Directors are
not appointed for a specific term. Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, all
the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. As such,
the Company considers that steps have been taken with a view to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are in line with the principles
of the CG Code.

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10A OF
THE LISTING RULES

Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher (“Dr. Cheng”), a then independent
non-executive Director, retired by rotation in accordance with the Articles
at the Company’s annual general meeting held on 29 May 2017 (“2017
AGM”). Dr. Cheng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in 2007 and therefore has served for more than nine (9) years as at the
date of the 2017 AGM. To maintain the Company’s standards of good
corporate governance practices, Dr. Cheng did not offer himself for re-
election at the 2017 AGM, and accordingly, he ceased to be an independent
non-executive Director upon the conclusion of the 2017 AGM. Upon the
retirement of Dr. Cheng, the Board comprises seven executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors, which fell below the number of
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board as required under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Subsequently, Mr.
Chan Wing Kee (“Mr. Chan”) was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 July 2017. Following the appointment of Mr. Chan,
the Board had a total of 11 Directors, comprises seven executive Directors
and four independent non-executive Directors. The number of independent
non-executive Directors of the Company therefore meets the requirements
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

In addition to applying the principles in the CG Code, which is mandatory
in nature, the Board also observes certain recommended best practices
(“Recommended Best Practices”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and has adopted certain Recommended Best Practices which are
suitable to the Company’s current situation. The Board will continuously
enhance the corporate governance standard of the Company by reference to
the Recommended Best Practices whenever suitable and appropriate.
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has confirmed
that he or she has complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions
adopted by the Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

A.

DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the management
of the business and the affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted
internal guidelines in setting forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves
the Group’s strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by the Company
Secretary as delegated by the Chairman of the Board and distributed
to the Board members within reasonable time before the meetings.
Relevant meeting papers are also sent to Directors well before the
meetings, informing them of the background and giving explanation
on matters to be brought before the Board. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To
ensure the Directors make decisions objectively and in the interests of
the Company, the Company’s articles of association provide that any
Director shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in which he or his
associates is/are materially interested nor be counted in the quorum
of the meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board
meetings are sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board meetings and
are kept by the Company Secretary.
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A. DI RECTO RS (continued)

The Board (continued)

During the year under review, the Board had held four meetings and
the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committees’
meetings were as follows:

EE )

A1)

Board
Meeting
Bzg
]
Number of Meeting R EE 4
Executive Directors BITES
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) RER(FE) 4
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director) DKB(EZREE) 4
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE 4
Ho Yin Sang s 4
Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie KiEE 4
Cheung Ka Shing RHRK 4
Chen Maosheng 5321 4
Independent non-executive Directors B FHTES
Cheung Ming Man KA 4
Chong Kin Ki fres: 4
Leung Tai Chiu 2l 4
Chan Wing Kee Bk
(appointed on 1 July 2017) (A=F—tF+A—-REZA) 3

Dr. Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher (“Dr. Cheng”), a then independent
non-executive Director, retired by rotation in accordance with the
Articles at the Company’s annual general meeting held on 29 May
2017 (“2017 AGM”"). Dr. Cheng was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in 2007 and therefore has served for more
than nine (9) years as at the date of the 2017 AGM. To maintain the
Company’s standards of good corporate governance practices, Dr.
Cheng did not offer himself for re-election at the 2017 AGM, and
accordingly, he ceased to be an independent non-executive Director
upon the conclusion of the 2017 AGM.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

The Board (continued)

The Directors have observed the importance of directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs at a more regular interval. After
consulting all Directors, Board meetings have been preliminarily
scheduled to be held at quarterly interval and no less than four times
in the coming year.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in D.3.1
of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met once to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Division and responsibilities

During the year under review, the Board was headed by the Chairman
whose role differs from that of the Managing Director of the Company.
The roles of the Chairman and Managing Director were segregated
and are not exercised by the same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the following:

o scheduling meetings that enable the Board to perform
its duties and responsibilities and to ensure all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner without interfering the Company’s operations;

o preparing meeting agenda after consultation with the
Managing Director;

° exercising control over quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between Management and the Board and
to ensure decisions are made on a fully informed basis by the
Directors; and

o assisting in ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and
the Company’s guidelines on corporate governance.

The Managing Director was mainly responsible for the overall strategic
planning and day-to-day management of the Group.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises eleven members, seven of whom are
executive Directors and four of whom are independent non-executive
Directors who are expressly identified in all corporate communications
that disclose the names of the Directors. One of the independent non-
executive Directors possesses appropriate professional qualifications
(or accounting or related financial management expertise) as required
by the Listing Rules. The composition of the Board as of the report
date is as follows:

Executive Directors

Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman)
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwong Kwan

Ho Yin Sang

Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie

Cheung Ka Shing

Chen Maosheng

Independent non-executive Directors

Cheung Ming Man

Chong Kin Ki

Leung Tai Chiu

Chan Wing Kee (appointed on 1 July 2017)

Cheng Wai Chee, Christopher (retired on 29 May 2017)

Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie is the sister of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing. Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan is a cousin of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wing and Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and
Mr. Ho Yin Sang are brothers-in-law of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing and
Ms. Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie. Mr. Cheung Ka Shing is the son
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, the nephew of Ms. Cheung Wai Lin,
Stephanie and Mr. Cheung Kwong Kwan and the nephew-in-law of
Mr. Chang Wing Yiu and Mr. Ho Yin Sang.

During the year under review, the independent non-executive
Directors were not appointed for specific terms but are subject to
retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election. The Board
considers that although such arrangement deviates from paragraph
A.4.1 of the CG Code, sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board comprises Directors who collectively provide core
competencies, sales and marketing experience and technical
knowledge in laminates, printed circuit boards, property developments
and chemical products, administration and management experience
in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skills. The Company
believes that the current Board with a balance of skills and experience
is appropriate for effective decision making, taking into account the
nature and scope of the operations of the Company.

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s Articles of Association set out a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board, shall retire and be eligible for
re-appointment at the next following general meeting (in the case
of filling a casual vacancy) or annual general meeting (in the case of
an additions to the Board) after appointment. The appointment of
Directors are not fixed for a specified term, but at every annual general
meeting one-third of the directors, including the Chairman, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-appointment by shareholders.
The Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement
and re-appointment as mentioned above shall be taken into account
in calculating the total number of Directors for the time being but shall
not be taken into account in calculating the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-appointment shall
have their biographical details made available to the shareholders to
enable them to make an informed decision on their re-appointment.
Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director
shall be timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement and
shall include in such announcement, the reasons given by the Director
for his resignation.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every Director
is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve
the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own
expertise, qualification and professionalism.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Every newly appointed Director shall receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment. All
Directors shall be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the Company
and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the
applicable laws and regulations. The Board has a procedure for
Directors, either individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the Directors to
make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liability has been arranged against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the Directors and the management.

According to A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review, the Directors also participated in the
following trainings:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors HiTE=S
Cheung Kwok Wing (Chairman) REIR(F/E)
Chang Wing Yiu (Managing Director) kg (EFaE)
Cheung Kwong Kwan REE

Ho Yin Sang [BE:%

Cheung Wai Lin, Stephanie REE

Cheung Ka Shing RE

Chen Maosheng 532
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Cheung Ming Man SREABL

Chong Kin Ki HEEH

Leung Tai Chiu Rt

Chan Wing Kee (appointed on 1 July 2017)

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with A.6.5 of the CG
Code on Directors’ training for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation to furnish the
Board with complete, adequate and appropriate information in
such form and such quality in a timely manner so as to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors of the Company. All the Directors are
given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management.

All the Directors are given separate and independent access to
the Company Secretary, whose role includes ensuring that Board
procedures are observed and followed, and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is responsible for
drafting minutes and keeping minutes records which can be accessed
by any Director for inspection.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) which comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chong Kin Ki (Chairman), Mr. Leung Tai Chiu
and Mr. Cheung Ming Man as at the date of the report. The role of
the Remuneration Committee is to formulate policies and procedures
for determining the remuneration of Directors and senior management
and other remuneration related matters. The Remuneration
Committee is set up with written terms of reference which set out
clearly its duties and authorities delegated by the Board, including the
following duties:

o formulate the framework or Board policy for determining
the remuneration of the Company’s Board and senior
management. The objective of such policy should ensure
that members of the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and reasonable manner,
rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of
the Company;
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

(continued)

° recommend specific remuneration packages including, where
appropriate, allowances, bonuses, benefits in kind, incentive
payments, and share options, if any, for each executive
Director and the Managing Director and such other members
of senior management as it is designated to consider;

° recommend targets for any performance-linked pay schemes
operated by the Company, taking into account remuneration
and employment conditions within the industry and in
comparable companies; and

° recommend to the Board the remuneration of independent
non-executive Directors (including non-executive Directors,
if any), taking into account factors such as effort, time spent
and responsibilities.

When recommending the remuneration package for each individual
Director, the Remuneration Committee will consider his qualification
and experience, specific duties and responsibilities assigned to
him by the Board and the prevailing market packages available for
similar position. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis
for the year under review is set out on pages 125 to 129 in Note
11 to the financial statements. Review and comparison in terms of
Directors’ emoluments package and net profits of the Group are
made from time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all such factors,
the Remuneration Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation with the
Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
convened two meetings during which, among other things, the
performance, and the remuneration policy and packages for all
Directors and senior management including the remuneration
packages for Mr. Chan Wing Kee, who was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 July 2017, was considered.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s account which gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The Company deploys appropriate and
sufficient resources to prepare unaudited half-yearly account and
audited yearly account. Senior management is required to present
and explain the financial reporting and matters that materially
affect or may have material impact on the financial performance
and operations of the Company to the Audit Committee and the
Board and respond to the queries and concerns raised by the Audit
Committee and the Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 58 to 65 of this annual report.

Risk Management, Internal Control and Responsibility
of the Board

The Board acknowledges its accountability to the risk management
and internal control system and its responsibility to review the
effectiveness of the system. The Board also clarifies that the system
is purported to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to
fulfil business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone from
the top, performing risk assessment, and owning the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control. Essential to this
risk management and internal control systems are well defined policies
and procedures that are properly documented and communicated to
employees.

The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the key elements
of which are as follows:

° formal policies and procedures are in place, including the
documentation of key processes, procedures and rules
relating to the delegation of authorities. These allow the
monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of the
Group assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for
important business functions. Annual appraisal procedures
have been established to maintain standards of performance;

. monthly business and financial reports are prepared, providing
relevant, timely, reliable and up-to-date financial and other
information; budget variances are investigated as appropriate;
and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee, is in place to determine whether the above
procedures are properly carried out.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (ontinueq)

Risk Management, Internal Control and Responsibility
of the Board (continued)

The Group has established an internal audit department to review
the financial condition, operational condition, risk management,
compliance control and internal control of the Group. For 2017, the
Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the above
internal control system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management and will conduct
such review at least once a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets are properly safeguarded. The
Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied, coupled
with its own observations and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, the present internal controls and risk management
processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has established
an internal audit team that reports directly to the Audit Committee.
The internal audit team will independently audit various functions,
operations and systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the priority list
recommended by the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
prepare an internal audit report highlighting the deficiencies and
weaknesses in existing audit functions, operations and systems for
discussion by the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on
these findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated to them by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include the following:

o review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

° review with the external auditor, their evaluation of the system
of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

° review the statement of financial position and statement of
profit or loss of the Company and the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the
Group and submit them to the Board;

o nominate persons as auditor;

° review with the internal and external auditors their findings on
their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal controls
for the purpose of assisting the Board in developing policies
that would enhance the controls and operating systems of the
Company; and

o review connected transactions and examine the adequacy
of internal controls of the Group as part of the standard
procedures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (ontinueq)

Audit Committee (continued

The Audit Committee assists the Board to fulfil its oversight role
over the Group’s risk management and internal control function
by reviewing and evaluating the effectiveness of our overall risk
management and internal control system at least annually.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
embedded within our business processes so that it functions as
an integral part of the overall operation of the Group. The system
comprises a comprehensive organisation structure with assignment
of definite accountabilities and delegation of corresponding authorities
to each post. Based on our organisation structure, a reporting system
has been developed including reporting channels from division heads
of business units to the Board.

The risk management and internal control systems and accounting
system of the Group are aimed at identifying and evaluating
the Group’s risk and formulate risk mitigation strategies, and to
provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against
unauthorised use or disposition, transactions are executed in
accordance with management’s authorisation, and the accounting
records are reliable for preparing financial information used within the
business for publication, maintaining accountability for assets and
liabilities and ensuring the business operations are in accordance with
relevant legislation, regulations and internal guidelines.

The Group has a defined organisational structure with clear defined
lines of responsibility and authority. Each department is accountable
for its daily operations and is required to report to executive
Directors on a regular basis. Policies and procedures are set for
each department, which includes establishing and maintaining
effective policies to enhance risks identification to which the
Group are exposed and taking appropriate action to manage such
risks, establishing a structure with defined authorities and proper
segregation of duties; monitoring the strategic plan and performance;
designing an effective accounting and information system; controlling
price sensitive information; and ensuring swift actions and timely
communication with our stakeholders.

Procedures and Controls over Handling and Dissemination of
Inside Information

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group has internal policy
and procedures which strictly prohibit unauthorised use of inside
information and has communicated to all staff; the Board is aware
of its obligations to announce any inside information in accordance
with the Listing Rules and conducts the affairs with reference to
the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012. In addition, only
Directors and delegated officers can act as the Group’s spokesperson
and respond to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued) C- ﬁﬂ%ﬁ&&%(%)

Audit Committee (continued) ERZEE®®)
The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the scope and ERZEe v BEBRIERIZE &
results of the audit and its cost effectiveness, and the independence B ERNERAME - ARKAQRZ
and objectivity of the Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. HENEE) « =R FHAIIT 2B M
The Audit Committee will review the independence of the Company’s EEEHE BRELESBFEEL KB
auditor, the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function, SN BB 2 B M - N ER A B
at least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies non-audit BENB R R FAMDM o AN RAD
services to the Company, the Committee will keep the nature and RIRMIER R  TEeeHER
extent of such services under review, seeking to balance between the SRERE o EE R EE - ISSE
maintenance of objectivity and value for money. During the year under REFREM MR 2 BEUS & - A [E
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of BEFEENRN » BAA TSR A A EE R
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to MR R IERE RIS M N, FER AR
the Group were as follows: NEVZERERNT
Amount (HK$)

Nature of services PRIEMHEE SHE(BT)

Audit services ZE RS 13,050,000

Non-audit services L EURTS

()  Tax services () FRIEARTS 352,000

(i)  Other services (i) EMRE 610,000
The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non- EBIZE BB RN FAZEAD T
audited services provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded 2RI ERTS - WRAEZSERBEIL
that in their opinion such services did not affect the independence “EERYEI B - EEEDET
of the auditor. The Board has appointed an accountant to be —ZEFMBEANEE S RS
responsible for the accounting and financial matters of the Group B MEBEZEZESEEEREBAEE
and the Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and IR RERREIEAL © AREREEM
senior management of the Group and to any financial and relevant B AR E R - LAEesa U ETT
information which enable them to discharge their audit committee HIEABERZES 2 HE - REBAT
function effectively and efficiently. Besides internal assistance being BN BREESNIREERAEE
available, the Audit Committee may request for assistance and IR ERIMNEAZ SN IR B M2
advice from external auditor as and when they think necessary at % BRARAAREAE ExLEeRd
the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee shall meet FEL-—RERTES IS ZERLT
with external auditor without the presence of executive Directors to EINEZEAIEE - Ui mAEREZ
discuss the Group’s financial reporting and any major and financial BERREEOEFEALE 2 FWEAKR

matters arising during the year under review at least once a year. HBER -
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (ontinueq)

Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

. to investigate any matter within its written terms of reference;
o to have full access to and co-operation by the management;
° to have full discretion to invite any Director or executive officer

to attend its meetings; and

. to have reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its
functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit Committee
are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities and at
least one member has accounting and related financial management
expertise or experience. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors as at the date of this report,
namely Mr. Cheung Ming Man (Chairman), Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr.
Leung Tai Chiu.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

o review of the scope of audit work;

° review and discussion of the annual financial results and
report in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 and
interim financial results and report for the six months ended
30 June 2017 and discussion with the management of the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

° discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

. review of the internal control, financial reporting and risk
management systems of the Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had convened
three meetings.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. Executive Directors
normally meet on an informal basis every two weeks and participate
in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor
and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies
set by the Board correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are
given to the management as to the matters which should bring to the
attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
each chaired by a different independent non-executive Director, to
assist the Board in discharging functions specific to each committee.
Each Board committee has its own written terms of reference
setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements which are
substantially the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members who are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Tai Chiu
(Chairman), Dr. Chong Kin Ki and Mr. Cheung Ming Man as at the
date of this report. According to the written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, the major responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include:

° regularly review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard
to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

° review whether or not an independent non-executive Director
is independent for the purpose of the Listing Rules on annual
basis;

o be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval
of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when
they arise;

o assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each individual Director to the effectiveness of
the Board; and

o be responsible for re-nomination having regard to the
Director’s contribution and performance, including, if
applicable, as an independent Director.
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Board committees (continued)

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee had convened two meetings during which,
among other things, considered the Directors who should retire by
rotation pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and the CG
Code. The Nomination Committee had resolved that Mr. Chang Wing
Yiu, Mr. Chen Maosheng and Mr. Cheung Ka Shing, being executive
Directors, and Mr. Cheung Ming Man, being an independent non-
executive Director, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Chang
Wing Yiu, Mr. Chen Maosheng and Mr. Cheung Ka Shing, being
executive directors, and Mr. Cheung Ming Man, being an independent
non-executive Director, will offer themselves for re-election while
Mr. Chan Wing Kee who was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 July 2017, will hold directorship only until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company according to
Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association and will be eligible
for re-election. During the meetings of the Nomination Committee, it
had considered the policy for the nomination of Directors, and the
process and criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee to select
and recommend candidates for directorship.

It had also reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and
assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors. All the above-named Directors were nominated by the
Nomination Committee to stand for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with
the CG Code. The policy aims to achieve diversity on the members of
the Board. In designing the Board’s composition, a number of aspects
would be considered, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. All Directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders. In
annual general meeting, Chairman of the Board and the chairman of
each committee are required to attend and answer questions from
Company’s shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor is also required
to be present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant
queries by Company’s shareholders. The Company has also set up a
public relations website which enables the shareholders and public to
post their questions, comments and opinions in relation to the Group
to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) provide good opportunities for shareholders
to air their views and ask Directors and management questions
regarding the Company. All shareholders of the Company receive
the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and EGM and other
corporate communications. The notices are also published on the
Company’s website at www.kingboard.com. Separate resolutions are
required at general meetings on each distinct issue. Each shareholder
is permitted to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings may request the Company to convene an EGM by
sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary.
The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. Contact details are as
follows:
Address: 23/F, Delta House

3 On Yiu Street

Shek Mun

Shatin, N.T.

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2691 0445/2691 5245
Email: enquiry@kingboard.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association.

An up to date version of the Company’s Articles of Association
is available on the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited’s website. Shareholders may refer to the
Company’s articles of association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will
be posted on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kingboard.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingboard Chemical
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “the Group”) set out on pages 66 to 209, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREETSR

BMHEFSNAHRRETERETRE

Assessment of net realisable values of properties held for development (“PHD”)

AHMEEFRRME(FRRYE D WTRRFE

We identified the assessment of net realisable values of PHD
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the amounts
and judgements involved in estimating their net realisable
value and the future costs to complete the PHD.

The carrying value of the Group’s PHD amounting to
HK$15.6 billion as at 31 December 2017 which are situated
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

As disclosed in Notes 4 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements, the net realisable values of the PHD
are determined by reference to the estimated future selling
prices. The future selling prices are estimated by reference
to the recent selling prices of similar properties in the same
project or relevant locations. In addition, the management
estimates the future costs to complete the PHD by reference
to the actual development costs incurred and the completion
status.

BB EFERDENRIRFERN AREREASE
U Ty R MEET R A R FEM TR ST ERYERRERS R
BERTR LA -

RZB—tF+-A=+—H EKEEFUREERT
FEFARKME([HE]DNFERDEREER156/EET

WERE MR M 4R3PS, - SERERMENTERFE
SEMFAREEMETE - RREESZR—EE A
EBALMERIREERG - Wi BEEE2EERERK
ARFTEBGEE - IEETERTFERMENARRER -

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of net realisable
values of PHD included:

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the costs recognised
in PHD, on a sample basis, by obtaining the direct
confirmations from independent qualified surveyors in
respect of the costs incurred and the completion status;

° Assessing the appropriateness of the estimated future
selling prices of the PHD, on a sample basis, by
comparing them to recent transaction prices of similar
properties in the same project or relevant locations, based
on our knowledge of the property markets of the relevant
locations; and

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated future
costs to completion of the PHD, on a sample basis,
based on the actual development costs incurred and the
completion status of the properties of the Group with the
adjustments, taking into account the current market data
and the past history of the similar projects.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREESE

Valuation of investment properties

REMENGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the inherent level of subjective
judgements and complex estimates required in determining
the fair values.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises
commercial, residential and industrial properties located
in Hong Kong, the PRC and the United Kingdom, which
was stated at fair value of HK$17.2 billion, accounting for
approximately 19% of the Group’s total assets as at 31
December 2017 with a change in fair value of HK$54.3
million recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year then ended.

As further disclosed in Notes 4 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, in estimating the fair values of these
investment properties, the Group engaged a professional
independent valuer (the “Valuer”), to carry out the valuation.
The valuation committee of the Group provided information
to the Valuer and the Valuer established and determined the
appropriate technique and inputs to the valuation model. The
significant unobservable input of the approach is the price
per square metre of comparable properties. Changes in the
comparable properties adopted may result in a significant
increase or decrease in fair values.
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Our procedures in relation to the management’s valuation of

investment properties included:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of
the Valuer;

Understanding the key assumptions applied to the
valuation based on available market data and evaluating
their reasonableness; and

Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and
information used by the Valuer and the valuation
committee in the valuation model, including adjustment
factors for location and other individual factors such
as road frontage, size of property and facilities, on a
sample basis, in order to assess the appropriateness,
completeness and accuracy of these inputs and
comparing the comparable properties adopted with fair
market unit price.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREETSR

BMHEFSNAHRRETERETRE

Impairment assessment of goodwill relating to the printed circuit boards (“PCB”) business

EN R 4R BE AR ([ ED R ARBEAR |) 3E75 2 £ AT BB E FT AL

We identified the impairment assessment of the goodwill
arising from the PCB business as a key audit matter as the
amount is quantitatively significant to the Group and the
valuation involves significant judgements and assumptions.

As set out in Notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”") to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to determine the present value. The
key assumptions made by management relates to the gross
margin, discount rate and growth rate.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2017
was HK$2.3 billion. Included in the balance is the goodwill
relating to the PCB business of HK$1.7 billion. The key inputs
adopted by the management of the Group are made with
reference to relevant industry data and the management has
determined that there is no significant impairment loss on its
goodwiill.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of
goodwill relating to the PCB business included:

° Obtaining the audited financial results of PCB business for
the year and understanding the basis adopted in the value
in use calculations prepared by management;

° Assessing the reasonableness of the assumptions made
by the management, including growth rates, gross profit
margin and expected changes in capital expenditure with
reference to current market circumstances;

° Testing the appropriateness of key inputs applied by the
management in preparing the cash flow forecasts against
historical performance, including revenues, cost of sales
and operating expenses, with reference to the future
strategic plans of the Group in respect of the CGU;

o Assessing the key factors in determining the discount
rate, including the Group’s debt and equity ratio, return
on investments and other risk factors, and comparing to
discount rates adopted in the industry for reasonableness;
and

° Testing the sensitivity analysis performed by the
management in respect of the growth rates and
discount rates and evaluating the extent of impact on the
calculations of the value in use.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Chu, Johnny Chun Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 201782 —Z—+F+-A=+—HILFE

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

2017 2016
—2—tHF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue ] 5 43,159,473 35,830,320
Cost of sales and services rendered SHE IR AR AR (33,243,202) (28,613,700)
Gross profit EF 9,916,271 7,216,620
Other income, gains and losses HaU A - Y25 R 7 344,168 619,069
Distribution costs DA (1,149,527) (1,035,873)
Administrative costs TR AN (1,706,910) (1,727,765)
Gain on fair value changes of HEMENTEE
investment properties pdl e 14 54,284 21,286
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE 2 W&
investments 1,153,015 465,247
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB ARz W 32 - 2,121,238
Share-based payments VAR R FE A5 3R (3,136) (20,910)
Impairment loss recognised on Al EIREER
available-for-sale investments ZIRIEETE 20 (34,152) (27,764)
Finance costs & AR 8 (311,919) (403,074)
Share of results of associates iy NI 19 103,267 9,152
Profit before taxation BB AR 8,365,361 7,237,226
Income tax expense FRISTRIX 9 (1,531,177) (1,075,209)
Profit for the year REEHEH| 10 6,834,184 6,162,017
Profit for the year attributable to: REERMEGDEE
Owners of the Company EN/NSIESZEUN 5,593,434 5,026,831
Non-controlling interests IR AR R M A 1,240,750 1,135,186
6,834,184 6,162,017
Earnings per share FR BT 13
- Basic — 5K HK$5.363% 7T HK$4.889/%8 7T
— Diluted — 8 HK$5.31438 T HK$4.875/% 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —Z—tF+-A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Profit for the year RFZ i F 6,834,184 6,162,017
Other comprehensive income (expenses) AEEFEEMmE2EMEE(XH)
for the year
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T E#EF S IEE 15752188 -
Translation reserve: ME L
Exchange differences arising EfE22WEEmMEE
from translation to presentation currency ZEH =58 2,777,558 (2,161,396)
Items that may be reclassified BERAGEHET R
subsequently to profit or loss: B ZIEA -
Investment revaluation reserve: WE B
Net fair value changes arising from AHHERE AT FES
available-for-sale investments 403,135 (268,971)
Translation reserve: bE S -
Exchange differences arising from BRI EIMACEMEE 2 EHZ5
translation of foreign operations (6,825) (6,279)
Share of change in reserve of associates FEARES & A R EEE) 141,108 (135,317)
537,418 (410,567)
Other comprehensive income (expenses) AREFHM2EKES(EH)
for the year (net of tax) (BFitg) 3,314,976 (2,571,963
Total comprehensive income for the year RNEE2EW AT 10,149,160 3,590,054
Total comprehensive income for the year RFEE2HEWM S PREREIGDEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RANSIES SN 8,495,578 2,766,637
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR IR B R RS 1,653,582 823,417
10,149,160 3,590,054
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
wa BRI R

At 31 December 2017 R —ZE—+F+-A=+—H

2017 2016
B+t —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T T4
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties BEME 14 17,151,915 15,368,824
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB NE&E 15 14,529,533 13,545,102
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERE 16 931,029 874,668
Other non-current assets HAEmEEE 17 691,213 -
Goodwill mE 18 2,288,149 2,288,149
Interests in associates /NI 19 504,090 1,959,874
Available-for-sale investments HEERE 20 5,746,584 6,537,266
Entrusted loans ZHER 24(a) 788,860 882,944
Deposits paid for acquisition of HBEME -
properties, plant and equipment R B R 55 &
and investment properties REMHEZENETE 485,451 90,940
Deferred tax assets IRIEF B E B 21 3,768 3,347
43,120,592 41,651,114
Current assets REEE
Inventories wE 22 2,115,557 1,779,065
Properties held for development EHFERYE 23 15,637,824 15,810,227
Trade and other receivables H 5 R EAMEUER R
and prepayments NSELRE/ S 24(a) 11,763,029 6,946,775
Bills receivables RN =% 24(b) 5,036,119 3,182,724
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 20 778,986 -
Other current assets HivRnBEE 17 - 645,931
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERIE 16 24,363 21,809
Taxation recoverable AU B IA 7,964 10,294
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB MRS 24(c) 8,113,756 6,472,614
43,477,598 34,869,439
Assets classified as held for sale SEAFEEE 25 1,696,193 -
45,173,791 34,869,439
Current liabilities Pk =N
Trade and other payables B REMBENMER 26 9,569,089 6,809,624
Bills payables e 26 691,834 170,224
Deposits received from pre-sale of TEEMEMBETE
residential units 3,551,562 7,334,955
Taxation payable JE SR 18 886,418 528,938
Bank borrowings — amount due TITEE——FR
within one year FIHR 7 28 27 5,290,745 7,849,588
19,989,648 22,693,329
Net current assets REEEFE 25,184,143 12,176,110

Total assets less current liabilities BEREBERRDEE 68,304,735 53,727,224
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At 31 December 2017 A —Z—+F+-_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Non-current liabilities ERBBE
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE 21 783,418 759,988
Bank borrowings — amount wITERE——F%
due after one year B 2 /I8 27 13,797,597 9,014,564
14,581,015 9,774,552
53,723,720 43,952,672
Capital and reserves A& R
Share capital R A 28 106,645 103,840
Reserves & 45,932,874 37,483,164
Equity attributable to owners PAN/NCIESY PNy
of the Company 46,039,519 37,587,004
Non-controlling interests ES e 30 7,684,201 6,365,668
Total equity B 53,723,720 43,952,672
The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 209 were approved FOOEF209B 2 AMBWMEENR ZE—N
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018 and are FoAZT=AEESSMREREENE 1
signed on its behalf by: HTIIEERKRESE
Cheung Kwok Wing Chang Wing Yiu
REIS R
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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CONSOL!EATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
meEREER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE—ZE—+t&F+-A=+—HILFE

Attrioutable to owners of the Company

s .
Capital Share Special Property Investment Non-

Share Share - redemption options suplus  Statutory revaluation ~ Goodwil revaluation Translation  Retained controling Total

capital  premium reserve reseve  account reserve Vi reserve reserve reserve profts ~ Sub-fotal  interests equity

R B § ; 3 !

000 HK$'000 $ ' HK$'000  HKS'000 § i HK§'000

o TAL T 7 7 TR TAL v TARL
(Note )

it ELER

Balance at 1 January 2016 RZF—E
—B-RBz#s% 102,560 4,467,742 1,911 291,588 10594 448801 256,370 1,109,920 (13,131) 1,544,779 27,035,034 35246,168 6,094,559 41,340,727
Proft for the year KEEER - - - - - - - - - - 5026831 5026831 1135186 6,162,017
Net changes arising from avalleble-for- ~ AT ERE
sale investments (Note &) 2EBFE(Hite) - - - - - - - - (264659 - - (264659 (4312 (268971)
Share of chang in reserve EEBENREREY
of associates - - - - - - - - - (13317 - (135317) - (185317)
Exchenge difierences arising from RFEZ25E%
franslation to presentation curency  MEAZEREE - - - - - - - - - (1,856,594 - (1855594  (305,802) (2,161,3%)
Exchange differences arising from R EsMbEE
translation of foreign operations MELZERZE - - - - - - - - - (4,624 - (4624) (1855 (6279
Total comprehensive (expenses) KEERE(KL)
income for the year et - - - - - - - - (264659) (1,995535) 5026831 2,766,637 823417 3,590,054
Issue of new shares from RfTE B ERE
exercise of share options mETHRA 1280 194,786 - (87039 - - - - - - - 159,007 - 159,027
Recognition of equity-settled EANEREEN
share-based payments RO - - - 20910 - - - - - - - 20910 - 20910
Final diviclend for the year ended BE-%-1%
31 December 2015 (Note 12) +=A=t-A
HEEZRERE
(WtzE12) - - - - - - - - - - (307,680)  (307,680) - (307,680
Interim dividend for the year ended BE-TAF
31 December 2016 (Note 12) +=A=t-A
HEEZPERE
(WtzE12) - - - - - - - - - - (307,680)  (307,680) - (307,680
Disposal of partialinterests in HEHBARNA
asubsidiary 34 - - - - - - - 9,622 - - - 9,622 47,002 56,624
Reserve released upon disposal of HE-HHBAR
a subsidiary GEEE - - - - - - - - - 1569 (1,569 - - -
Capital contrioution from HEBLAAFEERER
non-controling shareholders 1E8
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 26400 26400
Dividends paid to non-controling YHTHEBLARAZ
shareholders of subsidiaries FERREZRE - - - - - - - - - - - - 5710 626710)
Transfers to reserve EATEE - - - - - 63,851 - - - - (63851) - - -
1280 194,786 - (16,129) - 63,851 - 9,622 - 1,569 (680780)  (425801)  (652,308) (978,109
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZF-~F

TZAST-BEHR 103840 4652528 1911 275459 10594 512652 256,370 1,119542  (277,790)  (449,187) 31,381,085 37,587,004 6,365,668 43,952,672




EETEEARA D
071 L

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
RGN, 11§

Capital Share  Special Property Investment Non-
Share Share redemption options surplus  Statutory revaluation  Goodwill revaluation Translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests

B BRERE RMEH WRER REER FER
s ROEE RERRE R BE  EERE fE HERE fE  EXRE REE Nt BRER
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TEx TR TEn TEn TR TEn TR TEn TR @ TEn T TEn
(Notea)  (Noteb)  (Notec)  (Noted)  (Notee)
(Wita)  (W&b)  (W&e)  (Wid)  (Hie)

Balance at 1 January 2017 K=E-t§-f-H
i 103,840 4,652,528 1911 215,459 10594 512652 256370 1,119,542  (277,790)  (449,187) 31,381,085 37,587,004 6,365,668 43,952,672
Proft for the year - - - - - - - - - - 5593434 5503434 1,240,750 6,834,184
Net changes arising from
avalable-for-sale
investments (Note €) (Hite) - - - - - - - - 3869% - - 3869% 16200 403,135
Share of change in reserve EEBELT
of assocites ) - = - - - - - - - 14108 - 1408 - 141,108
Exchange differences arising from RIEZ2HIE%
translation to presentation currency MEEZERES - - - - - - - - - 2319134 - 23719134 398424 2,777,558
Exchange offferences arising from RiFESMBEMES
translaton of oreign operations JEREE - - - - - = = = - (5089 - B0y (7)) (6829)
Total comprehensive income for the year A& 2FIZEH - - - - - - - - 386935 2515209 5503434 8495578 1,653,582 10,149,160
Issue of new shares from BieRrERiE
exercise of share options ik 2805 1,214,004 - (216,0%) - - - - - - - 04074 - 040774
Recognition of equity-settled R EREEN
share-based payments REFARH - - - 3,136 - - - - - - - 3,136 - 3,136
Final dividend for the year ended HE-T—RE
31 December 2016 (Note 12) TZR=T-RLLER
ZRERE(E2) - - - - = = = = o - (126880  (726,880) - (126880
Specialfinel dividend for the yearended ~ EZ=F—7E
31 Decernber 2016 (Note 12) TZR=T-RLLER
- - - - - - - - - - (3115520  (311,520) - (31152
Interim dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017 (Note 12)
RS () - - - = = = o = = - (639872) (639872 - (639872
Deemed disposal of partialinterestsin -~ B{ELERBAT
a subsidlary Bas = = - - - - - 199559 - - - 199559 423286 622,845
Acquisitions of addiional inferests WEHEAR
in subsidliaries BONER - - - - - - - 171,604 - - - 171,604 (437,096 (265492
Disposal of partial interests ina subsidlary — (HERBA AT ER - - - - - - - 32013 - - - 32013 364226 684,362
Capital contribution from non-controling ~ FBA FFFARRE
shareholders of a subsidliary HEE - - - - - - - - - - - - 130341 130,341
Dividends paid to non-controling busili v
shareholders of subsidlaries HERREZBRE - - - - - - - - - - - - (815.806)  (815,806)
Transfers to reserve gpnhE - - - - - 1924% - - - - (192,49) - - -
2805 1,214,004 - (212899) - 1924% - 691,29 - - (1870,768)  (43,063) (335,049 (378,112
Balance at 31 December 2017 RET—HE2R

=t-BZER 106,645 5,866,532 1,911 2,560 10594 705148 256370 1810841 109,145 2066022 35103751 46,039,519 7,684,201 53,723,720
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes:

(@)

Special surplus account represents the difference between the nominal amount of
the shares issued by the Company and the nominal amount of the issued share
capitals of the subsidiaries which were acquired by the Company under the Group
reorganisation in 1993.

Statutory reserve comprises statutory fund, which is non-distributable, represents
capitalisation of retained profits of certain subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) for capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and funds
shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses or (i) expand production operations.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on revaluation of
certain properties of the Group for own use as a result of transfer of those properties
from properties, plant and equipment to investment properties.

Goodwill reserve represents the effects of changes in ownership in certain
subsidiaries when there is no change in control.

Net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist of gain on fair
value changes amounting to HK$1,521,998,000 (2016: HK$168,512,000), gain on
disposal amounting to HK$1,153,015,000 (2016: HK$465,247,000) and impairment
loss amounting to HK$34,152,000 (2016: HK$27,764,000).

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE—ZE—+t&F+-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

HK$’000
TR

HK$'000
FHET

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Profit before taxation FRAE A A 8,365,361 7,237,226
Adjustments for: FE
Share of results of associates NI E (103,267) (9,152)
Depreciation of properties, Y% - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 1,757,861 1,955,026
Dividends from available-for-sale investments AHEERE 2 RBMA (34,650) (168,382)
Impairment loss recognised on BE 5 IR KR
trade receivables 2 REE#E 166,793 86,682
Impairment loss recognised on properties, TR - B MR ETER
plant and equipment ZBERE = 39,000
Impairment loss recognised on A HHEREER
available-for-sale investments ZBEEE 34,152 27,764
Interest expenses and other finance charges FMEZHREMAEERA 311,919 403,074
Interest income FEMA (304,540) (226,134)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAMHHERE 2 s
investments (1,153,015) (465,247)
Gain on fair value changes of WEMENFEEH 2 K
investment properties (54,284) (21,286)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ST A Rl 2 W - (2,121,238)
Release of prepaid lease payments AR ERER D 24,304 21,218
Write down (reversal of write down) of inventories  #fi$5 (¥ 07 & 20,607 (87,997)
Loss on disposal and written off of properties, HERMEDE  BER
plant and equipment B o 40,519 32,656
Share-based payments VAR FE AT R 3,136 20,910
Operating cash flows before movements KRt BEBESEHAEI 2
in working capital KERERE 9,074,896 6,774,120
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEUEM)RE LD (232,381) 401,001
Decrease (increase) in properties held for FHFERERMER D (E)
development 76,182 (161,558)
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 REMERRTR KR
other receivables and prepayments TR FRIEE )R (4,486,957) 699,094
Increase in bills receivables FEUTZ 538N (1,630,276) (1,292,953)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N E A e BR RN 2,314,746 1,626,479
Increase (decrease) in bills payables FEREHEIEMORL) 509,677 (213,551)
(Decrease) increase in deposits received from THEWEmMZ
pre-sale of residential units EHEACZIE N (4,297,597) 4,344,904
Cash generated from operations REXRGRERS 1,328,290 12,177,536
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHBEBNEH (30,044) (6,464)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (B8 B -t IgER
(“LAT”) refund (paid) (T s Ie(ER ) iRE 299,714 (176,745)
Other income taxes paid Hib BT EH (1,452,569) (881,250)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & %15 FHE 145,391 11,113,077
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—®—tF T AF

NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
FasE FET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REX
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BB Al B &84 (10,081,401) (12,579,920)
Purchase of properties, BEWE  BE L&A
plant and equipment (1,937,943) (524,495)
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties, BEE ¥ « &= MRE &
plant and equipment and investment KEYEMTET©
properties (485,451) (90,940)
Prepaid lease payments made BEREMANHEERIE (38,533) (27,184)
Proceeds from disposal of HE AR SR E S KIA
available-for-sale investments 11,615,095 8,614,235
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary HE—RNB A RERATSRIEA 32 - 2,133,849
Interest received BUFILE 288,428 203,828
Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEWE  BEMRE
plant and equipment Fr3 5008 168,328 126,948
Net decrease in entrusted loans SIS FEE 162,995 246,473
Dividends received from B AT SR E R B
available-for-sale investments 34,650 168,382
Dividend received from an associate B —FEEE R RRE 3,966 -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries BEHBAT 31 = (2,682,319)
Withdrawal of fixed deposits held at banks — $2ELR EAFR & =& 3 A &
with original maturity over three months HSRTTE AT R = 196,756
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBFAAREFE
ACTIVITIES (269,866) (4,114,383)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
New bank borrowings raised FGIRITEE 16,220,081 9,400,545
Repayment of bank borrowings 1;@%&{71%% (13,997,363) (13,246,598)
Dividend paid on ordinary shares BRI E B (1,678,272) (615,360)
Dividends paid to non-controlling S‘ZH?’“W% 72#? AEAE R
shareholders of subsidiaries ) 35\ (815,806) (625,710)
Interest and other finance charges paid AR EREMEE BB (310,974) (375,810)
Consideration paid for acquisition of U BB BB A B FBSMERR PR RE
additional interests in subsidiaries (265,492) -
Proceeds from the partial disposal of HENB AR D ER
a subsidiary FTiSsIE 1,307,207 56,624
Proceeds from exercise of share options ~ {T{#{B LB P& RIS 5718 940,774 159,027
Capital contribution from non-controlling M A R 2 IEER I R B RE
shareholders of subsidiaries 130,341 26,400
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BETEHME(FTRBEEFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,530,496 (5,220,882)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FH&T
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RePRESEEEREMFEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,406,021 1,777,812
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FOzReRESEHEER
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 6,472,614 4,853,792
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREEE
RATE CHANGES 235,121 (158,990)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERzEERBRSEEER -
THE END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING BRITES%RES
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 8,113,756 6,472,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE—ZE—+t&F+-A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL

Kingboard Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and
sales of laminates, printed circuit boards (“PCBs”), chemicals,
magnetic products and property development and investments
(“Properties”).

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”) while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which the directors of the Company (“Directors”)
considered it is more relevant for the users of the consolidated
financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year

The company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) has applied the

following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to Hong Kong Disclosure Initiative
Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) 7

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

—REH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require disclosures
on changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from
financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (i) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these
items is provided in Note 40. Consistent with the transition provisions
of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior year. Apart from the additional disclosure in
Note 40, the application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—%
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments!

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions!
Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts'”

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment Property’
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations
mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other financial
assets are measured at their fair values at subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 December 2017, the Directors anticipate the
following potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Listed debt instruments classified as available-for-sale investments
carried at fair value as disclosed in Note 20: these are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the listed debt instruments
in the open market, and the contractual terms give rise to cash
flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding. Accordingly, the listed debt
instruments will continue to be subsequently measured at FVTOCI
upon the application of HKFRS 9, and the fair value gains or losses
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve will continue to
be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss when the listed debt
instruments are derecognised.

Listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale investments
carried at fair value as disclosed in note 20: these securities qualified
for designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however,
the Group plans not to elect the option for the designation and will
measure these securities at fair value with subsequent fair value gains
or losses to be recognised in profit or loss. Upon initial application of
HKFRS 9, investments revaluation reserve of HK$58,772,000 related
to these available-for-sale investments will be transferred to retained
profits at 1 January 2018.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement: (continued)

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale investments carried
at cost less impairment as disclosed in Note 20: these securities
qualified for designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9
and the Group will measure these securities at fair value at the end
of subsequent reporting periods with fair value gains or losses to be
recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. Upon initial application of HKFRS 9,
no material effect to financial statements is anticipated.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be
measured on the same bases as are currently measured under HKAS
39.

Impairment

In general, the Directors anticipate that the application of the expected
credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to
the impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors, if the expected credit loss
model was to be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount of
impairment loss to be recognised by the Group as at 1 January 2018
would be not materially different compared with the accumulated
amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provisions on trade and other receivables and listed
bond securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction contract” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4.  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

The Directors have assessed the impact on the application of HKFRS
15 and do not anticipate the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on major sources of revenue, except for the service
income from drilling services that will be affected as follows:

Timing of revenue recognition

Service income from drilling services may meet the HKFRS 15 criteria
for recognising revenue over time since the entity’s performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced.

Currently under HKAS 18, the Group recognizes the service income
when the services are provided. The change in accounting policy
regarding drilling services would expect to result in recognition of a
contract asset or liability and related deferred tax assets or liabilities as
at 1 January 2018, and opening retained profits would increase.

In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in
more disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors intend to apply the limited retrospective method with
cumulative effect of initial application recognised in opening balance
of equity 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing
and operating cash flows respectively by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and
a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$28,302,000, as disclosed in Note 37. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits
paid of HK$2,294,000 and refundable rental deposits received of
HK$110,374,000 as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right to
use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits received would be considered as advance lease payments

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-base Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are measured at fair value and a valuation technique that was
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the

valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at

the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

3.

FESFHEEX

JE 2 AR —MRARAR & an I RTE XM PAT 1S
RENQHEMETE °

RHERNFTERMS2EERGKF
RHPHEEETRRRERRBEEAX
NEVER  MAWZERSEEKME
RS A E A 5 — A ERI AT - REE
BEIEENATER AEESEE
MmiE2HEERGERNEEXABER
KAEZRNEERBERH - ZFHE
FBRERPIESAER A REAENR
FEDRIEEEETE - EREVBHRR
ERIFE2REE NH [ AR AT 5K
Ry BRAGENEATHIAE R
EANEER S A REAFERLE
WHAFENEBFEMIN: FEE
PRS2SR FR MR FELE
BEtERFEeR EEREINERE
BRI

FEREEQNTFEGFERZEMSES
HEMREAZEERIZ &E MRE
M HIEREEE TS AREAZ
BERIGSREERAZTS2EE
FREESE 2 SR

REZBMEER T BEREABEBEA
FEAENTRIERKEDE  HE
TABRRAE - BIEETDENGERER
HEREE -

BEAN - SIS ER IR E - AP EFER
B EREME AR BEEE &
N EFENHABBRE ABEBNEE
MAERE—  B-FEZE FHiBW
T

. E—Ha ) \BERERARIN
AFEARGHRERNEELR
ERERTIZHRE CREE)

. E_RB A \BERTERE R
BEMNEEXRBENATEELH
BEEENEE &

. FE-BR A \BEREEXBEN
THEREE -



087

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE =%

—tEF+-A=+-HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investeg;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the Group’s
and the non-controlling interests proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity in the goodwill reserve and is
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ji) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

3.

FESFHEEX

SEREEX )
FEMREEWBARZRERES Y
HE
AEBERBEHER R B RS
B B A S [ S B B A I 0
HIE - @ AR ARER S - REEH
MR R AR BB R AR AR SR A 2 B
BEER FHE  UREWEEHER
BRSNS - BIEREAER
B IE PR IR R RS R R L DI BT R
BRAEEERFERBRESEZHZ
{5 o

FEAR AR A SR 25 5 B BB B P A SR TR
REATEME ZHNEZEEENEE
FRENRBRNER  YHARRREA
D o

BAREEKE RN B QR R E S #
By BUAR I RER R B 2 B R IR AR AR
R (MA)MEERAE  BENE
AANHER - W - ()ERREXTFER
EfREBER A T EAREE)ARRF
BABIERBARMNEE(BREHE)
REENREEZRNZRETHE - IE
5 AT At 2 T M 2 oA B B 8 R EE R
MERE TUAR  BUAKECEER
HEZMBARMBHEEXAG R
BEREBY B RRERNRE T
BN BRERaNERES —Bkn) °

ES e
EBWEDRBYIEEAR - REBA
HERZ RERATEFTE  MER
ERASBEEREE  AREHRK
BORBAANEEZ BBERAEEARR
BARIE T 2 PRI R TT 2 B R
HEZ ATFELM - MINEREGHE Y
PR — MR E ARSI E P RS o



089

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets, financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other individual identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. IFEEHBE )
(continued)
Goodwill e

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as

WRERBES < BEREEXRBER

established at the date of acquisition of the business (see accounting FEEE A (R E Xl @ st R )RR
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any. sHREEE (A )FER -
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each RENRMNE  mESKIFEHEE

of the Group’s cash generating units (“CGU”) (or groups of CGUs)

Pz ipRRER RSz ARE S BRR

that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, CEESBM([HEEELEMN]  FFL
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored EABMN AR - MiZBAsEAE

for internal management purpose and not larger than an operating
segment.

ERAEEE B M ERE AR RIEKF
BETrEgEenta

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated BESENBCRSEAEM(HIRS
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is ELBEVAR)BFINZEMNETER
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on ZEN BB EREITESEE 2 RER

an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU
(or group of CGU) is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
on a pro rata basis on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGU). Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill HEEBRReEESEMNN - BIFEEWY
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on SHERLEERATAB TS 2 (3

disposal (or any of the CGU within group of CGUs in which the Group
monitors goodwill).

The Group policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
The financial statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes
in net assets of the associate other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in its former subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an
investment, in an associate, the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
and the Group discontinues the use of the equity method when the
investment is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods other than sales of properties is
recognised when the goods are delivered and title has passed.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when the respective properties have been completed
and the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities as ‘deposits received from
pre-sale of residential units’.

Service income from drilling services is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Licence fee income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant licence agreement.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established,
provided that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue for operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties held for development
Properties held for development for sale in the future are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, comprising prepaid
lease payments for lands and development costs, are included
in properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
investment properties when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than
for sale in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value at the date of transfer and its previous carrying
amount of the properties is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
properties, plant and equipment when there is a change of intention
to hold the properties for the Group’s own use rather than for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Its previous carrying amount of the
properties becomes the deemed cost upon transfers to properties,
plant and equipment.

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties, plant and equipment under
construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes, are carried at cost
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate category of properties, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than properties, plant and equipment under construction) less their
residual value over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

If an item of properties, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item (including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Licenced properties, plant and equipment

Licenced properties, plant and equipment (included in properties,
plant and equipment) held to earn licence fee income are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of items of licenced
properties, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary

to make the sales.

Licenced inventories

Licenced inventories shown as either other non-current assets or
other current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position

are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see

the accounting policies in respect of goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if

any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which

a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see

the accounting policies in respect of goodwill) (continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases and licence fee income are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
and licence agreement. Other than investment properties measured
under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits

from the leased assets are consumed.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is generally classified as
if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

The Group transfers prepaid lease payments to properties held
for development when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties for the Group’s redevelopment rather than owner
occupation. The previous carrying amount of the prepaid lease
payments becomes the cost of properties held for development upon
the date of transfer.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

RELTIEEARA S
—ELEER

3.

FESFHEEX

R SE)

AR L RET
EHEBELIHRETHS  AEEE
ZHEEHL HAEENRKRERBRES
BRIADEREARER @ LIEEIHE
DAMESLLEL RSB HBEE
RIS BEEYESEAKEH
2o LER  2BREEBEAHE X
MBMAR) EV S ERE - RHOERS
REELTMIEE MEFIEE 2 EHHE
AFELHIEREB T AN

HEFIRG A e D BES - ARRTIR
rEBENNEN D RRERERE TS
ARRRB ) BIFENEEHIE] - REK
EEMEMMEE - O BRLARF
ERATIEREMEERRI - EREK
BT E T MEFE D 2 HA]
SN - BEYE-RESREN
4 WEREE IR -

EERNEEARERENRFEAREE
EMFXTER  AREEERNEE
REEFERYE - BNEEFANE
EREENSR A MR AFERYE
HIRAR

SN

RESERSEEERZMEHRKRE - A
ZERZNEEE NG (HNE) #1T
ZRHTIRR 5 A E R 2 ERER -
REPEERE R - UINESIEZE
BHEBUAZRAZEREMEN - RAF
BEYIRRBRINETIE 2 FFEWIAR Thi%
EERFEEAEREMEL - UK
BESERAGEZIFERIHR T TEHR
X o



KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

100

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint arrangements that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before 1 January 2005
is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and
reported using the historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sales, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of
an asset.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
consolidated statement of profit or loss because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, the
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arisen from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value though profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
financial asset. The net gain or loss for available-for-sale investments
excludes any dividend income or interest income earned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, entrusted loans, bills receivables and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity

investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as available-for-sale are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period except for unquoted equity investments whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale debt instruments relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method and dividends on
available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting

policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the disappearance
of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event

occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bills payables
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the
higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to the Directors and employees of the Group
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined
at the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in share
options reserve.

At end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
For share options that are vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Notes 14 and 21)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that certain of the
investment properties located in the PRC with carrying amount of
approximately HK$10,111,585,000 at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$8,742,449,000) are held under a business model which objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, the Directors have determined the presumption that the
carrying amounts of such investment properties are recovered entirely
through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised
deferred taxes on LAT in respect of changes in fair value of such
investment properties but has recognised deferred tax on Enterprise
Income Tax on the assumption that these investment properties will
be recovered through use.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting

policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (Notes 14 and 21)
(continued)

The investment properties located in Hong Kong and the United
Kingdom with carrying amounts of approximately HK$2,943,432,000
and HK$4,096,898,000 at 31 December 2017 respectively (2016:
located in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$2,909,041,000 and HK$3,717,334,000
respectively) are not held under a business model which objective is
to recover the economic benefits of the investment properties entirely
through use. No deferred tax is recognised in respect of the fair value
change in such investment properties as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on disposal of investment properties in Hong Kong
and the United Kingdom, assuming that the Group is considered as a
non-resident in the United Kingdom.

Legal claim (Note 36(b))

The Group is involved in legal proceeding as disclosed in Note 36(b)
to the consolidated financial statements. Management has evaluated
and assessed the claims made against the Group based on legal
advice from the Company’s lawyer and is of the view that the liability
of this legal case cannot be quantified at this point because the
hearing date for Privy Council appeal has not been fixed. Accordingly,
no provision nor accrual are made in the consolidated financial
statements.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and
equipment (Note 15)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for its properties,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of properties, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are expected to be
shorter than previously estimated, or it will write-off obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Changes in
these estimations may have a material impact on the results of the
Group. The management reviews properties, plant and equipment
to determine if there is any indication that the assets may have been
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts
of properties, plant and equipment will be determined based on
discounted cash flow method of each asset or a CGU. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, no impairment loss (2016:
HK$39,000,000) was recognised as the Directors consider that
there was no indication of impairment that require the estimation
of the recoverable amount of the properties, plant and equipment
including the licensed assets. At as 31 December 2017, the carrying
amounts of properties, plant and equipment was approximately
HK$14,529,533,000 (2016: HK$13,545,102,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill (Note 18)

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which results in downward revision of future cash,
a material impairment loss may arise. At 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of goodwill was approximately HK$2,288,149,000
(2016: HK$2,288,149,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 18.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Allowances for inventories (Note 22)

In determining the net realisable value of the Group’s inventories,
the management estimated the net realisable value of inventories
based on the most reliable information available at the time the
estimates are made. These estimates take into consideration the
fluctuations in price, the balance on hand relative to sales prospects
and the condition of the inventories. A write down of HK$20,607,000
(2016: reversal of write down of HK$37,997,000) on inventories
has recognised during the year ended 31 December 2017. As
at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$2,115,557,000 (2016: HK$1,779,065,000).

Estimated net realisable value on properties held for
development (Note 23)

In determining whether write down should be made to the Group’s
properties held for development, the Group takes into consideration
the current market environment and the estimated market value (i.e.
the estimated selling price less estimated costs of selling expenses)
less estimated costs to completion of the properties. Write down is
made if the estimated market value less estimated cost to completion
of the properties is less than the carrying amount. If the actual net
realisable value on properties held for development for sales is
less than expected as a result of change in market condition and/
or significant variation in the budgeted development cost, material
write down may result. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of properties held for development was approximately
HK$15,637,824,000 (2016: HK$15,810,227,000).

Estimated impairment of trade receivables (Note 24)

When there is an objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition,
where applicable). Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected or being revised downward due to changes in facts
and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
approximately HK$6,276,643,000 (2016: HK$5,237,066,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately HK$934,179,000 (2016:
HK$770,209,000).

BEASFTHE R AT
AR Z 2 EERIR )

A THRBEEZEERIR (@)
FERE (HE22)
EEEAEEFERNIE R FER -
ERERELGIREBENETRE
KHETFEM R ZIRFE - ZFMHE
ERt RERES  HEESERAY
FH&EBRTFEMRR - BHEZ-FT—+
F+-_A=+—HItFE  FEMA
20,607,000/ (= —/XF : #EH
37,997,000 7T ) EfER - BHE_-ZT
—+tF+A=+—BILEEE  FEW
BREI(E52,115,557,000 T(ZE—X
F 1 1,779,065,000/87T) °

FREME AT TR FE(HE23)

ErASEAERMELSTTEMR
AEEZ BN EMEZFATERN R
fHET Y 2 T E (BMEETH & E R
ETHEBE AR AR) M TR EZ
AR o BYEZ G THERTEKEZSE
M7 R ARERREREE - AIZBED
WO - ARSI 2 K, TE
HERKABEREY  FESFEE
MEZERAIFRFESORTER -
B EHEAMB - RZT—+tF+=
A=+—B #ERVENEEELY
#15,637,824,000/8 (= F—/N4F ¢
15,810,227,00078 7T ) °

B 5 BEWERR 2 (s RE (HiaE24)
WERSEFBEBERNLERERER &%
EBEZEMHAKRBESRE - BEFBE
CHEALERABERIZSHEERER
& (B A RO ERFE) (0@
R BN ARKREeRERECH
BREREENRREEBB) 2Z58 -
MEBRKRERERERL » HE
EERBEREEERTHA - A HER
BEARERBE R-_ZT—+tF+_-A4
=t+—H BSRUBEFRNETREY
#6,276,643,0008 7L ( ZF — X F ¢
5,2387,066,000 7% 7T ) ( #0 Bk R 52 BR #&
##49934,179,000 T ( —Z B — N4 :
770,209,000787T)) °



KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

114 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ - Z—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4. BERGEHERMGET

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Directors have a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the Directors works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level
3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices
in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group
will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of
the fluctuations will be reported to the Directors. Any changes in the
price per square metre in reference with recent transactions will affect
the fair value of the investment properties of the Group. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties are disclosed in Note 14.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent
it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Directors
will assess the valuation of financial instruments based on quoted
bid prices of the previous trading day in the markets at the end of
each reporting period. The fair value of the Group’s bond securities
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”), SIX Swiss Exchange
(“SIX”), Deutscher Aktienindex (“DAX”) and Cayman Islands Stock
Exchange (“CSX”) is determined with reference to the pricing vendors’
estimation, who will assess its fair value, taking into account primarily
the fair value quoted by the brokers which is adjusted for the lack
of marketability of the bond securities at the end of the reporting
period. The pricing vendors will exercise their judgements based on
their experience to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
technigues and inputs to the valuation model. Where there is a
material change in the fair value of the available-for-sale investments,
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the Directors. Any
changes in the marketability of the listed bonds will affect the fair value
of the investments. Notes 20 and 34(c) provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE 5. EX®
Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable by the BEBIEAEERBHIINEPEEE
Group from the sales of goods, provision of driling services, sales of o REEFLRT  HEWE - MEXR
properties, income from property investment and licence fee income BWARFREEBBEWRACRIT - R
provided to outside customers, net of discounts, returns and sales ENEERBARE) 2E R EKRSE
related taxes. Analysis of revenue for the year is as follows: RE o BFENEEESTAT
2017 2016
—E—tfF SN
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Sales of laminates SHE B IRER 14,714,174 12,230,171
Sales of chemicals WELTER 13,351,870 10,229,696
Sales of PCBs HE I RIAREEIR 8,194,104 7,478,095
Sales of properties HEYE 5,570,171 4,860,247
Rental income Ee WA 897,436 625,902
Others (Note) EoA (Bf5E) 431,718 406,209
43,159,473 35,830,320
Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the amount mainly included i : HE-Z—+FE+-A=+—HLHF
sales of magnetic products of HK$303,103,000 (2016: HK$313,960,000). B ZAEFrEeREEEHEERK
303,103,000 7T ( = & — X 4 -
313,960,000/ 7T) ©
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEF

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating segments to be
identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to segments and
to assess their performance. Specifically, the Group’s operating
and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 were organised into five
main operating divisions — (i) manufacture and sale of laminates, (i)
manufacture and sale of PCBs, (iii) manufacture and sale of chemicals,
(iv) sales and rental of properties and (v) others (mainly including
manufacture and sale of magnetic products). The management
aggregated the sales of properties and rental income business
into one reportable segment because the financial performance of
both businesses are affected by changes in the property market. In
addition, the management aggregated service income, hotel business
and manufacture and sale of magnetic products into one reportable
segment because the revenue, results, assets and liabilities of each
business are insignificant to the Group. No other operating segments
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Under HKFRS 8, segment information is based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the
executive directors, being the CODM of the Group. The measurement
policies the Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its HKFRS consolidated financial statements.
The CODM assesses segment profit or loss using a measure of
operating profit whereby certain items are not included in arriving
at the segment results of the operating segments (share of results
of associates, gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments,
impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale investments, gain on
disposal of subsidiaries, finance costs, share-based payments and

D EBE R )

RIBE BN RHERER - 287
MERTDRIBAERLHEN - ZF
BERBARBZHTES  AIXR2LE
REEEMEY - ARBERBEF B
AR FESRAMIED B2 FTER
R BEAREBVBRRENZGE
MR - TBLBRRENLE
B2 5t ERFE D BB M REE -
EPETHREIRARBEEEBKED
Mz o MEEARN(BIEBERREE
HEHEERE 2 W s fEE

unallocated corporate income and expenses). KREERZHERE LENBARZ
Uz~ BRERK « UM RS - &

(@

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating and reportable segments:

DEEZ AR AR ) °

DEEREREE
INT ARG E R EBRDEE D2
REFLEBNEE 2NN

(GY)

Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others  Eliminations Consolidated
BEER ORSER  LIER nE 2 H &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn TEn Thn
For the year ended BEoE-tF
31 December 2017 tZB=1-ALEE
Segment revenue HHEEE
Extemal sales HIMEER 14714174 8194104  13351,870 6,467,607 431,718 - 43159473
Inter-segment sales PERHER 1,941,068 - 644,303 - 214 (2,585,645) -
Total Aif 16,655,242 8,194,104 13,996,173 6,467,607 431992 (2,585,645) 43,159,473
Result 5
Segment results PHEE 3,953,106 693,051 966,366 1,974,715 18,854 7,606,002
Gain on disposal of avalleble-for-sele  MEARHERE Uiz
investments 1,153,015
Impaiment loss recognised on Rt ERERD L
avallable-for-sale investments HEEE (34,152)
Share-based payments WRBEAR (,136)
Unallocated corporate income KA DFMA 256,185
Unallocated corporate expenses AN (403,991)
Finance costs RERA (311,919)
Share of resus of associates EEBENTEE 103,267
Proft before taxation B EET 8,365,361
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ - Z—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinueq) 6. DEER W
(@ Segment revenue and results (continued) () oHEXBREE®E

Laminates

"

HK$'000

A

PCBs  Chemicals

TEm

Others
2

HKS'000

B

Eliminations
i
HK$000
T

Consolidated

For the year ended BE-E-5F

31 December 2016 TZA=T-BLEE
Segment revenue HPEEE

Extemal sales HIMEER 12,230,171 7478005  102296% 5,486,149 406,209 - 35830320

Inter-segment sales APRIHER 1,692,041 - 508952 - 2781 (2,204674) -
Total At 13923112 7478095 10,738,648 5,486,149 408990 (2204674 35,830,320
Resut E

Segment results PHEE 2,465,136 378,293 312,823 1,701,060 8,507 4,865,834
Gain on disposal of avalleble-for-sele  MEARHERE Uiz

investments 465,247
(Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-HNBAT R 2121238
Impaiment loss recognised on At ER AR

avallable-for-sale investments HEEE (27,764)
Share-based payments DRAR AN (20910)
Unallocated corporate income KARZRalA 500,125
Unallocated corporate expenses AN (362,672)
Finance costs HENA (403,074)
Share of results of associates EEBENTEE 9,152
Proft before taxation TN 7,237,226

Inter-segment sales are charged at a price mutually agreed by

both parties.

i

)—\'_\Eo

i

DEEZ HEEREETRER
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FEMBmRMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6- ﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬂ(zé}
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) HHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities AT BiRies R BRmyEElIn 2
by operating and reportable segments: AEEEERBEZON

Laminates PCBs  Chemicals  Properties Others Consolidated

BEEf  ORISER t1ER IE Bt &8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TEn THRL ThL

At 31 December 2017 R=B-t§+=A
=t-g
Assets EE
Segment assets HHEE 18467204 10965041  7,793988 37,321,452 958,057 75,505,832
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 6,525,570
Intsrests n associates REENAZES 504,090
Assets classifiedasheld forsale HEBFELE 1,696,193
Unallocated corporate assets FOMZNAEE
- Bank balances and cash -RTERERE 3,421,152
- Deferred tax assets —ERHEEE 3,768
~ Taxation recoverable -AkE#E 7,064
- Others —HEit 629,814
Consolidated total assets GREESE 88,204,383
Liabilities 1
Segment liabilities PHafE (2,921,893) (2,107,749) (1,690,573) (4,236,209) (86,135)  (11,042,559)
Unallocated corporate liabilties FolznaaE
- Bank borrowings -BTRE (19,088,342)
- Taxation payable —[EsiHE (886,418)
- Deferred tax liabilties -EREHERR (783,418)
- Others -Ef (2,769,926)

Consolidated total iabilties FAgEER (34,570,663)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6- /]-J\%Bﬁ*sl'(@>
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) b) SBEEREEE)

Laminates PCBs Chemicals Properties Others  Consolidated
R ] tIER f
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL BT TAL
At 31 December 2016 R=2-AF+=A
=t-H
Assets EE
Segment assets PHEE 16,565,429 10,199,662 6,476,958 31,270,896 723,194 65,236,029
Available-for-sale investments HEERE 6,537,266
Interests in associates REEAR R 1,950,874
Unallocated corporate assets OB AAEE
- Bank balances and cash -RTERRES 1,841,366
- Deferred tax assets -ERENEEAE 3,347
- Taxation recoverable - EHE 10,294
- Others —Eih 832,377
Consolidated total assets GAEERE 76,420,563
Liabilities 1
Segment liabilties P8R (2563945 (1,702,484) (798.092) (8,830,151 (45363 (13940,035)
Unallocated corporate liabilties OBz ATBE
- Bank borrowings -RIIEE (16,864,152)
- Taxation payable — e (528,938)
- Deferred tax liabilties -EENEER (759,988
- Others -Ef (374,768)
Consolidated total libiltes FRBREAE (32,467,881)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RERSHRE LD D E
allocating resources between segments: HR

all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank
balances and cash and others assets used jointly by
operating segments; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, taxation
payable and others liabilities for which operating
segments are jointly liable.

BIBERIBAE « AR
EIBIE « D WA
ERHRTERERS
REMAESN - FiAE
ENREMENS : &

BRIRITIEE - BIEHRIA
BE - EERELREE
DR HRIAEN EME
1%9\\ FBERESEE

O YaNyi
KEDHED ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6- /]-J\%Bﬁ*sl'(@>

Other information HipgER

(c)

For the year ended
31 December 2017

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Capital addftions
Depreciation
Release of prepaid lease payments
Impairment loss recognised
on frade receivables
Write down (reversal of write down)
of inventories
Interest income
Loss (gain) on disposal and written off
of properties, plant and equipment

Gain on fair value changes
of investment properties

Laminates
AR
HK$000
TH
HEZZ-tE
TZB=t-ALFE
HEGEEr D
AREERIA
NeE:
ERER 874,791
ik 560,253
BRREFERE 5,392
HEHEUNER
BRLAERE 81,211
il (B F g
6,259
FEMA 112,115
I R -
BERREL
FR&) 38,751
RENFLTERY
pdit: -

PCBs

RS
HKS'000
Tin

833,165
496,003
4,485
73,408
(2,738)
24,801

(1,800)

Chemicals
tIER
HK$'000

Thn

308910
650,033
9,368
12174
17,086
18,006

1,841

(c)

Unallocated

Others

Properties

hz

HKS$'000
TiEx

4,039,884 36,162
6,103 45,469

- 5,039

20814 n

- 219

54,284 -

amount

iy AIELH

HK$'000
TR

Consolidated
&a
HK$'000
Thn

6,089,912
1,757,861
24,304
166,793
20,607
304,540
40,519

54,284

For the year ended
31 December 2016

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit or loss
or segment assets:

Capital additions

Depreciation

Release of prepaid lease payments

(Reversal of) impairment loss
recognised on trade receivables

(Reversal of write down) write down of
inventories

Interest income

Loss (gain) on disposal and written off
of properties, plant and equipment

Gain on fair value changes
of investment properties

Laminates
B

BE-Z-RE
TZR=t-ALEE

FTEDBRED
DEAERTA
MeE:

BRER

e

BfEETERE

(BE)RESELEN
B AERR

(BERE) MRS

FIEHA
HERMHNE - HER
R BRRE)

REMZATERY
i -

149,755
625,350
8425
(2408)

0,149)
47,737

31133

PCBs

376,413
499,454
4,288
68,559

22,957
12,800

(303)

Chemicals
LIER

HK$'000
TAL

241,630
786,433
7,370
20,531

(67,203)
43,005

il

Unallocated

Others

At K

3,566,730 8,048
5,746 38,034

- 1,135

- (1,603

44,289 36

- 1,605

21,286 -

amount

Consolidated

4,341,576
1,005,026
21,218
86,682

(37,997)
226,134

32,656

21,286
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6- /]-J\%Bﬁ*sl'(@>

(c)  Other information (continued) (c) HaERG®

The Group operates principally in the PRC (country of AEBENEEEBURF BT
domicile). EER) -
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from REERIRINEE P P 2 &Y
external customers by geographical location of the customers: EEEOMMAT

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

The PRC (country of domicile) AL (FTEEISR) 39,159,437 32,083,087
Other Asian countries (including Thailand, — EfSMBIR (BIERH -

Japan, Korea and Singapore) A7 - B8R TN ) 1,753,233 1,664,101
Europe B 1,499,361 1,527,199
America =M 747,442 555,933

43,159,473 35,830,320
No single external customer of the Group contributed over BE-_ZE-XRFEt+-A=+—H
10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the years ended 31 N_ZE—+F+-_HA=+—H1
December 2016 and 31 December 2017. KREE  NEFIWEE — 7 IR

EEAEANEEEXEER10%

The geographical analysis of the Group’s non-current assets Rt BB - R ek &
other than deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and BEMECN RS - RIEFHEE
equipment and investment properties, deferred tax assets, E - EMIEREEENAIHES
other non-current assets and available-for-sale investments LEIN - REBIERBEERE
by location of assets is presented as follows: EMESTE2S0T

At 31 December

B+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FBT
The PRC (country of domicile) R (FTERIS) 31,764,571 30,883,362
Thailand Z=H 249,313 235,633
United Kingdom S 4,179,692 3,800,566

36,193,576 34,919,561
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HMEWA - WERkESE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZTE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Other income, gains and losses includes: EalA - Wk RSB
Interest income from available-for-sale investments  B] {f H & 5& 7 F| B Ug A 177,147 104,376
Interest income from bank balances and cash SRITHEHRIBE 2 F B UA 74,495 57,672
Interest income from entrusted loans ZREERZFERA 52,898 64,186
Dividends from available-for-sale investments AT ERE 2 REWA 34,650 168,382
Loss on disposal and written off of properties, HEMMEDE - BEX
plant and equipment REZEE (40,519) (32,656)
Others Hib 45,497 25,130
Income from relocation compensation FEmEEWRA - 271,079
Impairment loss recognised on properties, T WE KRRE
plant and equipment R B(EEE - (39,000)
344,168 619,069
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERAK
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—X
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 345,522 438,379
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of B BEREEKRAR
qualifying assets BERLERE (33,603) (35,305)
311,919 403,074
Bank borrowing costs capitalised during the year includes the bank FRZERCBRITEER KRB ERE
borrowing costs of HK$28,809,000 (2016: HK$30,796,000) arose TRANRNEMERREBZETEE
from a bank borrowing specific for the property development project X 7K 28,809,000 7 JT ( Z & — /< F -
and bank borrowing costs arose from the general borrowing pool 30,796,000 7T) k —REEEE 2R
which were calculated by applying a weighted average capitalisation TEEKRAN  NEEBREER S INEY
rate of 2.23% (2016: 2.49%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying BB R FEFE223%( =F—/KF -

assets. 2.49%)5TE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE e X
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
The amount comprises: HIEBIE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BTSSR 1,187,799 850,571
PRC LAT AR £ it I (E R 251,217 188,893
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNEH 61,609 30,339
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions HibRlEEm 2 1718 29,919 5,333
Under(over)provision in previous years BAEFEREBETR
(FRFRRAE) 12,165 (1,324)
1,542,709 1,073,812
Deferred taxation (Note 21) EIERIE (FF5E21) (11,532) 1,397
1,531,177 1,075,209

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has
been levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, represented by the excess of sales
proceeds of properties over prescribed direct costs. Prescribed
direct costs are defined to include costs of land, development and
construction costs, as well as certain costs relating to the property
development. According to the State Administration of Taxation’s
official circulars, LAT shall be payable provisionally upon sales of
the properties, followed by final ascertainment of the gain at the
completion of the properties development.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

RRPBCEMSHE(DEMBER
EDRERED BT NF—A—
ARG - BRARPEKB AR Z DM
ST F25% °

HEL MR ER B ERR B ERA
ERAMBRMEE - L HIBRESR
(REMEHEBAMEREEBRKA)
VA ZHE TR B0% 2 60% E A2 £ 3 18
B - HEERRARERLHAA -
BRREERA - REMEREERRK
AR - BBBERBRBARBZE TR
5 HEMERELHIIEER - 2
FEERTKET R ERMSHE -

EBFERHTIEMEFE 2 R
SEFA16.56% 2 BRETE o

Hib R AR 2 IR IRBREREER
ZERBERGTHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

9.

A=

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (ontinueq) 9. FIBBiAXw

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation as REE 2 1A B R AT B 2 $RR 10

follows: N

2017 2016
—E—tfF SN
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHBT
Profit before taxation R T BT A 8,365,361 7,237,226
Tax charge at the domestic income tax LABI A1 S FT1S 5 2 25%
rate of 25% (2016: 25%) (Note a) (ZZF—RF : 25%)
SHEZBR(Ma) 2,091,340 1,809,307
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR MM EBER 2 RS E
tax purpose 18,668 20,333
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  HERRIUEE 2 TS & (575,472) (771,687)
Tax effect of share of results of associates FEIEEEE R RIERE 2 ISR (25,817) (2,288)
PRC LAT R 4 R E R 251,217 188,893
Tax effect of PRC LAT PR IS ER R E (62,804) (47,223)
Tax effect of Tax Concession (Note b) RS ER ST 2 (MsEb) (112,318) (22,8793)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RTFEREEEBE G E 91,296 93,508
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised &) bATE R 32 2 B I8 8548 (39,503) (101,491)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries BBl A SRS TR A -
operating in other jurisdictions/areas FAE At R EME R, Hh [ AL
other than the domestic income tax rate MR E 2 TRBRE 2 f 2 (49,635) (26,567)
Effect of tax exemption (Note c) TIEE R 2 22 (Miske) (67,960) (63,379)
Under (over) provision in respect of prior years @7 FERET B (BEEEE) 12,165 (1,324)
Tax expense for the year REEZHRBEFRZ 1,531,177 1,075,209

Notes: Mz -

@) The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%) represents the PRC (@ R EFTERR Ro5%( —F— X
Enterprise Income Tax of which the Group’s operations are substantially T 25%) BANEE KNI D EGFTIEN
based. PRI EMEHIE -

(b) Pursuant to the EIT Law, a High-New Technology Enterprise shall be (o) WELEMESHE  SFEMit¥aHE
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 156% for three years since it was officially TR REA A= FMN15%F =
endorsed. Certain subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC obtained official BE ARFETFHRMBATEES
endorsement as a High-New Technology Enterprise (“Tax Concession”). READIEMOE(HBER]) -

(© Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau are (© RATRIABRFZ ETFHB AT FEL

exempted from profit tax.

ZIm N ER R RINFIST
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ - Z—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE
10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. ZEEREF]
2017 2016
—E—+tF SN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at RS M B AR (L)
after charging (crediting): LATIEE :
Auditor’'s remuneration = EREMEN & 13,050 13,050
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK 28,450,936 24,046,368
Cost of properties sold EEMERK 4,132,281 3,351,778
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment ¥  E R REITE 1,757,861 1,955,026
Direct operating expenses in relation to BREKREYENEEZZE
investment properties Sz 184,608 118,948
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables 5t 5 FE U BE 51 iR~ R E & 18
(included in administrative expenses) (BFFATTEER) 166,793 86,682
Net exchange (gain) loss B 3, (W ) 18 88 (11,314) 315,286
Release of prepaid lease payments (Note 16) TENTRERIE BB (MizE16) 24,304 21,218
Total staff costs, including directors’ BIKRAKEE BEEEHE
emoluments (Note 11) (B3E11) 2,974,443 2,779,056
Write down (reversal of write-down) of WORL (BEE)
inventories, included in cost of sales TFE ' fEABEERA 20,607 (37,997)
11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. B THEZBKES
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS <
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=Ms
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows: EfERNCESmT
2017 2016
—EB—tF T—NF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FTEx FAT
Fees we 1,088 1,322
Other emoluments: Hibf e -
Salaries and other benefits e MEMmER 17,503 14,148
Contributions to retirement RIREFIE SR
benefits scheme 816 707
Performance related incentive payment TERIIARAEE IE 105,170 95,624
Share-based payments AR S 3R - 18,600

124,577 130,401
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Chief Executive’s emoluments

Mr. Chang Wing Yiu is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors had
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Employees’ emoluments

For the year ended 31 December 2017, four (2016: four)
of the highest paid employees are Directors and the Chief
Executive.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the emoluments of
the remaining one (2016: one) individual were as follows:

11.

=S THRESRES

(b)

()

SZ (#8)

THHERMNE
EKBEE TN BARRRITERE
o AR EXWE - BP&
NE G RITRAARIR M2 RS
ZIREN o

THEHSARESRENEE
TE—FRIE-RF+A
=t HUEFERELRERE
S o

EEMS
BE_Z—+tF+-_H=1+—H
IFFE mE(ZE—RF WM
H)RBHFALZHIREER
TTHARE, -

BE-T L t-A=t-
ALEEFE BT -R(ZF—X
- ) AEIHE BT ¢

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

Salaries and other benefits 4 REMEF 3,112 2,566
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme R F|zHEI{H X 145 128
Performance related incentive payment TERIBIEEEEE I8 20,360 18,760
Total emoluments B¢ 4258 23,617 21,454

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid to or receivable by the Directors or
the Group’s five highest paid individuals, including Directors,
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

HE_Z—+FR-ZFT—RF
+ZA=+—RALFE FFR
AEEREHEFAT(BEE
=) E e ek ERE R E
YE AR S| 15 5500 B8 2k N B8 I S A+
2 BRENSEREE 2 i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EE - TBRABREE

AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(d) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (d)

arrangements or contracts

As disclosed in Note 41, the Group entered into sale and
purchase transactions with the subsidiaries of a shareholder
with significant influence on the Group. The price is to be
determined and agreed between the parties from time to time
with reference to the prevailing market price.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wing, Mr. Chang Wing Yiu, Mr. Cheung
Kwong Kwan and Mr. Ho Yin Sang, the executive Directors,
are interested in these transactions to the extent that they
have beneficial interests in these companies.

Save for the aforementioned transaction, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company or the Group was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

ﬁ(%ﬁé)

EERXRS  ZHIAEN
ZEXRER

B EE41 P - AR E B -
HAEBBEEATVENNREL
MBARETESERS - BI8A
EHTR2RERZ TISERT
EEREE -

MITERRESEE - BUKRE
£ REFELERMAMHELER
ZENRTHRE Eatkss - B
RILER S A ER °

B iR BN - MERKERE
MR AR EEHRERAAT
IAREEREF T ZHEMER
X5 BHEREHNTHEREMNE
ANEELFEE R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

12. DIVIDENDS

Dividends declared and paid

2017 Interim dividend of HKB0 cents
(2016: HKBO0 cents) per ordinary share

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

12. K2

2017 2016

—E—LF —T—REF

HK$’000
FET

HK$'000
FETT

BERRIKERS

T FhHRE
R BAR60E L

(=Z— 4 : 303L) 639,872 307,680
2016 Final dividend of HK70 cents ZE-RERARE
(2015: HK30 cents) per ordinary share R AR 70BN
(—Z— 7 : 305(L) 726,880 307,680
2016 Spegcial final dividend of HK30 cents ZENFRRIREARE
(2015: Nil) per ordinary share G mAR30 L
(ZZ—RF &) 311,520 -
1,678,272 615,360

2017
—E—+tF

HK$°000

2ERS

Dividends proposed

Proposed 2017 Final dividend of HK100 cents
(2016: HK70 cents) per ordinary share

FTHET

BER-TLEERERE
R B 007

(ZZ—7"F : 705400) 1,066,452 726,880
Proposed 2016 Special final dividend of BT NFRERIRE
HK30 cents (2017: Nil) per ordinary share 1% B 8% E BRS04l
(==t : ) - 311,520
1,066,452 1,038,400

The final dividend of HK100 cents per ordinary share amounted
to HK$1,066,452,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: final dividend of HK70 cents and special final dividend
of HK30 cents per ordinary share amounted to HK$726,880,000
and HK$311,520,000, respectively in respect of the year ended
31 December 2016) have been proposed by the Directors and are
subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EERERBEE_ZT—tF+_-A
= t-HLEFERERPREFRE
AL 100781l - & %8 A 1,066,452,000
BIT(ZE—XRF: REE_ZT—<F
T+ A=+ —HIEFERPRE RER
RHEIRR B A% @ A% 5 5170780 & 30
B 255 B A726,880,00078 7T K
311,520,000/ 70) @ MEBFARFIRE
RIEERRBFE RS E - HAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ - Z—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the following
data:

Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share =pl

RELTIEEARA S
PR

13. BREF

ARABEAANBIEERER R EERT
BT BIETE

2017 2016

—g—tF T AF

HK$’000
TR

HK$'000
TAT

AESRERNEERNZ

5,593,434 5,026,831

Number of shares

R B

2017

—E—tf

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
arising from share options

BREARNZ BB INE

T8 1,043,040,213  1,028,230,273
EE L EREEHRN

BBTEENE L

TRk e 9,576,220 3,016,559

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of diluted earning per share

BREERN 2 T REINE

8 1,052,616,433  1,031,246,832

RBE-_T—+tF+-A=+—RHIL*F

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2017 did not take into account the effects of share
options of the Company granted on 21 March 2011 and KLHL, as the
exercise prices of the outstanding share options were higher than the
average market prices of the Company’s and KLHL'’s shares during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

B s EESRE SR NI EE B
RAR-_E——F=A-+—BREE
RERBEITM M ARITE @ IERBAE -
REBEE—Z—tF+t-_HA=1t—HILF
EZEBEBBREZITEE  HRAR
AR EEBEERRDOT S FHER

=
= °©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYHE

HK$'000
TAT

FAIR VALUE AEE
At 1 January 2016 R-E—XF—A—H 10,876,251
Exchange adjustments P& A% (789,336)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 31) U BE RS B A7) (FFES1) 2,638,294
Transfer from properties held for development (Note (a)) HEBFEEYE(ME@) 2,622,329
Unrealised gain on fair value changes N EZ SR AREHR RS 21,286
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RNE+-A=+—8 15,368,824
Exchange adjustments P& H T 1,005,427
Transfer from properties held for development (Note (a)) HEERAFEEME @) 723,380
Unrealised gain on fair value changes N EZEMARESIE RS 54,284
At 31 December 2017 N_E—+F+-_A=1+—8H 17,151,915

Notes: BieE

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, certain properties (a) HE-_Z—+tFREK=-F—X F+=A

held for development were reclassified to investment properties upon
changing in use as evidenced by commencement of operating leases with
independent third parties (see Note 23).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recognised
gain on fair value changes of investment properties amounted to
HK$54,284,000 (2016: HK$21,286,000). The fair value of the Group’s
investment properties at 31 December 2017 had been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Ravia Global
Appraisal Advisory Limited (2016: Roma Appraisals Limited), an
independent qualified valuer not connected to the Group. Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited and Roma Appraisals Limited are
members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was
determined based on direct comparison method by reference to the
market observable transactions of similar properties and adjusted to
reflect conditions and locations of subject properties. There has been
no change from the valuation technique used in prior years.

=t—HIEFE BT E =75
KEREMFEZREEE  ATHER
MEEH D BEREME(IFE23)

BE-_ZE—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE
N AEBERREENELTFEEZS
I %8 554,284,000/ 70 ( ZF — /< 4F ¢
21,286,000 L) - NEBE 2 EWME
R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—RH2zA¥E
Tz AR E B R E 2 B A BRI
EMH LR EARNERAR(ZF
—NF o BEREBFGHEERAR) R
FZEETHEZEEIER - InLIRRET
HRAERATRESHETHEERA
AABBIHNEMEEE S - BXMED
PEBLUMEZBREMER HUNEE
HBORE E W SR A R BR AT 5 W 3 80 1%
HRAE - RBAEFEAZEERI
i 3=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14- ?ﬁﬁ%%(z§>

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the board of
Directors has set up a valuation committee, which is headed up by
the persons in charge of financial matters of the Group, to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

The Group engages an independent valuer to perform its valuations.
The valuation committee works closely with the independent valuer
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The persons in charge of financial matters reports the
valuation committee’s findings to the board of Directors every quarter
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and
liabilities.

The Group’s investment properties were classified as Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

RETHENENRTE EFECK
VHEZRES  mARAKENHEER
MALHE URATEAEETEE
(B T N B A BUR

REBRHE — 2B (hERMETHE -
HEZBERBYAEMETAE B
MEREEE O EERT LB AR
B BEMBEBENALTEFTAERS
BEMREZEGENER - UBREEER
BEAFENRSRA -

K-F—tE+-A=+-AR-F
—RE+=A=+—R  AREIRE
MENFREAATFESR -

TR EEREMEZ N TFAEETH
X (CE R AT A ERT i A8UE)
ARIEAFEFELHMN A BERIZE S
ANFEFEDEZAFERELR(F
—ZE=/) o

measurements is observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated

statement of Fair value

financial position hierarchy

e B RSP NHE

REERGZREMZE  FERH

Industrial properties in Level 3
Hong Kong

MEEH TR FE=MR

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HER &

FE@H AR

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLBERET K

B

Significant unobservable
inputs

BANAEER

W ABUR

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from HK$42,389
to HK$42,862 (2016:
HK$41,129 to HK$41,980)
per square metre.
RATSEEILEYER
EEALE DA E A& R E
H1& (MERATBE - MEX
NE)NEFTORKER - N
THFE7HK42,3808 L E
42,8628 (ZF—REF :
41,1298 70 £41,980/%8
7o) e

Sensitivity

HRE

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FFIRERKRIE LTS
BHREMEN A FERT
BARBLEF - RZIA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated

statement of Fair value
financial position hierarchy
R MR R RNFE
REEREGZREMHE  FERH
Commercial properties  Level 3

in the New Territories,

Hong Kong
REBMANEAME F=R
Commercial properties  Level 3

in Hong Kong Island,
Hong Kong

REAEEEBNEAY F=&
ES

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
AR &

FE@H AR

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BEERLEBERET K

B

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLBERET K

S

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

14. REVHE »)

Significant unobservable
inputs

BEARTATER

T ABIE

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from HK$54,692
to HK$55,015 (2016:
HK$54,197 to HK$55,026)
per square metre.
RAMSEEALERYER
ZRALE A K& E A &5 E
& (MERATEE - MEX
NEVRFFIORERE - N
FHFJ7K54,6028 T E
55,0158 T(=F—REF :
54,1978 T % 55,026/
JT) e

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from HK$168,650
to HK$170,071

(2016: HK$161,460 to
HK$163,347) per square
metre.
RAMSEELRMER
ERALE A KR E A &R E
& (MERATEE - MEX
NEVFFIORERE - N
T8F75K168,6508LE
170,07 1T (=T —R%F ¢
161,460/8 £ 163,347
JT) e

Sensitivity

HRE

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FFITRERKIE LTS
BHREMENO A FER
BRELF - RZIA -

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

SFIRERAR LTS
B AMEH AT E
BABLEF  R2ZMA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group

in the consolidated
statement of

financial position

A M BIRR RS

AEEREZRENE

Commercial properties
in Shanghai

S L= R ES

Commercial properties
in Guangzhou

REMNEERYE

Fair value
hierarchy
AF(E

ZRER R

Level 3

FE=R

Level 3

B

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HER &

FE@H AR

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLBEREFIK
B

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BELBERETIIK
B

EEIEBEAERAF

PR

14, BEWHE )

Significant unobservable
inputs

BANAER

W ABUR

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking

into account of location

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB28,000
to RMB36,500 (2016:
RMB28,000 to RMB31,000)
per square metre.
RAMSEEALRYER
Z BALE A K EH A {E R A
& (WERATBE - MEX
NEYVFFTORERE - N
THZFE 75 KAREE28,000
TTEARS6,500T(=F
—7"4F + ARH28,0007T
& AR¥31,0007T) °

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking

into account of location

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB15,800
to RMB27,9583 (2016:
RMB16,500 to RMB22,500)
per square metre.
RATSEEZEALBYER
E AL E DA K E A M B A
HR(ERETEBE - MEX
NEVFFTTRER -
FEFHRAR15,800
TEAR27,953T(=F
—"EF - AR#16,5007T
= AR22,5007T) °

Sensitivity

HRE

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FEIOKEEAR LT
B A EN AT
BAWLI - B2 -

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

IR EHAN LT
BEIRANEN AT
ERBLI - RZIA °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14- ?Qﬁ%%(z§>

Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated

statement of Fair value

financial position hierarchy

e B RSP NFE

REERFEZREME EERT

Commercial properties  Level 3
in Shenzhen

ORI R F=

Commercial Shops in Level 3
Qingyuan

NEEE Ok A F=M

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HER &

FEH AR

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLBEREFIIK
B

Direct comparison
method with price per
square metre

BERLBERETIIK
B

Significant unobservable
inputs

BANAEER

W ABUR

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking

into account of location

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB15,000
to RMB16,500 (2016:
RMB14,800 to RMB14,980)
per square metre.
RAMSEEALRYER
Z BALE A K H A {E R A
H& (MERATBE - MEX
NEYVRFFTRERE - N
THFEHKAREE15,000
TEARK16,500T(=F
—7"4F : AR¥14,8007T
E AR¥14,9807T) °

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB10,778
to RMB10,898 (2016:
RMB9,375 to RMB9,500)
per square metre.
RATSEZALBYMER
ZRALE AR H o E R E
HR(ERETEBE - WEX
INEVNEGTFITRER N
TEFTAKARK10,778
TEARY10,898T(=F
—REF  AR¥O375LE
AR#9,5007T)

Sensitivity

HRE

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FEIOKEAE LT
MBI A EN AT
BAWLI - B2 -

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

BT RERAE LT
BHERENEN R FERT
BRBLEA  RZIA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14.

Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated

REWE )

statement of Fair value Valuation techniques  Significant unobservable
financial position hierarchy and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
iR e IO R A NFE HER & BANAER
AEERFEZREWME EREAR  EEHRASUR 8B ABUR BURE
Commercial properties  Level 3 Direct comparison Price per square metre, A significant increase in
in London method with price per  using market direct the price per square metre
square metre comparable and taking used would result in a
into account of location significant increase in the

and other individual factors ~ fair value measurement of
such as road frontage, size the investment properties,
of property etc., which is and vice versa.
ranged from Great British
Pound (“GBP”) 5,277
to GBP13,754 (2016:
GBP5,016 to GBP9,293)
per square metre.

iNGELGOEIE RS B= BEEREIEEREGFER R RAMSEETLEYE SFFEHRERRE LA

B REZERLABAREMER BBREMENLNTER

Ex%(MREEE W% SABLEA RZTA-
KNNE )G FTRER
NFGFETRE27T7TEHER

13,7548 (—

ERP

5,016 45759,20354%) -

There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. In estimating the fair value of the properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There
has been no change from the valuation technique used in prior years.

Certain investment properties with a carrying value of
HK$1,780,000,000 (2016: HK$1,780,000,000) have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

FA - WERE=RRIEBAKEL

REEBRIED S E NS ELRIBLK
BHOREZMBENEER  BNA
NHERAFE - U ERIIERED
¥ REEMEZQAFER  MEZK
ShRERZRLBINARZ RNBEFE
PRz B SR E -

AEBEBEHETETMAEA
1,780,000,000 8 T2 HEMHE (= F
— 7N 1 1,780,000,00078 7T ) LAKER
HRITHE o



KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

138

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND 15. 1% - BMENRSEE

EQUIPMENT
Properties,
Furniture, plant and
fixtures equipment
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Licenced and  Transportation under
lands Buildings  improvements machinery assets equipment equipment  construction
RE &R %E EYE
XAEELH# BF HOUREE  HERER R&E e ARk  ERRRR
HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn Tn TER TR T#n TEn TR Tn
(Note i)
(i)
CosT HA
At January 2016 RZ5-75-A-8 53,722 3,352,434 955176 24,966,971 2,340,129 1,653,884 151,89 892,564 34,266,776
Exchange adjustments ExAg (282) (88,802) (6,726)  (1361,326) (148,184) (89,048 (7,710) (88701) (1,789,779
Additions RE - 86,972 71,978 238,494 33,389 35,014 11,183 359,381 836,361
Disposals and wrte off &R - (3351) (1,018) (620,608) (38,565) (16,536) (16,083 (16,955) (713,116)
Disposal of a subsiclary Note 32 HEMB L 7](F3432) - - - - - €] - - €]
Reclessfications v - 80,026 4482 235,271 - 48539 379 (368,697) -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-ETZR=1-H 53,440 3,427,279 1,0248% 23458802 2,186,769 1,631,844 139,615 77592 32600233
Exchange adjustments ExAg 204 93468 6,339 1,206,346 151,921 90418 7,753 75,420 1,630,959
Additions HE - 5072 33,301 1,040,064 2,747 302950 14,464 605,285 2,028,883
Tranfer from properties held for -~ BRBBREENZ (H3403)
development (Note 23) - 179,254 - - - - - - 179,254
Disposals and wrte off & RS - (14,493 (67,211) (621,500) (65,056) (24,379 (12,022) (35,510) (730,171)
Reclassfications ENAE - 2412 21,780 362,454 - 54,616 - (461,26) -
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+2A=1-A 53,734 3,712,992 1,029,101 25,545,166 2,301,381 1,055,449 149,810 9152 35,709,158
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT #E R
At January 2016 RZF—~"E-A-R - 708,178 475144 14535267 1,919,396 865,501 102,473 - 18,605,959
Exchange adjustments ER A% - (11,229 (3812) (796,759) (125,007) (48233 (6,207) - 991,337)
Provided for the year TEEEE - 26,548 81,608 1,626,078 92,084 119,074 9639 - 1,055,026
Eiminated on disposals and wrte off R+t 84 i - 330) (896) (508,852) (15,482) (16,494) (11,458) - (553,512)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) ~ HiEMBAT (Mz32) - - - - - 3] - - 4]
Impairment loss recognised in profit MERER ZHEEE
or loss (Note () (GE) - - - 39,000 - - - - 39,000
At 31 December 2016 RZE-ETZR=1-8 - 723,167 550044 14894729 1,870,901 919,843 94,447 - 19,085,181
Exchange adjustments EEE - 13,503 4287 781,827 131,985 50,224 6,131 - 987,957
Provided for the year TEERR - 29,929 57515 1461,116 71,075 126,717 11,449 - 1TET86
Elminated on disposals and write off H&H st Tk & - (9,518) (67,159) (474,808) (48,662) (21,018 (10,163) - (621,324)
At 31 December 2017 O e e - 757,081 556,691 16,662,864 2,025,299 1,075,826 101,864 - 21,179,625
CARRYING VALUES EEE
At 31 December 2017 e e e 53,734 2,955,911 472410 8,882,302 276,082 879,623 47946 91525 14529533
At 31 December 2016 RZE-7EtZA=1-H 53,440 2,704,112 472,848 8,564,073 315,868 612,001 45,168 77592 13545102
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15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND 15. Y% - BERRZRE=
EQUIPM ENT (continued)

The above items of properties, plant and equipment (other than those MREZWE  BWELZEIN - Ly

under construction) are depreciated on a straight-line basis after ¥ BEKEEEB E REFSBER

taking into account of their residual values at the following rates per BUABEMGEER TN EE L XRFHIRT

annum: E:

Freehold lands Nil AEEREL I RE

Buildings* Over the remaining unexpired g5 RN FI&R

terms of leases ranging from KRR FER
twenty to fifty years 20F B50FTE

Leasehold improvements 10-20% L EEE 10-20%

Plant and machinery* 10-20% R Rt as 10-20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment  10-331/3% {/f?ﬁA HENKME 10-33/3%

Transportation equipment* 10-20% B 10-20%

* Including those grouped under licenced assets. * BETARERREEZIAR °

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s freehold lands of HK$53,734,000 fﬁé: F—tHF+-_A=1+—8 " &&

(2016: HK$53,440,000) are situated outside Hong Kong. HA563,734,000/8 7L (= F — /X F :

%mmmm&ﬂ%ﬂ?%imﬁmﬁ
FEIEAN o

Notes: B aE -

i) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recognised an (i) BE_Z-"F+-A=+—8LF
impairment loss amounting to HK$39,000,000 because the estimated E - AEE RS R39,000,0007 7T
future cash flows generated by these assets were less than their carrying RURERR - EZSEEELMER
amounts during the year ended 31 December 2016. No impairment loss REEREINBE-_T—RFTA
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2017. =t -BUEFERENREE - B2

Z—+FF+RA=+—RHIEFE  RE
HERRE R
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15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND 15. Y% - BERRZRE=
EQUIPM ENT (continued)

Notes: (continued) it : (8)

(ii) Details of licenced assets: (il BREGAEERS

Plant and Transportation

Buildings machinery equipment Total
1gF R Kekas EHIRRY a5t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAIT FAT FAT T4
COST )5 %
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XE—HF—H 348,782 1,982,070 9,277 2,340,129
Exchange adjustments & 5 % (22,160) (125,436) (588) (148,184)
Additions RE 890 32,499 - 33,389
Disposals and write off H & R s - (38,565) - (38,565)
At 31 December 2016 MoT—RE
+=-—A=+—8 327,512 1,850,568 8,689 2,186,769
Exchange adjustments V& H 3% 22,090 129,218 613 151,921
Additions NE 4,617 22,175 955 27,747
Disposals and write off & s (28,158) (36,054) (844) (65,056)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+t45F
+=-—A=+—H 326,061 1,965,907 9,413 2,301,381

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 7 8 R Bi{&

At 1 January 2016 RZZE—X"FE—HA—H 148,806 1,761,313 9,277 1,919,396
Exchange adjustments Rk (9,699) (114,810) (588) (125,097)
Provided for the year TN S 5,929 86,155 - 92,084
Eliminated on disposals and write off 65 B 5§84 M fifl §4 - (15,482) - (15,482)
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF

+—-HA=+—H 145,036 1,717,176 8,689 1,870,901
Exchange adjustments N A% 9,303 122,100 582 131,985
Provided for the year NEERAE 3,638 67,379 58 71,075
Eliminated on disposals and write off & 85 5 $5 M fifl §5 (27,028) (20,824) (810) (48,662)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+tF

+=-A=+—H 130,949 1,885,831 8,519 2,025,299
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F

+—-A=+—H 195,112 80,076 894 276,082
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF

+=-A=+—AH 182,476 133,392 - 315,868
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15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND
EQUIPM ENT (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

Details of licenced assets: (continued)

On 3 August 2011, 30 August 2013 and 28 August 2015, a subsidiary of
Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited (‘KBCF” or the “Licensor”) (KBCF is
a listed subsidiary of the Company), entered into a licence agreement and
a letter of extension and amendments with Harvest Resource Management
Limited (the “Licencee”), a third party, to licence KBCF’s copper foil
manufacturing facilities located at Fogang and Lianzhou to the Licencee
for the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2017. On 30 August
2017, the Licensor entered into a letter of extension and amendments with
Licencee and extended the licence period for a further period of two years
to 31 August 2019. The details of the licence arrangement which remained
unchanged, are as follows:

(@) to use the leasehold properties, comprising factory buildings in
Fogang and Lianzhou;

(b) to use, consume and dispose of the inventories which shall
include consumables and stocks in trade; and

(©) to use the machinery, together with all other equipment and
facilities as from time to time located at the properties in Fogang
and Lianzhou.

The licenced properties, plant and equipment tabulated above and
the licenced inventories in Note 17 were licenced for licence income of
HK$10,000,000 per month payable in advance on the first day of each and
every calendar month, as a measure by KBCF to generate income from
the manufacturing facilities, pending the resolution of the interested party
transactions issue, relating to the manufacturing and trading of copper foil,
with the non-controlling shareholder of KBCF (Note 36(b)) and the approval
of the interested party transactions mandated by the shareholders and/or
when KBCF clinched new third parties customers for the sales of copper
foil. Accordingly, the licenced properties, plant and equipment have been
reclassified as licenced assets under properties, plant and equipment.

EEIEBEAERAF

PR

15. Y% - BMERRE

B ()

(i)

EREEREERS - (B

R-ZZ—FN\AZH  ZZ—=ZFN
A=+ArR=—Z—RFNA=+N\B "
SEIREEEARAR ([EEME IR
[EREADGEENEAAER M LW
M AR M — RN E QB R ERE
BRAT(E=D) ([EEBEA DT E
TEE AR RIS — D IEE RIBET K
- ARBER =T ——FNA—H
E_T—+FENA=Z+—BILHBE &
TERERAE A\ AR B SRR P R ) Jid
M HRERIERE - R=FT—+F/\A
=+H - BREAREREATT L —HITE
BARASET R - IS RERTERMER
ZE-NFNA=+—H - BEEAH
FEBEFTENOT

(@ EREOME  BELRE
i S s M 2 B

(o) ®H - FEARNERE &
EHRMAESFE Rk

© RS - ERTE LR
) RE N 22 P A Eofth 3%
1 B R e

ERIIREEERYE  BEREER
M7 TR R R R E A
WA &5 A10,000,000/87T © BREE
FRABEEEAGATEN  (EREEN
SEREUER A SR AR - LR
R E I I R B TR R E
BERENAMNZEERERS RS EE (N
36(b)) * AR AR FIZERAE S 2
SRR/ IR BINESENE=E
PHHEIRE - B - RIEERYE - &
BEREESHHEANME  BE &L
BTIEEFREE -
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FA{JHEFIE
Movements of prepaid lease payments are as follows: TENHEERBEZ EHIAT
HK$'000
T
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—HA—H 937,525
Exchange adjustments T W % (47,014)
Additions NE 27,184
Charge for the year RNEEZ W (21,218)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XFt+-_A=+—H 896,477
Exchange adjustments [ o g Ex 44,686
Additions NE 38,533
Charge for the year REEZH (24,304)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+_A=+—H 955,392
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BBESTTUOT -
Current assets MEVEE 24,363 21,809
Non-current assets IERBEE 931,029 874,668
955,392 896,477
The lease term over which the prepaid lease payments are amortised TR ERIBRN T35 £50F ~NEM

ranged from 35 years to 50 years. HAHESY o
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17.

18.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS/ 17. HtERBEE
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS HittREEE

This represents inventories licenced to the Licencee (see Note 15). I TR EREA (R 15)FEAN
Under the licencing agreement, the Licencee may use, consume and FE - BEREGSHDZE  BEEAR]
dispose of the licenced inventories which include consumables and FH - AL EREFERTFE  EF
stocks in trade. However, the Licencee is required to replace and BIESEMREBEITE - A - REE
return the quantities of the licenced inventories used, consumed or E AR RE  ERIEABRIREASR
disposed of during the licence period to the Licensor at the end of the ENMRENREERHEDSER - £/
licence period. RHENREFRTEHE -

The licenced inventories have been reclassified from other current REFECHHEMRHEERETN DB
assets to other non-current assets because the license period was FHMIERBEE - BREHERMT
extended for a further period of two years to 31 August 2019. EZT-NFNA=+—H-

The licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed during the RIEEFEREFER R B E 2 KE
licence period are secured by cash and bills receivables of a related FHREFEREREA —ZAEATHIR
party of the Licencee, with a total receivable value of not less than the & MEWEEERS  BREBT DR
value of the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of as at WEMRGSEREACFER  EAHEE
the end of the reporting period. IEREFERATEZEE -

GOODWILL 18. BE

HK$’000
THAT

CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and RZZT—RF—H—AH"
31 December 2017 —E-REtTZA=t—HBRK
—E—+F+-A=1+—H 2,288,149

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill arising from BEEWERBATFMELA R 7 BE
acquisition of subsidiaries are disclosed as follows: RIS ENT -
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been MREANEmMS  BEC SR TEEE
allocated to groups of CGU of laminates, PCBs and chemicals RAER - ENRIARIRIR kAL TE RRER
business segments. At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the carrying DEfZ IR ELBEMNAR - N T —+
amounts of goodwill allocated to the CGUs of laminates, PCBs and ER-_FE—NRE+-_A=1t—BHEF
chemicals business segments were approximately HK$390,781,000, BIER - BRI AL TERER
HK$1,717,519,000 and HK$179,849,000, respectively. SE RS EA BN Y HEERES R

49 /3890,781,000/% 7T ~ 1,717,519,000
BTN 179,849,000/8 7T ©



KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

18.

GOO DWI LL (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the laminates’, PCBs’ and chemicals’
CGUs have been determined based on a value in use calculation.
Goodwill is expected to generate cash flows for the next 50 years.
Cash flow projections were extrapolated using zero growth rate based
on a five-year period financial budgets approved by the Directors.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations for the CGUs of
laminates, PCBs and chemicals business segments are as follows:

18.

[k

ERmER - ERIRIER R C TER 2R
SEAEMZ RO SRERE B EER
HAETE - BHREBNRKS0FE
EHRERE - A RERENERES
HAENTFRMBREERTEREMG
o

&)

ERmER - ERIARIEIR RE TERER

DEREELEN 2 ERERFEEZ
ES 2CE S UNNE

Laminates PCBs Chemicals
BRER VRl 4R 58 R tIEM
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Sg-£F T A% SRt "I AF C¥—{F T A%
Discount rate HTIR &R 12% 12% 11% 11% 12% 12%
Growth rate (for year 1 to 5) &R X (1ZE5%) 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4%
The key assumptions are determined based on the unit’s past FTERKXNEZEMBERRNERE

performance and management’s expectations for the market
development and the growth rate used to extrapolate cash flow
projections in the first five-year period do not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the relevant industries and no growth rate is
used beyond the five-year period.

Since the recoverable amounts of the CGUs were higher than its
carrying amounts, no impairment loss was recognised.

Management believes that any reasonably possible changes in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of goodwill to exceed their aggregate recoverable amount.

HmnERMERBEREERF G
quiﬁﬁ/mEE’Ji%E}iﬁﬂ?‘im B iEE
HBETEFSRAERE  MEBTF
Hig g Rk .

HAREELBMZ TRESHEENE

FRM(E Wlﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁ°

EEEHEE  ZSBROATWNEEE
EEBETSFRHE LRMEROE
Al Ol & FE -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEZE QR 2R
2017 2016
—E—tfF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FAT
Cost of investments in associates unlisted AR EIE E B E AT
in the PRC ZIERAR 318,733 2,014,926
Share of post-acquisition profits and FEAE B 1R R K
other comprehensive income (expense), Hipzmkss(FAx)
net of dividends received (3B EBUWAR ) 185,357 (55,052)
504,090 1,959,874

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interests in the
following associates:

Place of Equity interest
establishment held by
Name of associate and operation the Group
RIK
UG EXin AEBfiEIRE
2017 2016
m BEE
CNOOC Kingboard Chemical Limited* PRC 40% 40%
RERERE L IBRARY 3
At ER (RY) ERARN PRC Note 49%
3 s
# These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Sino-Foreign

Equity Joint Ventures.

R_E—tFER_T—X"F+-A
=+—8  NEBES TS QR

2

BX

Proportion
of voting
rights held
by the Group
AEERE
RER-LH

2017

Principal activities

TEFH

2016

L BN -

40% 40%  Manufacture and distribution of
methanol

RS HRE

Note 49%  Property developments and

Bt business management
MEBREEHER

# SRR DUARIIEERBEERAE
FEIRK ©
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (coninueq) 19. REFE QT 2B )

The investment in CNOOC Kingboard Chemical Limited is solely RRERREECITEAERARNKEE

for share of results and no other strategic purpose is involved. AOEEEMEL  WES K EMRE

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these BHE - RZEEEBEHREK - BHEAA

consolidated financial statements. RAERGTHEFIR o

Note:  On 18 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Company has entered iz : R-ZE—+FE+-A+N\B  XQAFZ
into a share purchase agreement for the disposal of A& tEze —fEM B AR HER B XEROR
& (FYI) BR A7 with an independent third party. The Directors are of YNABRATEB S =Ty — AR
the opinion that the held-for-sale criteria as set out in HKFRS 5 “Non-current e - EERBEEKRBEE B
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are met and therefore, FEERMERESSFE [ FEIERBEER
the relevant interest in the associate was classified as held for sale as at 31 B IEEBE INFE GG - Bt - R
December 2017. ERRMBAEEN T —tF+ =8

=t+—BA2EREFE -

The summarised financial information below represents amounts

shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance OB ERE ZEE L R RIRE BN
with HKFRSs. BRMEARENIEHRERZ DR -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
The Group’s share of profits for the year IREBARFE RS 103,267 9,152
The Group’s share of other comprehensive REBARFEEREEAM
income (expense) for the year 2ERE(FAX) 141,108 (135,317)
The Group’s share of total comprehensive AEBARNFEERGEE
income (expense) for the year Was () 4858 244,375 (126,165)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBERZFHERAZ
interests in these associates HERRHEEE 504,090 1,959,874
Dividend received from an associate N B UEE A R R

during the year 3,966 -
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. A[HHERE

2016
ZERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
?;‘Efﬁ :F/B/
Available-for-sale investments comprise: JftHERERRE
Listed equity investments, at fair value: ITHRARE - BATE

- equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~REB LT RAES 1,548,780 4,201,919

- equity securities listed in Singapore —E"%ﬁbﬂf&tﬁTZHxZK‘ % 2,050 993

~ equity securities listed in Taiwan RAE T2 RAES - 4,325

1,550,830 4,207,237
Listed bond securities at fair value: TMESES  BLTE:
- listed on the Stock Exchange and issued by listed issuers ~ — & Fig/T AR
in Hong Kong with a fixed coupon interests ranging from B \Pﬁtm EBFENT6.00EE
6.00% t0 9.00% (2016: 8.625% to 11.25%) per annum 9 OOE( T—F 86258
and maturity date from 21 May 2020 to 11 January 2022 211258 ZEFES » TR
(2016: 19 January 2017 to 5 February 2020) “ECEFRAC- EI i
R CE-AT-R(ZERE:
S s RN =k
“E-ZTE-ARRA)IE 711,278 296,795
- listed on SGX and issued by listed issuers in Hong Kong with ~ — &8 - i%/7 ABTIER
afixed coupon interests ranging from 4.75% to 8.25% B ﬂ*ﬁ’ EENT4.75E
(2016: 4.75% to 9%) per annum and maturity dates from F820E(ZF—NF  4T5E
25 Aprl 2019 to 29 March 2024 (2016: 10 January 2019 to igr JZEERE WK
28 September 2023) T-NERAZTHAZR
_7_E¢ AZTNA(ZE—RE:
“E-NE-ATRZE
ZEZEFAAZTR)EE 3,268,789 1,529,615
- listed on DAX and issued by a listed issuer in Hong Kong —FB FET ABTIRNES T
with a fixed coupon interest of 8.375% (2016: 6.375%) per L+ BHEE6.375E
annum and maturity date on 17 September 2024 (ZZ2—"F : 6375 * TR
(2016: 17 January 2024 and 30 March 2025) ZEIMEAATER(ZERE
ZEZRE-ATEER
—ZCRESA=TR)IES 92,927 386,327
— listed on SIX and issued by a listed issuer in Switzerland and —ﬁﬁ&%ltﬁﬁ"ﬁ)@é‘ﬂiﬁﬂ%ti
United States of America with a fixed coupon interest of S LM AEEET. 125/
7.125% (2016: 7.125%) per annum and no maturity date (Z2—"F :7125E) - WEIIH E! 114,636 109,168
— Listed on CSX and issued by listed issues in Hong Kong with  — & L8 T AR TR HSHER S
afixed coupon interest 3.875% per annum with maturity FEm - BAFE3875E « T
date on 20 November 2018 —E—-\E+—A-+HEH 778,986 -
4,966,616 2,321,905
Unlisted equity investments, at cost: FLTRARE - BRA -

- private equity investment in Hong Kong (Note) ~EBBZAERARE (i) 8,124 8,124
Total At 6,525,570 6,537,266
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREREMANA

— Current assets - REEE 778,986 -

—Non-current asset —ERBHEE 5,746,584 6,537,266

6,525,570 6,537,266
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. JHEHERE®

(continued)
At the end of reporting period, all listed available-for-sale investments RREHMERER - e HEEE L
are stated at fair value. Fair values of the listed bond securities are MIREHZ RN FEIER - BRRZEE
determined by reference to the valuation provided by the pricing 5 WS FmESEEZATET
vendors based on their own valuation techniques because of lack of R2EFTESHUARSES A HERME
active market. The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less HEHEEET - BERIELTRAIEEH
impairment as their fair values cannot be measured reliably. NEETERISEFTE - SR A BRI
B35
During the year ended 31 December 2017, impairment loss on BE-ZEZ—+E+-_A=+—H1
available-for-sale investments amounting to HK$34,152,000 (2016: FE - OAHEERENEHEERE
HK$27,764,000) was recognised in profit or loss as a result of 534,152,000t ( —Z & — N F ¢
significant and prolonged decline in the fair values of certain of the 27,764,000 7T) - EREm AR
Group’s listed equity investments below their cost. TERAEENE T EmRAKRENA
TEERRFEMR D EEREKR
Note:  The amount represents the 19.67% (2016: 19.67%) interest in a private MaE: ZeHEE—BREBELESFMK
entity incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is engaged in the SN ZAEEREZ10.67% (=T —7"F
property development business in Hong Kong. The Group together with 190.67%) K - ZALEEEBREBNE
other investment funds as investors currently holds a number of properties MEBRER - ASEHAEMTERES
in a building situated in Hong Kong which has been fixed for redevelopment ERIREE  BREE —HRUNEEZ
(the “Redevelopment Project”). The Group’s participation in the BFELZEMEELN  ZKECTR#T
Redevelopment Project is 4.7% (2016: 4.7%) and the amount committed FE([EEFE]) - AEBERILER
by the Group amounts to United States dollar (“US$”) 21,000,000 HE 28R E4T7%(ZFE—RE -
(equivalent to approximately HK$163,800,000). 4.7%) » A5 BESE S 5 221,000,000
27t (1574 49163,800,000/47T) °
At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the investment is measured RZE—+tF+_A=+—HEZ=Z
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates —RNF+ZA=1+—H BRAFEZ
is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot BIEGERERA  BUFEERAKRLE
be measured reliably. Al SEAtEEATE - MU E R AR
MEFE -
Included in available-for-sale investments are the following amounts A HEREBE TN ER T 2HAE
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the ZWREEEIASNEEETHE Z FR

group entities to which they are held:

2017 2016
—g—tF T AF

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

us$ ET 4,966,616 2,255,143
HK$ BT 1,556,904 4,276,805
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21. DEFERRED TAXATION 21.

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting periods:

(Write-down)

Accelerated reversal of
tax Tax  write down of
depreciation losses inventories

& ()
NERERE  HBER REH
HKS'000  HK$000 HK$000

IEFERIH

THRARREMERATREHFEANE
Wiy T EEERIEA R AR RY
2 S8

Fair value Undistributed
change of Revaluation profits of
investment of an
properties  properties  associate Total
RENE -BHEAT
AVERY  MEER ZRAEER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn Tin Tin

Tin TiErn TEn Tirn

At1 January 2016 R=E—E-F—H 33,836 (12,622) (15,686) 702,161 85,607 8,702 802,098
Exchange adjustments AT (2,146) - - (44,531) - {1m 46,854)
(Credt) charge to consolidated statement (3T A) IR EA%RE

of proft or loss for the year (Note 9) TRERR () (2,502) - 11482 - (3,057) (4,526) 1397
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AF+ZA=1-A 29,188 (12.522) 4,204) 657,630 82,550 3,999 756,641
Bxchange adjustments EHRE 1459 - - 32,882 - 200 34,541
Credit to consolidated statement SAREE

of profit or loss for the year (Note 9) GABRE(HH) (1,434) - (5,082) - (3,067) (1,959) (11,682

At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+-A=+-H 29213 (12,622) (9,286)

690,512 79493 2,240 779,650
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21 . DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

21. ELEFIE )

VATS Ak B 765 BR SR T A B 2 S AR TR 45

reporting purposes:

EROAT -

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RfF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHxT FAT

Deferred tax assets RIEF IR & B 3,768 3,347
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEBE (783,418) (759,988)
(779,650) (756,641)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$1,529,366,000 (2016: HK$1,322,194,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised due to the unpredictability of the future profit
streams. All tax losses will be expired gradually within five years to
year 2023 (2016: 2022).

REEHEERER - AEEA#
BIARGEFNZRKBDAREEE S
#71,529,366,000/8 7T ( —Z & — N F :
1,322,194,00078 7T ) © FFA K 2 Fl 7
TRIFER - iR BRI (R R IBE
B 2EMBEEEERALFRESE
HEE-T_=F(ZF—R"F: =%

T

A
22. INVENTORIES 22. 17K
2017 2016
—E—tF —TE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Raw materials e 1,068,981 948,628
Work in progress EEE 651,530 511,716
Finished goods UK 395,046 318,721
2,115,557 1,779,065

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a write-down of
inventories HK$20,607,000 (2016: a reversal of write down of
inventories HK$37,997,000) has been recognised and included in
cost of sales in the current year.

HE-_Z—+tHF+_A=+—HItF
fE - WU 1F & 20,607,000 T ( ==
— N4 ¢ B EUR 1F B 87,997,000 7
TL) B MR M ARFE MBS -
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23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT  23. 5% REY%

Movements of properties held for development are as follows: FEEMESSHLOT

HK$’000

FH&xT

At 1 January 2016 R-E—XF—A—H 19,228,370
Exchange adjustments P& A% (922,067)
Additions NE 3,478,031
Transfer to investment properties (Note 14) HER T EYE (ME14) (2,622,329
Transfer to cost of sales R EEERAR (3,351,778)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RF+-A=+—8H 15,810,227
Exchange adjustments P& H 840,016
Additions NE 4,022,496
Transfer to investment properties (Note 14) EREREYE(E14) (723,380)
Transfer to properties, plant and equipment (Note 15) EEREYE - BE &G (EE15) (179,254)
Transfer to cost of sales EREHERA (4,132,281)
At 31 December 2017 N_E—+F+-_A=+—8H 15,637,824

During the year ended 31 December 2017, properties held
for development with carrying amount of approximately
HK$4,132,281,000 (2016: HK$3,351,778,000) were completed and
sold to third parties. The remaining balance as at 31 December 2017
was related to properties that were still under development.

Included in the amount are properties held for development with
carrying amount of approximately HK$12,142,107,000 (2016:
HK$14,282,912,000) are expected to be realised after one year from
the end of the reporting period.

One of the Group’s properties project with a carrying amount of
HK$3,403,615,000 (2016: HK$2,993,794,000) has been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

In the opinion of the Directors, the properties held for development
were classified as current assets as the properties were held for
sale purpose after the completion of construction under the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HLLF
& BRE{E#4,132,281,0008 T (=&
— /N4 1 3,351,778,00008 7T ) 2 5% E
MEERLETE=H - R-T—+F
+Z A=+ — A% THERETEERY
X556 -

S BEREELA12,142,107,00078
TT(ZZT—N4F : 14,282,912,000 7T )
FEEDE  BHAURREHEERR
AFT—FBEE -

NREBEWRED -—BEEEAS
3,403,615,000 8 T2 MEER (= Z
— 7N 1 2,993,794,0008 7T ) ¢ LAER
RITRLE o

EER/HTERMEDBR/RDEE -
THRREAKENEEZLERY 548
ZEMENBNRN TR TR HE -



KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

,] 52 ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RENBHRMTE
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24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 24, HittemEE

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans

@ EBEZRHEMEWERARE
NRERERER

Trade receivables B 5 R 6,276,643 5,237,066
Advance to suppliers TEfHE FER IR 492,792 447,831
Entrusted loans (Note i) ZHRER (M) 845,616 942,536
Prepayment and deposits FENRERES 728,573 662,346
Value added tax (“VAT”) recoverables AR [EIS(ER ([EEF ) 247,852 184,569
LAT on pre-sale residential properties TEEFEYE 2 THIBER
units (Note ii) (B 96,763 145,260
Deposits for acquisition of land use rights U 8% + b (& A B ERE
for development of properties held for i E RS Em
sale (Note i) AT YRR (P i) 3,590,431 -
Other receivables HAb U AR 273,219 210,111
12,551,889 7,829,719
Less: Non-current portion of entrusted B ERERSEREE D
loans (Note i) (B3I (788,860) (882,944)
11,763,029 6,946,775
Notes: Mz -
0] The entrusted loans of HK$845,616,000 (2016: HK$942,536,000) 0 FEBRFEOR(ZE—RE
are due from certain purchasers of properties developed by the PR BmERIT(THENRRE
Group in the PRC through four (2016: four) commercial banks in ADEREFAEEBMER
the PRC (the “Lending Agents”). The entrusted loans carry interest Y2 8 5845,616,0007%8 7T

at variable rates ranging from 3.92% to 5.39% (2016: 3.92% to
5.39%) per annum payable on monthly basis and the principal
will be payable on or before 2034 (2016: 2034). The purchasers
of the Group’s properties has pledged to the Lending Agents the
respective properties purchased. These properties are located in
Kunshan, PRC.

As at 31 December 2017, entrusted loans amounting to
HK$788,860,000 (2016: HK$882,944,000) are in respect of
repayments due after 12 months from the end of the reporting
period and are classified as non-current assets.

The amount represents the provisional LAT prepaid to the
PRC tax authority based on the latest completion status of
the development projects. The final assessment will be carried
out upon sales of properties at the completion of development
projects.

The amount represents deposits paid for acquisition of land use
right in the PRC for the purpose of development of properties held
for sale. The acquisition was completed in January 2018.

(== — /"% : 942,536,000
BLI)ZERER - ZRE
K2 IFEF BIRN T3.92F
E539E(ZE—XF: NT
3.92[E E5.39/F ) 7 F FI K&+
B BARABR  A&AR
ZEZNFE(ZE—RF: =
T 0F ) SRARIHA - A&
EMEERCEMSBEEY
EEWMTHREREA - %5
MEMRREEIL -

RZZE—tF+=ZA=+—
B RAREHBEARE
+ERARIBMERIEZ R
& 5£788,860,0008 7T (=&
— 74+ 882,944,000/ 7T )
NERIERBEE -

(i ZELRERBERBABNR
¥ T 17 B A S M
BN 2 B/ LB ER - &
RARBHERRBABRT
HEMRRITHETT -

(ii) Z < FE e LU B R B b (s
AENBEERHEERE
HMEmMZARNRS - WE
BER-ZZ—N\FE—AZK °
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24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)

The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days (2016: 120
days), depending on the products sold to its trade customers.
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts based on invoice date at the end
of the reporting period:

RELTIEEARA S
PR

HitSmEE )

(GY)

B 5 & H B R AR K &ﬁ
NRERZERER(#
$¢l%%ﬁ%%ﬁ2ﬁ%%%
BRA/1208(ZF—7RF 120
B) BYFHENERTE
RBEHEERE R - EHEK

R (B RIRAR ) 2 BRI E
E"?é AT

2017 2016

—EB—tF —TRE

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FET

0-90 days 0£90H 4,873,171 4,069,593
91-120 days 91%2120H 786,520 733,053
121-150 days 1212150H 399,032 260,167
151-180 days 151%2180H 123,979 81,751
Over 180 days 180H A 1 93,941 92,502
6,276,643 5,237,066

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit grading system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the Directors have delegated
the management to be responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals for any customers. Limits
and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed every year.
About 75% (2016: 74%) of the trade receivables, that are
neither past due nor impaired, have the best credit scoring
attributable under the credit grading system used by the
Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$845,731,000 (2016:
HK$818,517,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
as the Group considers that these debtors are financially
stable. The Directors are of the opinion that these amounts
are recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. The average age of these receivables is 129
days (2016: 129 days).

EEMNEEFR - NEER
HERTAHEeMREERP
ZIEREx  EFEEaEEE
BEARENEFPEEEERER
EEE - RPZRERTS T
FEHY - N75% (=T —RF ¢
74%) 2 B S KRR EE H
WA WEASETRAZER
SHRHIE 2 &mEATD

AEEZESEBERBER
FHREWKER  @EmER
845,731,000/ 7T( = ::—/—\i :
818,517,000/ L) + R & A
Ei&ﬁﬁﬁ AEEVERZS

FOEEHREBIERE - REA
ZKE@W R EEHAMBE
2 - BERE  ZEFREDARA
LA [E] o R E B T AR A
FHHEEAHEIRSR o X SRR
ZFHRE B1298 (Z T — X
& :1208) °



154

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

(@

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

and entrusted loans (continued)
Aging analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired are as follows:

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

24,

HttSmEE

(GY)

ESRAEMEVIRRRE
NRERZRER )
B RIREY B 5 KRR
BRECHITINT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Overdue: AER -
0-30 days 0&30H 255,604 240,502
31-60 days 31£260H 331,983 326,584
61-90 days 61£290H 174,618 169,593
Over 90 days 90H M 83,526 81,838
845,731 818,517

The Group has fully provided for all receivables that are
overdue over 240 days because historical experience is
such that these receivables are generally not recoverable.
Allowance on trade receivables which have been overdue
for less than 240 days are made based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts by reference to past default experience
and objective evidence of impairment as determined by the
management.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group monitors any changes in the credit quality of the trade
receivables since the credit was granted and up to the end of
the reporting period. The Directors considered that the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

BELRBRAN2408A L2
FEM R R — AR EE D - AR
SEUZSREEREBIEL R
1 - BRiR D R2400 2 B 5 R
R - H2ERERERE
BLEREETNTEREERR
BRBAAFT AR E S EEEL ©

HEETE R HRWART 2 AT E 1
B BRAREEEEEREH
RERRBL  AREERESHE
WIER(ERER 2 EEE - &
ERR AEEAUEBEAEDE
R - BRRZERZHTRE
P -
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24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

EEIEBEAERAF

PR

24, HihE@EE

(@ Trade and other receivables and prepayments (@ EBEZkRHEMEKERERKRTE
and entrusted loans (continued) FRERERER®)
The following is @ movement in the allowance for doubtful RIFARERE 2 FEIT
debts:

2017 2016

—E—F —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Tt T

Balance at beginning of the year FH LR 770,209 689,923

Amount written off as uncollectible WSS AT Uk [B] 2 k08 (2,823) (6,396)
Impairment loss recognised HE 5 MR R

on trade receivables BB E R 166,793 86,682

Balance at end of the year FREEER 934,179 770,209

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$934,179,000 (2016: HK$770,209,000) which have either
been placed under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

REREERE@ARNERE
2EBRERIREN  BEHB
934,179,000 7L( =T — "4 :
770,209,000/ L) * % FE A
ABEENEENHREET 2K
I o ARERZEEBTERE
RS -

B 5 MEMREIRTEIE TFIIA
SEERAMEER UG
FHEZ KA -

Us$ ETT
HK$ BT
Euro dollar (“Euro”) BT

2017 2016
—e—t%  —T%E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH7 FHT
858,814 632,783
867,930 860,004
49,246 45,052
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24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (ontinueq)

(b)

(c)

Bills receivables
Bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2016:
90 days) at the end of the reporting period.

Included in bills receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the group entities to which they relate:

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

24, EMiEMEE »

(b)

EWEE

A B R IR BR e 19 B R S AP
M REHOA(ZF—RF ¢
Q0H)Z A °

JEWRBBIE T HILASEE 18
B EBAINEETE R
g

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE AT

Us$ ET 158,590 290,956
Bank balances and cash (c) RITHEBRES

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. At 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank
balances and deposits carry interest at the prevailing market
interest rates which range from 0.01% to 1.5% (2016: 0.01%
to 3.0%) per annum. Fixed deposits carried fixed-rate interest
range from 2.05% to 3.80% per annum for both years.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances and
cash that were not freely convertible or were subject to
exchange controls in the PRC, amounting to approximately
HK$2,902,897,000 (2016: HK$4,095,907,000).

Included in the bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

uss eV
HK$ BT
Euro BT
GBP gk

RITHEB RS PEASERE
2HReRFEREA A=A A
TZRERITFEN - RZ2—+t
F+-A=+—H AEEHNIR
TG RIFFIZRITT S FF
ENFO0IERI5E(=ZZT—X
F: NTF0.01EE3.0E):TE -
MENTEHERZEBEFENT
2.05E£3.80E -

R-_ZT—+F+=-A=+—8"
AEETIBHEBNATH
SNEE BIFTIRR 2 $RITAR IR
£ 49/452,902,897,0008 (- &
—754F 1 4,095,907,000/87T) °

RITHEBRIIR S BIE TIIAKE
EREER 2 ThRE B LAINE R
B2 3

2017 2016
—E2—t5F —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHET T
1,110,694 926,368
3,125,318 1,503,308
10,330 23,995
598,676 114,039




RELTIEEARA S
PR

157

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 25. DEAFELE

SALE

On 18 December 2017, Shimao Property Holdings (BVI) Limited and
the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement in respect
of the disposal of the entire interest of Win Real Group Limited and
its subsidiary and the indirect equity interest of 49% in a company
established in the PRC (the “Target Group”).

The assets attributable to the Target Group have been classified
as a disposal group held for sale and are presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position (see below). The
Target Group is included in the Group’s others segment for segment
reporting purposes (see note 6). The net proceeds of disposal
are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant
assets and liabilities and accordingly, no impairment loss has been
recognised. The disposal was completed in January 2018.

The major classes of assets of the Target Group classified as held for
sale are as follows:

Interest in an associate (Note 19) NE A B Z (B EE19)

RZZ—+%F+=A+/\H ' Shimao
Property Holdings (BVI) Limited#2Ax£
BT T—HEEEWRH  NAEELE
Win Real Group Limited & £ Ff} /& A &4
2 AR DA K R R — R R B AR L
B AR BI49%EEE IR AE ([ B iRERE ) -

BEREERGEECHBATEHER
& U RIREEMBRRKREN (R
TX) - BiREEAD M@ E B A
REBENEMD BB (RHES) - HEM
SREFREASEBAEEENRAR
MEREDFHE - R BHERRERE -
HEER T N\F-A%EK °

EREBE S EAGEEEMNTEEEMN
AT

2017
—E—tF

HK$’000
FET

1,696,193
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=
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 26. ES5REMEBNERRK
BILLS PAYABLES N RE
2017 2016
—E—+F —ET—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade payables B PR 2,698,445 2,582,459
Accrued expenses TEIREH 904,224 727,666
Payables for acquisition of properties, BEYME  BEMEEN
plant and equipment R FE 535,548 455,961
Receipt in advance (Note i) TR IR (3D 3,814,220 744,315
Other tax payables HihENFRIE 900,893 831,054
VAT payables FERHIEERS 301,092 334,548
Other payables (Note ii) L e RR R (BT i) 414,667 1,133,621
9,569,089 6,809,624
Bills payables (Note iii) JEAS R4 (B =) 691,834 170,224
10,260,923 6,079,848
Notes: MEE
(i) Included in receipt in advance as at 31 December 2017 was deposit [0) RZE—tF+=A=1+—HWHBERK
received from an independent third party for the disposal of Target Group BEEREBYF=FHEEREZER
of approximately HK$2,630,126,000 (2016: Nil). 492,630,126,0008 L E Wz S (==
—NEE ).
(ii) Included in other payables as at 31 December 2017 was the advance from (i) R-ZZE—tF+-_A=+—HmMHE
an associate of approximately HK$34 1,229,000 (2016: HK$1,062,564,000) MENZKEBSERKREBES ATN
which is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. 341,229,000/ TR R R (=T — 7RG -

1,062,564,000/87T) * &S8R ATET
B IR MANEREE o

(i) Included in bills payables as at 31 December 2017 was payables for (i) R-ZZE—tF+-_A=+—HWE
acquisition of properties, plant and equipment of HK$163,461,000 (2016: NEZEEBERKREDE  BELK
HK$28,049,000). 1% 163,461,000 7T ( =T — X F -

28,049,000/ 7T ) K FEA 578 ©
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26.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of the trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

RELTIEEARA S
PR

26. B

@ N %%(%’)

ez

REMENRRK

RERRAERRLE - ERERBHN
BHRNERRZRE DT

2016

—E—tF —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET T

0-90 days 0%90H 2,073,037 1,995,590
91-180 days 91£180H 432,894 375,710
Over 180 days 180H A E 192,514 211,159
2,698,445 2,582,459

Bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2016: 90 days)
at the end of the reporting period.

Included in trade and other payables and bills payables are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate:

Uss$ =TT
HK$ BIT
Euro BT

AEE AN ER R BTRE BEERE
Q0 (ZZF—/"F : 0H) Z A °

B NEMENRRLENRERET

FIASRE B R 2 18RETh

AHEZ SR

2017
—E—+tF

HK$°000
FTHET

856,496
328,700
61

BEEBIAINEH

2016
—E—RF
HK$’000
FBT

641,970
300,909
1,676

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days (2016: 90
days). The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit time frame.

REMANTFHEERRWOA(ZF
—RF :90R) - ARERTH AR
BERRERAEERNESINEERRA

3
B o
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27. BANK BORROWINGS

27.

TREE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZZ—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT
Bank loans RITER 18,573,701 16,368,569
Trust receipt loans EFUIRER 514,641 495,583
19,088,342 16,864,152
Secured BER 1,710,866 1,737,873
Unsecured EER 17,377,476 15,126,279
19,088,342 16,864,152
Carrying amounts repayable*: JREEZREE"
Within one year R—FR 4,809,505 7,287,441
More than one year but not more than two years —F A BT RBBRE 4,559,770 4,735,790
More than two years but not more than three years  FREEIA H{B BB =4F 3,929,761 1,747,260
More than three years but not more than five years =4 IA HE R HBBRF 5,444,066 2,711,414
More than five years HBBhE 345,240 382,247
19,088,342 16,864,152
The carrying amounts of bank loans that containa AR ERBRET
repayment on demand clause (B BREAaE)BEAEE
(shown under current liabilities) but repayable: Zfﬁﬂﬁ FEREE :
Within one year —FR 34,000 34,000
More than one year but not more than two years —¢ PA_EB BB M F 34,000 77,900
More than two years but not more than three years  FREIA HENBIB=F 34,000 34,000
More than three years but not more than five years = IA HENBBRE 68,000 68,000
More than five years BBhF 345,240 382,247
515,240 596,147
Carrying amount repayable within one year TEHERERKEEERTA
without repayment on demand clause N—FRNEENREME 4,775,505 7,253,441
Amounts due within one year shown under current 3| & REN & &2 ER—ER
liabilities BB IE 5,290,745 7,849,588
Add: Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 1l : 3ERENE &2 FIE 13,797,597 9,014,564
19,088,342 16,864,152
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the * ERSBERER G RANTEEEEB
loan agreements. i o

As at 31 December 2016, fixed-rate borrowings of HK$12,520,000

was included in the above bank borrowings.

RZZE—ARF+—_A=+—H ' LR
17 EE

&8 12,520,000 7T ©
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27. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

—tEF+-A=+-HLFE

27. RITEEw

As at 31 December 2017, the bank borrowings are all variable-rate
borrowings which carry interest ranging from Hong Kong Inter-Bank
Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) + 1% to HIBOR + 1.75% (2016: HIBOR + 1% to
HIBOR + 2%) per annum and London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”)
+1.5% to LIBOR + 1.75% (2016: LIBOR + 1.5% to LIBOR + 1.75%
per annum).

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, certain bank loans and trust receipt
loans of the Group are covered by corporate guarantees given by
Kingboard Investments Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are as
follows:

RZZB—tF+=-A=+—8 - 878
B2NAEIEEE  FEENTEHSER
TREFREIEZRBRITRAERS
MM75E(ZE—RF : BERITAZE
FEIMMEZBBRITRE S MN2E)
TE UARNTHBEBITTREREM
15EEmBERITRIZERE M .75E (=
T—XF  GBRITREFRSMNEE
ERBIBITRIERE M 7T5E)TE -

RZB—EFR_F —/—\$+_H
=t—H  AREETRITERRIET
WIEEREAEE— %é%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%

AEEREARARRRHEABER -

AEBERTEEZERNX(AERE
FTHR ) BELT -

Effective interest rates ERHE
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE

- 6%
1.37% to 2.86% 1.75% t0 2.75%

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate:

us$ e
HK$ BT

RITEERBETIASEER 2/
REERINEEHEZ 25 -

2017 2016
ZE—+tF —ERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 5%
967,998 1,768,109
18,120,344 14,587,940
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B

Authorised
SEE
Number of

Issued and fully paid
ERITRAE

Number of

shares

R B

Amount
Ex ]
HK$'000
FBT

Amount
&8
HK$’000
FHET

shares

RHEE

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each:

BR0A0B T E B

At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—XRF—H—H 2,000,000,000 200,000 1,025,600,236 102,560
Exercise of share options  1T{#{E 5o ig i% 4
(Note 29) (B7E29) - - 12,800,000 1,280
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=-—A=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000 1,038,400,236 103,840
Exercise of share options 171 (& 5 BE AR
(Note 29) (FF7E29) - - 28,052,000 2,805
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+%F
+=-—A=+—8 2,000,000,000 200,000 1,066,452,236 106,645
29. SHARE OPTIONS 29. ERIBIRE
(@ Employees’ share option scheme of the (@ ErTEEELERES
Company E

RRFRBREER_ZETNF=F
Z T =R BRZARARBIRER
A& HHUER R BUR LB ERT
E([7%at8l)) -

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23
March 2009.

ZETEIHIERAL B VR BIE)  8E
BRERZEE([AERKSH
EFDHRESASEN SRR R

SEBS o

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to the eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”) for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of the Group.
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the

Company (continued)

Under the Scheme which is valid for a period of ten years with
a remaining life of approximately 12 months as at the date of
this report, the Directors may, at its discretion, grant options
to subscribe for shares in the Company to Eligible Participants
who contribute to the long term growth and profitability of
the Company. Eligible Participants include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interests (“Invested Entity”), including any executive director of
the Company, any of such subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(i) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any shareholder of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder
of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (vi) any person or entity who from time
to time determined by the Board as having contributed or
may contribute to the development and growth of the Group
based on his or its performance and/or years of service, or is
regarded as valuable resources of the Group based on his/
its working experience, knowledge in the industry and other
relevant factors. The subscription price for the Company’s
shares shall be a price at least equal to the highest of the
nominal value of the Company’s shares, the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of an offer of the grant of the options and the closing
price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the date of an offer of the grant of the options. The Board,
when extending an offer of the grant of options to a grantee,
may impose conditions as it thinks fit, which may include
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised or other conditions as the Board may of its
absolute discretion determine. The options must be taken up
within 28 business days from the date of grant upon payment
of HK$1 and are exercisable over a period to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period
may commence from the date of acceptance of the offer of
the grant of the options but shall end in any event not later
than ten years from the date of adoption of the Scheme.

EEIEBEAERAF

—ELEER

29, BEERE .
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the

Company (continued)

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group (excluding
options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Group) must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme. The total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme is 84,473,904 shares,
which represents approximately 7.9% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The limit
on the number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of the Company’s shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each grantee (including both exercised and outstanding
options) under the Scheme or other schemes of the Group in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant must not exceed
1% of the Company’s shares in issue at the date of grant
unless approved by the Company’s shareholders in general
meeting.

In respect of the share options outstanding at the end of the
reporting period, the weighted average exercise price per
share is HK$12.424 (2016: HK$25.66).

As at 31 December 2017, if all the exercisable share options
under the Scheme were converted, 16,700,000 (2016:
34,752,000) shares will be issued, representing approximately
1.57% (2016: 3.35%) of the issued share capital of the
Company.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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RIS AR R E B MR
BEERENMETHITEER
BiE12.4248 0 ( =T — R F ¢
25.66/87T) °
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B EER - Al
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE
29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 29. @%Eﬁﬂﬁ%(%)

(@ Employees’ share option scheme of the @ AATAEEETLERES
Company (continued) Elcx )A N .
A summary of the movements of the number of share options EW;‘ Exﬁj%{JIETZ@%E%HﬂE
under the Scheme for the year is as follows: HEEDELIOT :

Balance at Exercised Balance at Exercised Balance at Exercise
1 January during 31 December during 31 December price
Date of grant 2016 the year 2016 the year 2017 pershare  Exercisable period
R=B-~% RoE-~%
== RER +ZA=t+-A RER
RHAH Hkseh e Hkseh e BRAKE
(Note ii)
(Birzii)
Under the Scheme
Zitd
Granted to Directors on:
RTEZE:
21 March 2011 18,768,000 - 18,768,000 (18,768,000) - HK$33.92 21 March 2011 o
22 March 2019 (Note )
“Z——F=f-1-H BWET —E--FZA-f-AE
“E-NE-AZTCH
i)
19 March 2015 27,000,000 (11,700,000) 15,300,000 (260,000) 15,040,000 HK$12.424 19 March 2015 to
22 March 2019 (Note i
“E-R5=ATNhA 1244%1  ZE-EE=AThBE
ZT-NE=R=fZH
i)
Granted to employees on:
RTER:
21 March 2011 8,784,000 - 8,784,000 (8,784,000) - HK$33.92 21 March 2011 to
22 March 2019 (Note )
“5—%ZfA-1-8 RBPET —F—F-AzT-BEZ
ZT-NE=R=fZH
(BisH)
19 March 2015 3,000,000 (1,100,000) 1,900,000 (240,000) 1,660,000 HK§12.424 19 March 2015 to
22 March 2019 (Note i
ZZ-R%5ZATHA 1244%1  —E-RE=AThBEZR
“E-NE-AZTCH
GiE)
57,552,000 (12,800,000) 44,752,000 (28,052,000) 16,700,000
Exercisable at
RIATBEA T
1 January 2016
“%-7"%-A-H 37,552,000

31 December 2016
“E- 7 FT-A=t-H 34,752,000
31 December 2017
“EtE+-AZT-B 16,700,000
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(@

Employees’ share option scheme of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

U

(i

The share options under the Scheme were granted on 21 March
2011 at an adjusted exercise price of HK$33.92 per share. 25%
of the total share options vested immediately on the date of grant.
The remaining 75% were split evenly into three lots and vested on
21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The total estimated fair value at
the date of grant of the share options was HK$279,054,000.

The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of the share
options on 19 March 2015 was HK$86,809,000. 33.33% of
the total share options granted vested immediately on the date
of grant, 19 March 2015. 33.33% of the total number of share
options were vested on 19 March 2016 and the remaining
33.34% were vested on 19 March 2017. The closing price of
the Company’s share immediately before the date of grant was
HK$12.34.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, options of 27,552,000
shares in the Company at HK$33.92 per share and options of
500,000 shares in the Company at HK$12.424 per share were
exercised respectively. The weighted average closing prices of
the Company’s share granted on the Stock Exchange on the five
trading days immediately before the exercise date were HK$31.76
and HK$41.81 respectively. The amount of approximately
HK$276,035,000 was reclassified from share options reserve to
share premium.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC

The 2008 Elec & Eltek International Company Limited
(“EEIC”) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (the “2008 EEIC
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of EEIC at the
extraordinary general meeting of EEIC held on 21 April 2008
and was adopted and took effect from 9 May 2008 upon
approval by the shareholders of the Company. The purpose
of the 2008 EEIC Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to the eligible participants of the 2008 EEIC Scheme for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of EEIC and its subsidiaries.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme which shall be administered by
the committee of directors of EEIC as authorised by EEIC’s
directors, is open to full-time employees and directors of any
company within EEIC and its subsidiaries, the parent group
and of an associated company of EEIC, subject to certain
conditions being satisfied.

The 2008 EEIC Scheme entitles the option holders to exercise
their options and subscribe for new ordinary shares in EEIC
either at an “Exercise Price”, which equals to the average
of the last dealt prices for an EEIC share for a period of five
consecutive market days immediately preceding the relevant
date of grant, or at a discount to the Exercise Price as defined
earlier, whereby the discount shall not exceed 20% of the
Exercise Price.

EEIEBEAERAF
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Employees’ share option scheme of EEIC
(continued)

Options granted at the Exercise Price or at a discount to the
Exercise Price may be exercisable after the first or second
anniversary respectively of the date of grant and expiring on
the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

The duration of the 2008 EEIC Scheme is ten years with a
remaining life of less than a month as at the date of this report.
The total number of shares in EEIC that may be issued shall
not exceed 17,963,506 shares (which represents 10% of the
total number of EEIC shares in issue as at the adoption date
or 10% of the total numbers of shares in issue of EEIC as at
the respective dates of EEIC annual report for the year ended
31 December 2017). Subject to certain conditions being
satisfied, the 2008 EEIC Scheme’s limit may be increased
to 15% of the total issued shares of EEIC excluding treasury
shares from time to time. The total number of shares available
for issue under the EEIC Scheme is 17,963,506 shares, which
represents approximately 10% of the total issued share capital
of EEIC as at the date of this report. The total number of
EEIC shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the total number of EEIC shares in issue from
time to time.

Share options may be accepted within 30 days after the
relevant date of grant accompanied by payment of S$1.00
(or its equivalent) as consideration by the participants,
but the grant of share options do not confer rights on the
option holders to any dividend entitlement or to vote at any
shareholders’ meeting.

There were no share options granted under the 2008 EEIC
Scheme since its adoption.

Given that the EEIC Scheme has a maximum duration of ten
(10) years and it will expire on 8 May 2018, the EEIC therefore
wishes to establish the a new share option scheme (“2018
EEIC Scheme”) to replace the EEIC Scheme. Given the
adoption of the 2018 EEIC Scheme is subject to shareholders
approval of EEIC and the Company, please refer to the
Company’s circular dated 23 March 2018 in relation to,
among others, the adoption of the EEIC 2018 Scheme for
information.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

The share option scheme of KLHL (the “KLHL Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of KLHL and the shareholders
of the Company on 18 May 2007 and 25 June 2007
respectively. The KLHL Scheme took effect after obtaining the
approval from the listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
on 6 July 2007, and it was expired at its end of the term of
the scheme on 5 July 2017 prior to the new share option
scheme took effect. The new share option scheme of KLHL
(2017 KLHL Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders
of the Company and the shareholders of KLHL on 29 May
2017, and the 2017 KLHL Scheme took effect upon receiving
approval from the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
on 2 November 2017. The terms of the 2017 KLHL Scheme
are largely similar to the KLHL Scheme, and that the purpose
of the 2017 KLHL Scheme is to provide incentive or rewards
to the eligible participants of the 2017 KLHL Scheme for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of the KLHL Group (as defined below).

The 2017 KLHL Scheme is valid for a period of ten years
and it has a remaining life of around nine (9) years and six (6)
months, and no share options had been granted or exercised
as at the date of this report. The directors of KLHL may,
at its discretion, grant options to subscribe for shares in
KLHL to eligible participants who contribute to the long-term
growth and profitability of KLHL and include (i) any employee
or proposed employee (whether full-time or part-time and
including any executive director), consultants or advisers
of or to KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“KLHL'’s
Invested Entity”) in which KLHL and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “KLHL Group”) hold an equity interest; (ii)
any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of KLHL, any of its subsidiaries or any
KLHL’s Invested Entity; (i) any supplier of goods or services
to any member of the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s Invested
Entity; (iv) any customer of the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s
Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the KLHL
Group or any KLHL’s Invested Entity; and (vi) any shareholder
of any member of the KLHL Group or any KLHL’s Invested
Entity.
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

(continued)

The subscription price of KLHL’s share in respect of any
option granted under the 2017 KLHL Scheme must be at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of KLHL
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the option, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares of KLHL as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of KLHL.

The option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer for the grant of the option upon
the payment of a consideration of HK$1. An option may be
exercised at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the directors of KLHL to each grantee, and in the
absence of such determination, from the date upon which the
offer for the grant of the option is accepted but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
The directors of KLHL may, at their absolute discretion, fix
any minimum period for which an option must be held, any
performance targets that must be achieved and any other
conditions that must be fulfilled before the options can be
exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL

(continued)

The total number of shares of KLHL which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the KLHL
Scheme and any other share option scheme of KLHL
(excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the 2017 KLHL Scheme and any other
share option scheme of KLHL) must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of shares of KLHL in issue as at the
date of approval of the 2017 KLHL Scheme (i.e. 308,100,000
shares in KLHL).

The maximum number of shares of KLHL which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2017 KLHL Scheme and any other share
option scheme of KLHL must not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of KLHL from time to time.

The total number of shares of KLHL issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both exercised
and outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the share capital of KLHL then
in issue unless approved by the shareholders of KLHL and the
Company in general meetings.
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29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 29. @%Eﬁﬂﬁ%(%)
() Employees’ share option scheme of KLHL c) EBEEEREEELBR
(continued) E#EJ(Z;
A summary of movements of the number of share options FR - BEEERTEE N 28
under the KLHL Scheme for the year is as follows: LERESEZHBENT ¢

Balance at
1 January
2016 and Exercise Exercised Balance at
31 December price during 31 December
Date of grant 2016 per share the year 2017  Exercisable period
RZB-RE

-A-BR
—i—,\iﬁ R=Z2-tF
t=B=+-A
RiLAH BRITHE REWTTHE HER
(Note i)

Granted to directors of KLHL

KT R2ERERES
21 March 2011 54,000,000 HK$6.54 (54,000,000) - 21 March 2011 to 17 May 2017
“E——%=-fA-1+-H 654 (Note i)
“Z-——%=R-t-HZ
ZE—tERATtA ()
G[anted to employees
KTES
21 March 2011 27,000,000 HK$6.54 (27,000,000) - 21 March 2011 to 17 May 2017
“F—F=A-t-H 654 (Note )
“2—5=A-t-HZ
S R e = )
81,000,000 (81,000,000) -
Exercisable at
WAT REA F176F
1 January 2016
ZE-RE-fA-H 81,000,000
31 December 2016
“F-r"F+-A=1-H 81,000,000
31 December 2017
®—tEf=Azt-7 .
Notes: PsE -
0] 25% of the total share options were vested immediately at the 0] B E BT 2 25% R
date of grant, 21 March 2011. The remaining 75% were split BHAB(—E— —F= ﬁ
evenly into three lots and vested on 21 March 2012, 2013 and —+—H)8E E':’E %R
2014. 75%FH D AR=HE  DRIR
—_E—_F _T—=F &
—T-NFE=RA=+—HH
=
(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2017, 81,000,000 options (ii) Hz-Z—+t&+=A
in the Company at an exercise price of HK$6.54 per share were =+—H JtiE K’R AIHY
exercised. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s 81,000,000 & & fix 17 £ B
share granted on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days 6,548 70 {18 S BE G 1 2. 17T
immediately before the exercise date was HK$8.93. The amount o ERITHERBATARER
of approximately HK$93,105,000 was reclassified from share S8 - ARa RGO ERER
options reserve to share premium Bek A2 BT £ 71 /9 35 W
{8/58.93/ 7T * #793,105,000
B IARE L EREREE

BEMOBEERMEE - -



173

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

30. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

EEIEBEAERAF

PR

30. FEEPRPRRER

Share
Share of options
net assets of reserve of
subsidiaries a subsidiary
—EHEA
EEHEAR ZB%
EERE BRERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—A—H 6,001,454 93,105 6,094,559
Share of net changes arising from FEEA I EREEER
available-for-sale investments (Note) 2EFE M) 4,312) - 4312
Share of exchange differences arising from FEEETEIME & EE
translation of foreign operations ZERES (1,655) - (1,655)
Share of exchange differences arising from EERTEERERMESE
translation to presentation currency ZERES (305,802) - (305,802)
Share of profit for the year EAERERERR 1,135,186 - 1,135,186
Disposal of partial interests in a subsidiary HENB AR OER 47,002 - 47,002
Capital contribution from non-controling Bii B 2Rl FEER
shareholders of subsidiaries REHET 26,400 - 26,400
Dividends paid to non-controlling SR THRBARL IEER
shareholders of subsidiaries el ¥, (625,710) - (625,710)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"F+-A=1+—H 6,272,563 93,105 6,365,668
Acquisition of interest in subsidiary BRI A s (437,096) - (437,096)
Share of net changes arising from [t L ER A E AN
available-for-sale investments (Note) SEZE (M) 16,200 - 16,200
Share of exchange differences arising from EERTEMNRETESE
translation of foreign operations ZERESR (1,792) - (1,792)
Share of exchange differences arising from EERFELSREEMESE
translation to presentation currency ZERESR 308,424 - 398,424
Share of profit for the year TEEAREE RN 1,240,750 - 1,240,750
Disposal of partial interests in a subsidiary HEMBRARMNNER 880,617 (93,105) 787,512
Capital contribution from non-controlling Wi B A7) 2 JErER
shareholders of subsidiaries IR A% 130,341 - 130,341
Dividends paid to non-controlling SHFHELR 2 IR
shareholders of subsidiaries BREZBRE (815,806) - (815,806)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t+F+-A=1+—H 7,684,201 - 7,684,201
Note:  Share of net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist MizE: BEHAHDEREAEENZEFERE

of gain on fair value changes amounting to HK$70,203,000 (2016: loss
on fair value changes amounting to HK$2,750,000) and gain on disposal
amounting to HK$54,003,000 (2016: gain on disposal amounting to
HK$1,562,000).

AFEE B U E570,203,0008 T (=8
—NF - R EZEE 2,750,000
o) I & W 3554,008,0008 T (=&
—NEF - HEIRES1,562,0005T)
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31. ACQUISITIONS ASSETS THROUGH 31. WEHMBARUKEEE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
The below acquisitions was determined by the Directors to be BB TINEEESBEBKEBHER
acquisitions of assets and liabilities through acquisition of subsidiaries AMEEEERAE  MIEXBHEG
rather than a business combination as the assets acquired and TR PTRIE B E R TAR 2 AET
liabilities assumed did not constitute a business as defined under TREAK B B 75 B R RIS 355 (118
HKFRS 3 (revised) “Business Combinations”. DR IPTERMRT o
In December 2016, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in BOP RZE-RE+-A AEER—%
(MX) S.A.R.L. (“BOP”), a company incorporated in Luxembourg, from W7 2 =75 AR & X (B 49265,386,000
an independent third party at a cash consideration of approximately 545 (A% 122,583,638,000/8 7T ) &
GBP265,386,000 (equivalent to HK$2,583,638,000). BOP is BOP (MX) S.A.R.L.(TBOP) (—RIR &
principally engaged in holding commercial properties in United FREFEM AL 9 A F]) #9100% AR 1 ©
Kingdom for rental purpose. BOPHEEXB RN REIFBEEERYE
ELFAR -
2016
—EREF
HK$’'000
T
Consideration transferred: EEEEALE
Cash paid Bf1Re 2,583,638
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at RIS B BB W E E &
the date of acquisition: EHERAE
Investment properties REYE 2,638,294
Other receivables HAth fEER K 252
Bank balances and cash RITRASBREIRE 1,323
Other payables HAbERTBRFK (66,231)
Shareholder’s loan REER (565,631)
Bank borrowings HRITIE (1,350,334)
667,673
Repayment of shareholder’s loan to by the vendor B EERRER 565,631
Repayment of bank borrowings to by the vendor BEHEERITEE 1,350,334
2,583,638
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in MKEHRBEARMELEZIRE N
respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary: REeEEERRLFRE
Cash consideration paid 2RSSR E (2,5883,638)
Bank balances and cash acquired BB RITEB RIS 1,323

(2,5682,315)
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. HEMBEAF

HE-_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HL
FE AEENBESREHARE
2,004,430,0007T (46557 2,386,230,000
B HE—HWB AR EEEIERR
CRIDBRRANEZEBLARFRET
EEBLH) 2 EHRETBILE=

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group disposed of
its entire equity interest in Kingboard Digital Development (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary principally engaged in holding a piece of land
in PRC, to an independent third party for a cash consideration of
approximately RMB2,004,430,000 (equivalent to HK$2,386,230,000).
The net assets at the date of disposal were as follow:

e MHER  BEFEWNT :

2016
ZE—RF
HK$’'000
T4
Consideration received: BHRE -
Cash received 2R e 2,386,230
Analysis of assets and liabilities over BAEEHIENEER
which control was lost: BERNDIT
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 4
Other receivables HAnfEURER R 29,338
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 16,929
Other payables HAbFERERR (16,731)
Net assets disposal of EHEEEFE 29,540
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—FNBAR 2 W -
Cash consideration received BUIRENE 2,386,230
Transaction costs R KA (235,452)
Net assets disposal of BEHEEEFE (29,540)
Gain on disposal &Sk 2,121,238
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: PEEEZBSRAFE
Cash consideration received DR S RE 2,386,230
Transaction costs KA (235,452)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHEREMRESEEER (16,929)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in REENBARMEEZRE R
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ReFEBERAFRE 2,133,849
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. EXEmEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will AEBEEEEAUBRBIBECERS
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to B AEFARREENES0ER - F5
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. EEEENEERS NEEH 7 RERES
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year. B ELBESFEHER -
The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net REB 7 ENEEBRIERITEE - RE
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the kIR SEBEEFELNAREE AME
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained (hiEDZ(BEEBITRA « FHEMRE
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in B - EFEER B RAMEE -
equity.
The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. EEZEVTEEAELES - EREN—
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and o EEBEEEARA - REZE
the risks associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of the BIBEARHEEZER - EFERENERE
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through FBEE RS BITHAR - BRIRD -
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as BOTESNEELRAEE - LAFERX
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. BEZR4EHE o
34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34. €@mI A
(@) Categories of financial instruments (@ <@MIAEH
2017 2016
—2—tHF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and Bk REWKEZ(BER S
cash equivalents) MREEEIER)
— trade and other receivables —E 5 R HMEUAR 7,395,478 6,389,713
— bills receivables —ENEE 5,036,119 3,182,724
- bank balances and cash —RITEESBRRIE S 8,113,756 6,472,614
20,545,353 16,045,051
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 6,525,570 6,537,266
Financial liabilities o= =R
Amortised cost BESHPKAN
— trade and other payables — B 5 RHMPERIRK 3,648,660 4,172,041
- bills payables —ENEE 691,834 170,224
- bank borrowings —iRITEE 19,088,342 16,864,152

23,428,836 21,206,417
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 13.5% (2016: 16.8%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities making the
sale, whilst almost 5.8% (2016: 9.8%) of purchases are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. The
management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign currency risk
should the need arise.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against foreign
currencies of US$, Euro, HK$ and GBP. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2016: 5%) increase
and decrease in functional currency of each group entity
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2016: 5%)
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only the outstanding monetary items
denominated in foreign currency and adjusts their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2016: 5%)
changes in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes trade and other receivables, bills receivables,
available-for-sale investments, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, bills payables as well as bank borrowings.
A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit for the year which functional currency of each group
entity strengthens 5% (2016: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currency. For a 5% (2016: 5%) weakening of functional
currency of each group entity against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the post-tax profit for the year.

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

34. €T HE )

(b) MBEEARBREEBSEREE
()
miEER ()
AEBEEEHET  BUT - A
TERRENINERBER - TR
HFUAARBEHEEEERNTY
REE M HARRISNE T 6% (—F
—REF 5% ) MBURE © 5% (=
T—NF 1 6%) HEREHINE
EXRTAE B AEEFHHF
il - GERREDITEBIE M AT
ISNED BN ERIRE - HIWE
ISR B ZIMNEERE%(—F
—NEF 5% ) EENE LI
FREIMBREE S REMER
R BRERE  IHEER
B RiITEBRERES  EHRE
MR - BN RIBERRTTE
& FBEREEERNYKE
B ARRBINETHES%(—F— X
F 5% - AFERBIZEHN
BRTIE - EREEEEMNINEE
B RRSNE 5% (—F—X
F  5%)F - ATREB AN IR
BEMNAERFHERNZE -

2017 2016
—EB—tF —TRE

HK$°000 HK$’000

THET T

Uss W (215,279) (72,166)
HK$ BT 526,895 351,162
Euro BT (2,431) (2,868)
GBP it (24,455) (4,263)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

EXZRR  ARFRERTRER
FARRR  BEEREDITARER
RAERINERSR
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see Note 27 for details of
these borrowings), fixed rate fixed deposits (see Note 24(c) for
details of these deposits) and listed bond securities with fixed
coupon interest (see Note 20 for details of these listed bond
securities). The management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider repayment of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s bank balances, entrusted loans and variable-rate
borrowings have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) (2016: HIBOR) arising from the
Group’s bank borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest bearing bank
balances, entrusted loans and bank borrowings at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2016: 50 basis points) increase or 10 basis points (2016: 10
basis points) decrease is used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rate had been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis
points) higher and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s:

post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
would decrease by approximately HK$41,375,000
(2016: decrease by approximately HK$40,176,000)
as a result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its interest bearing bank balances, entrusted loans
and variable-rate borrowings.

the investment valuation reserve for the year ended
31 December 2017 would decrease by approximately
HK$123,290,000 (2016: HK$56,256,000) as a result
of the change in the fair value of available-for-sale
listed bond securities with fixed coupon interest.

If interest rate had been 10 basis points (2016: 10 basis
points) lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s:

post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
would increase by approximately HK$8,275,000
(2016: increase by approximately HK$8,035,000) as
a result of the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its interest bearing bank balances, entrusted loans
respectively and variable-rate borrowings.

the investment valuation reserve for the year ended
31 December 2017 would increase by approximately
HK$20,761,000 (2016: HK$11,613,000) as a result of
the change in the fair value of available-for-sale listed
bond securities with fixed coupon interest.

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the

year.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s exposure to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles and the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2016: 10%) higher:

o the post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2017 would increase by approximately
HK$31,873,000 (2016: increase by approximately
HK$300,000) as a result of the change in fair value of
these available-for-sale investments.

° the investment revaluation reserve for the year ended
31 December 2017 would increase by approximately
HK$4,318,000 (2016: approximately HK$38,164,000)
as a result of the change in fair value of these
available-for-sale investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2016: 10%) lower:

o post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
would decrease by approximately HK$36,191,000
(2016: HK$38,159,000) as a result of the change in
fair value of these available-for-sale investments.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have not been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2016: 10%) higher:

° the investment revaluation reserve would increase
by approximately HK$118,892,000 (2016:
HK$382,564,000) as a result of the change in fair
value of these available-for-sale investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have not been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2016: 10%) lower:

o No effect on post-tax profit is noted for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 as a result of
the change in fair value of these available-for-sale
investments.

o the investment revaluation reserve for the year ended
31 December 2017 would decrease by approximately
HK$118,892,000 (2016: HK$382,564,000) as a result
of the change in fair value of these available-for-sale
investments.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has concentration of
equity price risk on its available-for-sale investments as 21%
(2016: 51%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in five (2016: three) equity securities listed in
Hong Kong. The Group’s available-for-sale investments are
exposed to equity price risk due to the fluctuation of price on
the respective stock market.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors
have delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt and
entrusted loans at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In addition, the entrusted loan are pledged by the
properties held by the borrowers. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s crediit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with various
banks with good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables and entrusted loans with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers
other than group entities. However, the Group is exposed
to the concentration on geographic segment in PRC. At 31
December 2017, approximately 96% (2016: 95%) and 100%
(2016: 100%) of the Group’s trade and other receivables and
entrusted loans respectively are arising from the PRC.

At 31 December 2017, the Group is exposed to concentration
of credit risk on its available-for-sale debt investments as
40% (2016: 26%) of the total available-for-sale investments
are concentrated in two (2016: four) listed bond securities
issued by two (2016: four) listed issuers in Hong Kong. The
Group’s available-for-sale listed bond securities are exposed
to credit risk due to the default of repayment by the bond
issuers. However, the Directors considered that the credit risk
on these investments is limited as the listed bonds securities
were secured by certain assets of the issuers and issued by
issuers in Hong Kong with good creditability.

As at 31 December 2017, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group arising
from the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantees provided by the Group is disclosed in note 36(a).
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants
during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. At 31 December 2017, the Group has available
unutilised bank borrowings facilities of approximately
HK$11,795,552,000 (2016: HK$10,213,525,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

On demand
or less than
3 months
mERY  EERe
EBAE  =fAR
% HK$'000
Tn

34. €T A

(b)

Over
3 months but

than 1 year

fBFaE-F
HK$'000
T

MEREREEBERBEE
()

nRBETER(E)

B EE R EE R R

Over Over
1 year
but not more ~ but not more
than 2 years

—EN LA
TEBRE
HK$'000
TEn

2 years but Total
not more  undiscounted
than5years  cash flows
MENLE  FARES
TEBLE  REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn

Carrying
amount

R
HKS$'000
TiEn

At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 374 $REE
Trade and other payabes BSREMEREH - 3,648,660 = = - 3648660 3,648,660
Bils payables ES - 691,834 - - - 691,834 691,834
Bank borrowings BEE
- variable rate -%8 25 2403953 2988673 4785663 10,628,471 20,806,760 19,088,342
644047 2088673 4785663 10628471 25147254 23428836
At 31 December 2016 R-E-R"ET-A=1-R
Non-derivative financial liabiliies 374 4MAE
Tradle and other payables B RAMERE - 4172041 - - - 40 417204
Bills payables e - 170,224 - - - 170,224 170,224
Bank borrowings BifEE
- fixed rate ~E8 6.0 12,709 - - - 12,709 12,520
- variable rate -%8 24 450077 3,843,061 4931879 4748572 18,064,589 16,851,682
8,896,051 3,843,061 4931879 4748572 22419563 21,206,417

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2017,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these
bank borrowings amounted to HK$515,240,000 (2016:
HK$518,247,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be fully repaid after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates ranging from one to fifteen (2016: two to sixteen)
years as set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$592,791,000 (2016: HK$634,042,000).

B #5i% BSRE FUE R Z BT 18
BER MBI ANRE
KR =EAR]ZE8HE - RZF
—+E+-A=+—8 %%
RITEEZIINBACHBEAR
515,240,000 7L( —F— N4 ¢
518,247,000/ 7T ) ° & B E| A
EEZBHEMN - ERAEE B
FTRRATREITIE IS + Bk
SEAER - EFHE - ZE
IRITE BN RS HREREZR
BER a2 AEERAE
NF—=2+RF(ZE—RF:
ME+RF)TE) 2EEE -
B A BERABEER
i #% 5592,791,0008 T ( =&
—7N4F : 634,042,000/87T) °



KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

186

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. ﬁﬁﬂlﬂ(@

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) EBMIBEAFEE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are REKEMEERNFETEZ
measured at fair value on a recurring basis AEESMEEZAFE

AEEFDEMEENSHEH
RERFEFE - TREMER
EEREeREENHEZ A
(LEZEMA 2 BERMREA
BUB) AR A HER ERAR
BZABERESAHEFED

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels

1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair B2 ATEEESERENIN(E—ZE=
value measurements is observable. B)ZEHR -

Valuation
Fair value techniques Significant
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 December hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs  Sensitivity
HERER
SHEE RTZA=t-B2zAYE ATESH ITHAEE EXTURRGAYE SRE
2017
“E-tE
HK$'000
Tén

(i) Listed equity securities classified as 1,550,830 4207237 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A N/A
avalable-for-sale financial assets active market.
in the consolidated statement of
inancia\ position

[ #é%ﬁ#ii*”ﬁﬁT# ERTEEA iR il
HESHEE FnRAE fiE-

(i) Listed bond securities classified as 4,966,616 2321906 3 Reference tothefar -~ Thelack of marketability - The higher the lack of
avalable-for-sale financial assets value quoted in the discount marketabilty discount,
in the consolidated statement of over-the-counter the lower the fair
financial posttion market with the value.

adjustments for the
lack of markstabilty.

) RERUBKRRTARRTHR SRENTEREZD  HOTAREMAN  RomATRMThE
HESHEE IMESE T - Uitz mE & ATEAEE -

RN AR -
Note:  For the listed bond securities classified as available-for-sale Wiz : o EAAE Ed%%ﬁﬂﬁé
financial assets, the most significant unobservable input is MEMEHFZFEHFME -
the marketability discount. As at 31 December 2017, if the BANM OB REG A }F
marketability discount to the valuation model was 0.5% higher/ AmEmEETm e RZ2F
lower while and the other variables were held constant, the total —+tF+-A=+—H "
carrying amount of these investments would decrease/increase HEEX TS RB T
by HK$123,290,000 and HK$123,290,000 (31 December 2016: MEF/TK05% @ il
HK$56,256,000 and HK$56,256,000) respectively. MmO 2 RE . 8
ZERENERERERS
B3R # hi 123,290,000
# T K& 128,290,000 7 T
(ZFE—RF+ZA=+—
H : 56,256,000 & 7T K&
56,256,000/ 7T ) ©
There were no transfer between level 1 and 3 during the years HE " ST—+EFEK -_FE—N~E

ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of
financial assets

RELTIEEARA S
PR

34. €T HE )
(c) SEBMIEBEATLEFEE)

F-REMEEZAVEFEZ
iR

Listed bond
securities

EhESES
HK$'000
T

At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—H—H 783,971
Additions NE 2,832,838
Disposals e (1,314,709
Fair value gain recognised in other comprehensive RE M 2 SR

income N AW 19,805
At 31 December 2016 KRB+ _-_A=+—H 2,321,905
Additions NE 3,617,573
Disposals e (1,037,879
Fair value gain recognised in other comprehensive REMEEMBRERZ

income N EWNE 65,017
At 31 December 2017 WZZ—+F+=-A=+—H 4,966,616

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of
HK$65,017,000 (2016: a gain of HK$19,805,000) relating to
listed bond securities held at the end of the reporting period
and is reported as changes of investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with general accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of these financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost approximate
to their fair values.
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35. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS B H A EIE

2017
—E—+tF

35.

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHT

HK$’000
TR

Capital expenditure contracted for but not MEFTOERRGZ AT HRE

36.

provided in the consolidated financial e BB 2 EARTH -
statements in respect of:
— acquisition of an investment property —BEIREYZE 4,006,455 -
- acquisition of properties, plant and —EBEYE - BER&HE
equipment 306,826 116,110
— capital injection in an unlisted investment  —3F M & 2 & %E 3,346 3,346
4,316,627 119,456
Other expenditure contracted for but not FEETHVERERE B SR
provided in the consolidated financial TE BB 2 B2 i
statements in respect of:
— acquisition and other expenditures —BEFEEMEWE
relating to properties held FEALS
for development 4,169,329 2,124,227
8,485,956 2,243,683

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
HK$3,831,426,000 (2016: HK$6,376,798,000) as at 31
December 2017 to facilitate mortgage bank loans applications
of purchasers of the properties that were developed by the
Group.

The guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans
procured by the purchasers of properties that were developed
by the Group. Such guarantees will be released by banks
upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers and
completion of registration of the relevant mortgage properties.
In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition, hence no value has been recognised at the
inception of the guarantee contracts and at the end of the
reporting period as at 31 December 2017.

36.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
and certain subsidiaries of the Company (the “Respondents”)
were named as a defendant in the Supreme Court of
Bermuda in respect of an allegation of the affairs of KBCF
had been and or were being conducted in a manner which
was oppressive or unfairly prejudicial to the non-controlling
shareholders of KBCF. The petitioner was seeking an order
requiring the Respondents to repurchase all of the KBCF’s
shares held by petitioner at the price to be fixed by a valuer or
the Supreme Court of Bermuda. The trial of the petition took
place in September 2015. The Supreme Court of Bermuda
handed down its judgement in 2015. The Supreme Court
of Bermuda found that the allegation, that the terms of the
previous interested person purchase transactions constituted
preferential transfer pricing which was prejudicial to minority
shareholders, were not proven and the allegation, that the
terms of the license agreement were wholly uncommercial
and the licencee was a sham, were also not proven. However,
the Supreme Court of Bermuda ruled that the KBCF’s
management should have promptly initiated bona fide open
negotiations in which commercially reasonable proposals
were openly tabled with a view to persuading the minority
shareholders of KBCF to approve the interested person
transactions mandate on even marginally more favourable
terms. Subsequently, the Respondents filed a notice of appeal
relating to the unfavourable ruling of the judgement. The
appeal hearing was taken place on 6 and 7 March 2017 and
the judgement was handed down on 24 March 2017 which
was in favour of the Respondents. Since the Respondents
were successful in the appeal, the petitioner was not entitled
to any relief in the proceedings. In addition, the Court of
Appeal ordered the petitioner to pay the Respondents
its costs in respect of the appeal proceedings and the
proceedings. On 16 June 2017, the petitioner obtained leave
to appeal to Privy Council, which is the final appellate court for
proceedings in Bermuda. The hearing date for Privy Council
appeal has not been fixed as yet and there is no timetable at
present as to the steps leading up to the hearing. Accordingly,
no provision for liability has been made in connection with this
claim by the Group.
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BRESRFRETNEKRED
FiE 2@ APFREIRERD
FHER - —RENAET o
BRESRIRNR-_Z—AF#
THR - BRERRERBTEE
BBENSALTEERS 2 KR
BREREETENESLOER
RS 2B K - W
BEAREERRE 2 ERTET
FEmERAREREABER
ZIEFRIRRERST © SR - BRE
BRER IR TR EREEIEE
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HARH R 2B SR SE M0 D BRAR BRIR RS
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37. OPERATING LEASES 37. KEHY
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
The Group as lessee: AEEEREEA :
Lease payments charged to the consolidated ~ ER A4 & Bz FRING
statement of profit or loss during the year ZHEIA
— for premises — 24,759 25,903
— for plant and machinery — B i 2s 1,326 1,421
26,085 27,324
Under the leases entered into by the Group, operating leases are RSB 2 - BElE - K%
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to 33 years. AR FERN F1EZE335F -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future lease payments PREEEERE B - REEIBRERA
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: By @S AOR BRI N2 RERE

AR T BB AT -

Premises Plant and machinery

EZES T 5= I 4R
2017 2016 2017 2016

ZE—tF —TRFE ZB—tF —TRF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT FExT FBT
Within one year R—FR 4,833 6,216 - 947
After one year but not later A —4F12{8
than five years RAFERA 14,520 14,909 - -
After five years RAFE 8,949 12,089 - -
28,302 33,214 - 947
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
The Group as lessor/licensor: AEBELSHBEABEA
Rental income credited to the consolidated RERFALGZFEIBER
statement of profit or loss during the year ZHESWA 897,436 625,902

Licence fee income credited to the consolidated IR E Rt ALZEBEEE
statement of profit or loss during the year L EREFEREBEWIA 120,000 120,000
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37. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties are rented to outside parties
for periods up to twenty five years (2016: twenty five years) at fixed
predetermined amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of leasing
of investment properties (see Note 14) and with Licencee under
cancellable licence agreement for the following future minium lease
payments commitments. Licence assets (see Note 15) which fall due

RELTIEEARA S
PR

. REHEY W

REBZREYENIRERETCER
M\ FINAALT  HBEEEA=-TH
F(ZZE—RF: Z+HF) -

RREPREERE R - RIBEHERED
H(EME14) RREEREE(RME
15) Z AT HUEAS & A 4 K A s 10
A - AEE AR R EREART
B THIRRKEBERIE - RATHRE

as follow: ZI|HY -
2017 2016
—=E2—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Within one year R—FRA 687,850 447 579
After one year but not later than five years R—FRERAFA 1,793,660 1,600,855
After five years REF%E 2,358,465 2,507,831
4,839,975 4,556,265

The Group licences its Licenced Assets to a committed Licencee
under the licence agreement as follows:

° Within the first twelve months of the licence, either the Group
or the Licencee may terminate the licence agreement at its
sole discretion, by serving on the other party not less than
one month prior notice in writing and paying the other party
HK$1,000,000 or such other amount as may be mutually
agreed in writing between both parties.

o After the first twelve months of the licence, the Group may
terminate the licence agreement at its sole discretion, by
serving on the Licencee not less than one month prior notice
in writing.

REFBERGZ  AEERED A
ZERENERNREEREENT

. EREEAE T @A &A%
B EREATITEZEDNE
| —AFEEROR—E
AEAERAN  YAR—FX
141,000,000 7T 5k & 75 &= H 1#
FEREMSTE - RIEREFERR

2
A% ©

. EREERE T —@AK  &&E
B R A B LA DR — (@
AEAEMBRHN  2RBBZLE
REEMiH=
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38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. EEEH
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following assets RRERERER - REBETEE
pledged to banks to secure the banking facilities of the Group: EEATIRIT  ERANEERITRED
v il
2017 2016
—E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FTHET FATT

Investment properties LAY 1,780,000 1,780,000

Properties held for development FREME 3,403,615 2,993,794

5,183,615 4,773,794

39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in
December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group and are invested in the funds
under the control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme are
members of both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees and each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2016: HK$30,000).

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payrolls to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contributions.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and the state-
sponsored pension schemes of approximately HK$214,883,000
(2016: HK$171,090,000) had been charged to profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2017, contributions of HK$14,326,000 (2016:
HK$11,411,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not been
paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequently to the
end of reporting period.

BRIKERETE

NEBRF2 N —IBREBZRKE
1B EEM 2 B B FRET 81 ([ B3R IRET
Bl RREEHERTEEBIR T
TFE+ ARz RTEEE
([T stEl]) - ZETEIZEERAE
SECEESHAFEE  WRERAET
NIEFIZ Ed o B BTES 81280
E2MBERNRAEIZEE  RARKE
B RINGTEI MRSt BIZKE - M
FFER-—ZEZTF+ - A2 BIAKR
EBEZHREENAESINBESTE R
FEuwEsHE  EXRHEEESHA
ZE BB AS% AT EIEE
F AEBEWA LR A30,0008t(—F
— 7N 30,0008 7T) °

39.

R BB AR BB R BERTEE
ZBEREMERNRFTEIKE - ZFMBER
RARFHEXHZ K — B D HERARNK
BAIETE - U BREREF - AKE5L
RENERITZHE—BEERAT

R

M B ERRAE - BB E R
REDERKRFE I Z2HRD A
214,883,000 Lt (=& — X F :
171,090,000/ 70) + I B8z IRk -
RZZ—+F+_A=1+—8  RRE
HAR R HR 2 514,326,000 T (=&
— 784 ¢+ 11,411,000 7T ) WA F 7%
LRt e - ZERERMERBELERED
AT o
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40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 40. BB EEICIEMNEEY
ARISING FROM FINANCING Bk
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TERAIAEERE R SENRER
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 3 BRESNFFRSEEY - RMETY
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash SIENBERRESREER « SARKE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s EMEBNAEENGERERERD
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing BRARATHSMBRERENARE
activities.
Interest
Borrowings payable Total
B EAFIE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—H—H 16,864,152 8,989 16,873,141
Financing cash flows MERSRE 2,224,190 (338,883) 1,885,307
Interest expenses recognised in iR E 1B R R
the consolidated statement of B
profit or loss - 311,919 311,919
Interest expense capitalised B BRX - 33,603 33,603
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—+F+_A=+—H 19,088,342 15,628 19,103,970
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BBALIRS
The Group entered into the following significant transactions with AR RN A T EF AT ZEAR
related parties during the year. 00T

2017 2016
—E—tF T AE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET SRCTE

Sales of goods to subsidiaries of a shareholder R ANE B B & AFE HHALER

with significant influence on the Group B ARIEES R 659,021 562,759
Purchase of goods from subsidiaries of a A AREBRBEERXFE HRME

shareholder with significant influence on the M B A RRESE R

Group 763,403 663,060
Sales of goods to a non-controlling shareholder [ — 1P /B A &)~ FEFZE AR AR 3R

of a subsidiary HEEm 55,092 57,622

Purchase of goods from an associate m— A A A RREE R 428,338 327,568
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41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments at
31 December 2017 was an amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of HK$9,665,000 (2016: HK$10,927,000)
which was in trade nature. The Group allowed credit periods of up
to 120 days (2016: 120 days), depending on the product sold to its
related parties.

Include in trade and other payable at 31 December 2017
was an amount due to an associate of HK$6,882,000 (2016:
HK$26,105,000).

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

1. EBALRZ @

RZZBE—+F+-_A=+—H ESK
HEWERRBNRECEBNE
SEE 2 EWR— KB AR Z FEER
A% B FRIE 9,665,000 7T ( T — 754 ¢
10,927,0005% 7T ) © 7% &= [ 1) H 73 i

TREZEESHREA120B(ZF—X
F:1208) RIAEEZERME °

MW_E—+E+-_A=+—HHNEH
MEMEBENRBEREREMNEEZ QG
FRIAH) 6,882,000 7L (=T — /N ¢
26,105,000/ 7L ) °

FTEEBASHME
FR - EBEEZTREMEIBRERABZHE
mr

2017 2016

—EB—tfF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THET T

Short-term benefits 2 HAE T 227,282 204,529
Post-employment benefits RINERET 1,824 1,586
Share-based payments LARR R FE A5 3K - 18,600
229,106 224,715

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EENIETHRABZMEKEHMEER
EEZEREMNEIXRBERMLEBYERE

T o
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. KATEEMB ARG
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY =
(@  General information of subsidiaries (@ KHEATRN—RER
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 ARREEMBARINR T —t
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows: FER=E—R"F+-A=+—H
ZEEBHT

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued and fully paid Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation share capital/registered capital held by the Group Principal activities

BRIRSERE/ AEMER

HEATLE ERExS B JEMBR  EEER
2017 2016 2017 2016
e AE Z3-tE =%
%

Jamplan (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands* US$1,000 US$1,000 100* 100" Investment holding
REROEE 1,000%7 100057 REER
Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates Co. Limited PRC! US$29,466,000 US$29,466,000 69.32 7419 Manufacture and distribution
RE(BR)EERARAR L 29,466,000 70 29,466,005 of laminates
HERHERAAR
Kingboard (Fogang) Paper Laminates Co.  PRC US$17,936,546 US$17,936,546 69.32 7419 Manufacture and distribution
Ltd. e 17,936,546% 7T 17,986,546 T of laminates
(R EEARERAA HERHEBRAAR
Kingboard (Hebei) Cokechem Co. Limited  PRC ! RMB903,672,940 RMB96,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
BE(TL)EERAT L AR#903,672,0407T  ARH96,000,0007 of coke and chemicals
SERPBERRIER
Kingboard Natural Gas Chemical PRC! US$18,500,000 1US$18,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
(Chong Qing) Limited e 18,500,000% 70 18,500,000% 7 of methanol
BERMAMI(ER)BRAA HERDHTE
Kunshan Guo Rui Development Co. Ltd. ~ PRC! US$90,000,000 US$90,000,000 100 100 Property developments
BILEREEERA L 90,000,000 90,000,005 FIERR
Heng Yang Kingboard Chemical Co., Ltd. ~ PRC HK$30,000,000 HK$30,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
HERE L IERAR e 30,000,000 7 30,000,007 7 of caustic soda

RERDHIAH
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. KRTOEEMB AT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 18 )
(continued)
(a)  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MELRH—RER @

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued and fully paid Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation share capital/registered capital held by the Group Principal activities

iR/ BRARSERE/ AEMER
HEARER ERRERHA HfER ZRBRE IRRH

2017 2017 2016
A e S
%

Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Fibre Glass PRC! US$13,700,000 US$13,700,000 69.32 7419 Manufacture and distribution
Co. Limited e 13,700,000% 70 13,700,000% 7 of glass fabric

REEM) R EERAT SERDERES £

Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited @ - Bermuda US$72,250,000 US$72,250,000 57.06 4893 Investment holding

REAEEEERAT L3 72,250,000% 7 72,250,000 AR

Kingboard Investments Limited Hong Kong * HK$8,000 HK$8,000 100 100 Investment holding

RERARRAR B 8,000 8,000 T REBR

KLHL ¢ Cayman Islands HK$308,100,000 HK$300,000,000 69.32 7419 Investment holding

EERERERER AR HeEs 308,100,000 300,000,000/ 7 REABR

Kingboard Laminates (Jiangmen) Co., Ltd.  PRC HK$242,800,000 HK$242,800,000 69.32 7419 Manufacture and distribution

IFRERERER AR e 24280000087 242,800,000 of laminates
HERDHRAER

Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical Co,, Ltd. ~ PRC! US$32,000,000 1S$32,000,000 69.32 7419 Manufacture and distribution

RE(TH)LIBRAA ! 32,000,000 32,000,000% 7 of chemicals
HERAEIIER

Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) Co., Ltd ~ PRC US$32,010,000 1S$32,010,000 69.32 7419 Manufacture and distribution

EERER(BA)BRAR e 32,010,000% 7 32,010,000%7 of laminates
HERDHRAER

Elec & Eltek International Holdings Limited ~ Bermuda/ HK$122,467,240 HK$122,467,240 100 100 Investment holding

KHZEEREEARAR Hong Kong # 12246724087 122,467 2407 REABR

BRE/BH
EEIC e Singapore # US$113,800,000 1US$113,800,000 73.75 7365  Investment holding

kHREsEERAF o e 113,800,000£ % 113,800,000% 7 FARR
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. KRTOEEMB AT
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 18 )
(continued)
(a)  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MELRH—RER @

Place of
incorporation/
registration and Issued and fully paid Effective equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation share capital/registered capital held by the Group Principal activities

iR/ BRARSERE/ AEMER
HEARER BERERLY HfER ZRBRE IRRH

2017 2017 2016
A e S
%

Kaiping Elec & Eltek Company Limited PRC2 US$49,520,000 US$49,520,000 70.10 69.97  Manufacture and distribution
RTEFIZEEFERAA R 49,520,000% 7 49,520,000%7 of PCBs
SERHBIRIFRR
Kaiping Elec & Eltek No. 3 Company PRC?2 US$87,800,000 US$87,800,000 70.10 69.97  Manufacture and distribution
Limited HER 87,800,000£ 7 87,800,000 of PCBs
RHERREETE=BRAA SERHEIRIFRR
Kaiping Elec & Eltek No. 5 Company PRC?2 US$30,075,100 US$30,075,100 7010 69.97  Manufacture and distribution
Limited G 30,075,100 7% 30,075,100 of PCBs
RHEHREETERERAT SERHEIRIFRR
Elec & Eltek (Guangzhou) Electronic PRC2 US$95,596,000 1S$95,596,000 72.28 7218 Manufacture and distribution
Company Limited e 95,506,0005% 70 95,506,000 T of PCBs
HZE(EM)EFARAR SERHEIRIFRR
Guangzhou Elec & Eltek Microvia PRC2 US$24,800,000 US$24,800,000 72.28 7218 Manufacture and distribution
Technology Limited i 24,800,000 70 24,800,000t of PCBs
EMERZERNRER AR SERHEIRIFER
Huizhou Chung Shun Chemical PRC! US$40,290,000 US$40,290,000 100 100 Manufacture and distribution
Company Limited R 40,290,000 7T 40,290,000% 7T of phenol/acetone
BMBELIBRAF HERA AT,/ AR
Shi You Chemical (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd PRC! US$144,237,000 US$ 144,237,000 100 100 Refining and distribution of
EREI(BMBRATF e 144,287,000%77 144,237 000 chemicals

RERNHLIER
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(@  General information of subsidiaries (continued)

Place of

incorporation/

registration and Issued and fully paid
Name of subsidiary operation share capital/registered capital

AT/ ERIRMRES/
WEAR & BRRERIE Gl
217
TE-tF

RRNBEEMBREF

5o

(@ MEBIXRAN—RER @

Effective equity interest
held by the Group Principal activities
AEERE
ZERRE TERHE
2017 2016
“E-tE —T5E

%

Kingboard Electronic Raw Material PRC! US$30,000,000 1JS$30,000,000 69.32 7419 Manufacture and distribution
(Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd A 30,000,000% 7 30,000,000% 7T of laminates
BEEFHH(IR)ERLA HERDWERER
Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) Petrochemical ~ PRC ! RMB250,000,000 RMB250,000,000 69.32 7419 Manufacture and distrioution
Company Limited R AR#250,000,0007 AR 250,000,0007 of chemicals
REEEED)AERAT HERAHLIER
* The Company directly holds the equity interest in Jamplan (BVI) * RNRABEZ A Jamplan (BVI) Limited

Limited. The Company’s equity interest in all other subsidiaries is
held indirectly through Jamplan (BVI) Limited.

# These are investment holding companies which have no specific
principal place of operations.

@ These companies are listed on The Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

o These companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprises.

2 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

ZRRHE - AREIRFTEEMIEARZ
R & BJamplan (BVI) Limited @5

A o

# I ERTEZERAR > WEFEZEER
KR o

@ UIERBRHFINKESF R BHAER AT
£

B WERRRBEBARSMAERARE
R

! SRR AN BECETL A ETE
PR3 o

2 SRR ARG EAGEDETLAE
REKIL

ERFIIREERAIBFEAKEE
BREEZARAMBEAR - EERAR
FILEMMBRAR ZHBEERNITE

R

M8 A RIS R A B I A B A T (AT TS
B

Fod
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. KATEEMB ARG
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY & )
(continued)
(a)  General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@ MELRH—RER @
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other REHMERER - AAFH
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The principal BHAREE TR EMMER
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: Al e ZEMB AR T EEBRH

2T -

Number of subsidiaries

MEARIZE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2017 2016
FEEWR FTEREME —E—tF —EREF
Manufacture and sale of laminates PRC 27 26
B R IHE B IRER R
Macau 2 2
JEPT
Thailand 1 1
ZE
30 29
Manufacture and sale of PCBs Hong Kong 2 2
B3 I S BRI AR R AR BB
PRC 13 12
H
Macau 3 3
SEFT
Thailand 1 1
e
19 18
Manufacture and sale of chemicals PRC 20 20
BE RIS TER R
Properties Hong Kong 11 11
ES Y
PRC 54 51
H
United Kingdom 5 4
=

70 66
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(b)

(c)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
partially disposed its interests in a subsidiary without losing
the control over this subsidiary for the consideration of
HK$1,307,207,000 (2016: HK$56,624,000). The difference
of HK$519,695,000 (2016: HK$9,622,000) between the
increase in the non-controlling interests and the consideration
received has been recognised in the goodwill reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
acquired additional interests in certain subsidiaries for a
consideration of HK$265,492,000. As a result, the difference
of HK$171,604,000 between the consideration paid of
HK$265,492,000 and the amount of non-controlling interests
acquired of HK$437,096,000 was directly recognised in
goodwill reserve.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

KINGBOARD CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Proportion of ownership

Place of incorporation
and principal place of
business

FRERLR
TEEXHY

Name of subsidiary

HEAREE

2017
—E2-tF

KLHL # Cayman Islands 30.68%
BEEER 4 HEHE
EEIC# Singapore 26.25%
EEIC# R
KBCF # Bermuda 42.94%
BERE 4 BRE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests
R RRER BT EANEAR
# excluding non-controlling interests of KLHL, EEIC and KBCF’s

subsidiaries.

interests and voting
rights held by non-
controlling interests
FERBLEEREGR
B EL S

2016

“TE

26.81%

26.35%

51.07%

42. RAREEMB R AF

5o

(b)

(c)

HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—
BIEFE  AEBNURSRE
1,307,207,000% 7t ( =& — /X
4 1 56,624,000/ 7)) HEER
—ZXMBRRIME DT K
EHZWB AR ZEH#E - IF
TR AE 2SI N K B WA B 2
Z519,695,000/& T =8 (=&
— 7N 1 9,622,000/ 7T) B A E
BEEERER -

HE_ZT—tF+-_A=+—
BILFEE  AEBKEBERETH
BRAAIMEIIEZ  REB
265,492,000/ 7T - BHE K
{E265,492,000/8 JT B2 2 W BE IE
22 [ #E 25 437,096,0005% 7T 2 [
R Z=%8171,604,000/8 T EHEZ R

BEEARFERERZF
2ERBHBA RS
TRHAE B GEAIFEE
Rz F2ERBMBAR :

Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
ARIFER it FER
B 287 (58) B
2017 2016 2017
“B-t% NE ZB-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR T THET
1,154,961 1,121,978 5,359,784 3,718,976
74,040 23,405 798,578 752,184
3,654 181 407,583 457,197
8,095 (10,378) 1,118,256 1,437,311
1,240,750 1,135,186 7,684,201 6,365,668
# TEFBRERER - EEICK

JEE IR S AV BT S 1 B Y FEIE

et o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE
42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. KATEEMB ARG
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY & )
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that () EEERFEREZRZHE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2EREHBLRFRE @)
KLHL and subsidiaries BEERERKRMELR
2017 2016
—E—tfF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Current assets mENVEE 18,610,922 17,613,809
Non-current assets SEMEBNEE 9,940,301 8,050,396
Current liabilities mENAE 7,475,453 9,029,579
Non-current liabilities SEREEE 3,088,836 1,287,494
Equity attributable to owners RATFA AR
of the Company 12,110,175 10,688,397
Non-controlling interests of KLHL BEEE R IR RS 5,359,784 3,718,976
Non-controlling interests of KLHL’s EEBEREIROME A RH
subsidiaries FEIER AR 516,975 939,759
Revenue X 18,242,796 15,531,721
Expenses, other gains and losses X - Hablizs REE 14,470,545 11,179,813

Profit for the year IREESHF 3,772,251 4,351,908
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

42. RAREEMB R AF

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()

(continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that c) BEEEXRFEZEREZZHE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2 ERBEHBRARFER @

KLHL and subsidiaries (continued)

EEEERRMEQR (&

2017 2016

—E—+F ZZ—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTEx THT

Profit attributable to owners of the Company RAFIHEE AEIEET 2,609,579 3,224,583
Profit attributable to the non-controlling BB ERIEIER

interests of KLHL RS E( SR 1,154,961 1,121,978

Profit attributable to the non-controlling BEEEROKB A

interests of KLHL’s subsidiaries R IR (LR A 7,711 5,347

Profit for the year RE R A 3,772,251 4,351,908
Other comprehensive income (expense) ViN/NCIEE 7PN

attributable to owners of the Company Hiv2EkE(FER) 759,906 (639,934)

Other comprehensive income (expense)
attributable to the non-controlling interests

REEE RIS
FEEEm2ERE(FRX)

of KLHL 336,323 (222,662)
Other comprehensive income (expense) EEEERANMB AR

attributable to the non-controlling interests IR TR

of KLHL’s subsidiaries Hi2mka=(Fx) 6,621 (40,981)
Other comprehensive income (expense) AEFEM2EREFL)

for the year 1,102,850 (908,577)
Total comprehensive income attributable Z/NCIEEY DN

to owners of the Company 2ENELETE 3,369,485 2,584,649
Total comprehensive income attributable BEREERGEERES

to the non-controlling interests of KLHL 15 2 s 4250 1,491,284 899,316
Total comprehensive income (expense) BEREERNNB AR

attributable to the non-controlling interests IR RS

of KLHL's subsidiaries S (FS)8E 14,332 (35,634)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEHAL B 4,875,101 3,448,331
Dividends paid to non-controling interests S FREE R N E

of a KLHL’s subsidiary NABEERER 2 RE - 1,000
Net cash inflow from operating activities RTINS RAFE 3,125,276 5,855,913
Net cash (outflow) inflow from investing activities & & EEIR S GRH) R AEE (1,643,170) 511,128
Net cash outflow from financing activities BMEEERETHFR (1,680,380) (4,478,193)

Net cash (outflow) inflow

B Ol RAFE (198,274) 1,888,848
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e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

42. RAREEMB R AF

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(©

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

have material non-controlling interests (continued)
EEIC and subsidiaries

5o

BEERFERERE 2Kk
2EREMBLARFEEE)
EEICK KiEB AT

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Current assets TREVAE 1,993,610 1,553,042
Non-current assets JEMBYE E 3,208,031 2,921,755
Current liabilities mENAE 1,852,999 1,481,906
Non-current liabilities SEREEE 217,971 54,842
Equity attributable to owners RATFA AR
of the Company 2,243,625 2,102,265
Non-controlling interests of EEIC EEICIEIE ARt 798,578 752,184
Non-controlling interests of EEIC’s EEICH) T/ A 7]
subsidiaries FEPER AR 88,468 83,600
Revenue L 3,903,026 3,729,469
Expenses, other gains and losses X - Hablizs REE 3,616,104 3,634,161
Profit for the year IREESHF 286,922 95,308
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 72 7358 A FE(L % F) 208,015 65,413
Profit attributable to the non-controlling EEICIE iR 7 2 FE (8 ) K
interests of EEIC 74,040 23,405
Profit attributable to the non-controlling EEICHIHIB A F]
interests of EEIC’s subsidiaries FEPERAE S 1 5 A 4,867 6,490
Profit for the year REE @A) 286,922 95,308
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ - Z—+tF+_-_A=+—HILFE
42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. KRB FEEMBABF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY & )
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that ) HEERFEEREZZIKE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2EREHBLRFRE @)
EEIC and subsidiaries (continued) EEICK B AT (&)

2017 2016
—E—+F —ET—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000
F7 AT

Other comprehensive expenses attributable 72~ B35 4G A FE(

to owners of the Company HEh2mmpAx (5,033) (4,624)
Other comprehensive expenses attributable EEICIEIZE AR HEz FE(G

to the non-controlling interests of EEIC Hib2mAX (1,792) (1,655)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year AN [EH it 2 EFI (6,825) (6,279)

Total comprehensive income attributable to AN A &3 H A FE(Y

owners of the Company P HENEBTE 202,982 60,789
Total comprehensive income attributable to  EEIC3EIEIRIEZSFE(S
the non-controlling interests of EEIC 2HEWEBTE 72,248 21,750

Total comprehensive income attributable  EEICHIMIE A 7
to the non-controlling interests of EEIC’s IS S A
subsidiaries P ENEBTE 4,867 6,490

Total comprehensive income for the year AN [ 2 UKz 4258 280,097 89,029

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1< FEEICHI [ B A &

of EEIC’s subsidiaries FEFERR M A 2 IRE - 4,095
Net cash inflow from operating activities TR ENIR 2 A TR 558,215 394,415
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEEESR e E5E (548,222) (126,219)

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing REEESRESMACKT)
activities R 53,282 (204,961)

Net cash inflow e mAFE 63,275 63,235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. AR BFEMB R EFH

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY & )

(continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that ) HEERFEEREZZIKE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2EREHBLRFRE @)
KBCF and subsidiaries EEEERMB AT

2017
—Z2—tHF
HK$’000
FHET
Current assets TREVAE 1,837,886 2,337,366
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,098,099 441,624
Current liabilities TENBEE 116,253 124,374
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 4,793 -
Equity attributable to owners KREFEH AELER
of the Company 2,380,058 2,171,983
Non-controlling interests of KBCF BERE IR E 407,583 457,197
Non-controlling interests of KBCF’s EEIRERME AR
subsidiary FEPEIR A 27,298 25,436
Revenue o] 609,407 635,296
Expenses, other gains and losses X - Hablizs REE 591,655 630,363
Profit for the year NEEEA 17,752 4,933
Profit attributable to owners of the Company N2 =358 A JE (5% A 8,256 519
Profit attributable to the non-controlling A BRI A A S
interests of the KLHL e T 3,654 181
Profit attributable to the non-controlling BEIE IR S
interests of KBCF FEAE 2,558 361
Profit attributable to the non-controlling EERSBHMME AR
interests of KBCF’s subsidiary VR S (s A 3,284 3,872
Profit for the year ARE i F 17,752 4,933
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I IRARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 42. KRB FEEMBABF
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY & )
(continued)
(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that () EEERFEREZRZHE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2EREHBLRFRE @)
KBCF and subsidiaries (continued) EEEERMEATE)

2017
—2—t

HK$’000
TR

Other comprehensive income (expense) RRaEE AN

attributable to owners of the Company Ememlas () 82,168 (53,759)
Other comprehensive income (expense) BHTEE IR IEIE R S

attributable to the non-controlling EHEmEmEmkS(FX)

interests of the KLHL 36,367 (18,705)
Other comprehensive income (expense) B IRA IR R S

attributable to the non-controlling EiREMEmE

interests of KBCF Was () 25,458 (37,413)
Other comprehensive income (expense) ERIRARME R A

attributable to the non-controlling IR RS (G E

interests of KBCF’s subsidiary 2EME(FAR) 1,786 (2,019

Other comprehensive income (expense) AEEEM2ERES (L)

for the year 145,779 (111,896)
Total comprehensive income (expense) ZAN/NSIESF DN Y e i)

attributable to owners of the Company Wzt (B ) 4a%E 90,424 (58,240)
Total comprehensive income (expense) EEREIR IR S

attributable to the non-controlling EEEmEmks(FX)

interests of the KLHL ekt 40,021 (18,524)
Total comprehensive income (expense) RSB IR R R S A

attributable to the non-controlling 2EME(FR)

interests of KBCF 1a%Es 28,016 (87,052)
Total comprehensive income attributable to 32 5E #RSE I E A A

the non-controlling interests of KBCF’s VR T

subsidiary EihemkasasE 5,070 1,853

Total comprehensive income (expense) AREE 2 ()

for the year kG 163,531 (106,963)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 3 1~ F & ASE I E A 7 2

of a KBCF’s subsidiary FEFEIR MR 2 IR B (3,208) (9,360)
Net cash inflow from operating activities XTSRS RN FE 120,499 185,182
Net cash outflow from investing activites & ¥R m L FLE (43,837) (32,886)
Net cash outflow from financing activites — ER & /EZENIR &R H 558 (3,208) (9,360)

Net cash inflow R RAFEE 73,454 142,936
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

43. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 15 December 2017, the Group announced that they have
entered into a deed of agreement in relation to the purchase of a
leasehold property in London for consideration of approximately
HK$4,213,000,000. The transaction was completed in January 2018.
Details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated

on 15 December 2017.

On 18 December 2017, the Group announced that they intended to
dispose its interest in a subsidiary for a consideration of approximately
HK$3,766,000,000. The subsidiary has an indirect equity interest
of 49% in an associate established in the PRC. The disposal was
completed in January 2018. Details of which are disclosed in the

Company’s announcement dated on 18 December 2017.

RELTIEEARA S
—ELEER

43.

BREHERSEE

RZZ2E—+F+-_A+HH AEEE
HREERNBIEEREYE L HE
24 KRB AE4,213,000,000/% 7T °
ux)ﬁ%ﬁ/\—i )\E'E HTEEZ ﬁ@@ﬁ
ERAARBHAE-_ZT—+tF+=A8
THANRERHE -

R-ZZE—+F+=-A+/\B  AEEE
HRHEER BB AR Z R - K
{8 %9 /4 3,766,000,0007 7T ° %MW B A
RIMERSE — MR BIR S HEE & A A
49%HIEHE - ZFHERSGERZZ—N
F—ARK - BEFERARTBHA
ZE—+tF+ A+ NBHHAEFRRE
E’go
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BlZ = E—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

44, Z&N\) 2 BRI K A
ETES

2017 2016
—E2—+5F —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Non-current assets EREBNEE
Properties, plant and equipment ME - BB & - 1,752
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRZIE 1,459,316 726,786
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 1,059,222 727,244
2,518,538 1,455,782

Current assets MEEE
Other receivables HAb R 197,130 170,443
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A R FIE 26,122,480 24,095,502
Bank balances IRITHERR 305,008 22,721
26,624,618 24,288,666
Current liabilities MEAE

Other payables H e AR 1,033,670 1,059,215
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHE A RIFRIA 12,922,040 10,949,259

Bank borrowings — amount due within RITIEE
one year ——FRB|E 2 HIE 1,286,215 3,341,519
15,241,925 15,349,993
Net current assets MEVEEFE 11,382,693 8,938,673
Total asset less current liabilities BEMABRLBAERE 13,901,231 10,394,455

Non-current liability EmBAE
Bank borrowings — amount due after one year RITEE - —FRIE 2 IE 7,766,675 4,795,845
6,134,556 5,598,610

Capital and reserves A& A R
Share capital k&N 106,645 103,840
Reserves s 6,027,911 5,494,770
6,134,556 5,598,610
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ—ZT—tF+-_A=+—HILFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  44. &R T ZEI &R R 5

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY HBREK
(continued)
Note: BT
Capital Share Investment
Share Redemption options  revaluation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R E i i REEF #Ham
HK$'000 ' HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT THEL THT BT 7
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZT—"F—A—Bz&H 4,457,742 1,911 291,588 (2,218) 356,224 5,105,247
Profit for the year RERRF| - - - - 855,695 855,695
Net changes arising from available-for- At HEREES 2 2 8)FE
sale investments (Note a) (PMisFa) - - - (29,469) - (29,469)
Total comprehensive (expenses) KEERHE(AX)kFasE
income for the year - - - (29,469) 855,695 826,226

Issue of new shares from exercise of 1T BB M B TR AR D

share options 194,786 - (37,039 - - 167,747
Recognition of equity-settled R SEERNRDE AR
share-based payments - - 20,910 - - 20,910
Final dividend for the year ended HE_T-RF+-RA=1+-H
31 December 2015 IHEFEZRERE - - - - (307,680)  (307,680)
Interim dividend for the year ended HE_Z—~"F+-A=1+—-H
31 December 2016 IFFEZHEHRE - - - - (307,680) (307,680)
194,786 - (16,129) - (615360) (436,703
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE-—R"F+ZA=+—Hz#& 4,652,528 1,911 275,459 (31,687) 596,559 5,494,770
Profit for the year KERHRF - - - - 1,226,630 1,226,630
Net changes arising from available-for- B[t EREEL 7 E8FE
sale investments (Note a) (MisFa) - - - 43,676 - 43,676
Total comprehensive income for the year 7Z4FE 2 E Wiz 4858 - - - 43676 1,226,630 1,270,306

Issue of new shares from exercise of B BREMETOFBR,

share options 1,214,005 - (276,035) - - 937,970
Recognition of equity-settled RUMEREE RO AR
share-based payments - - 3,136 - - 3,136
Final dividend for the year ended BE-ZT—~F+-RA=1+—-H
31 December 2016 LEEEZ RIS - - - - (726,880)  (726,880)
Special final dividend for the year ended HZ—-Z—<F+_-A=1+—H
31 December 2016 EFEZFHRIRERS - - - - (311,520) (811,520)
Interim dividend for the year ended HE-Z—+5+-A=t—H
31 December 2017 FFEZHHRE - - - - (639,871) (639,871)
1,214,005 - (272,89%) - (1,678271)  (737,165)
Balance at 31 December 2017 REFEFH-A-+ - AZ#H 5866533 1,911 2,560 11,989 144918 6,027,911
Note a: Net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist of FfitEa : AT ﬁ';?xéﬁiﬁﬁﬁ@/?ﬁ fﬁ@%
gain on fair value changes amounting to HK$159,427,000 (2016: 159,427,000 8 7T ( = Z NAF
HK$120,421,000), gain on disposal amounting to HK$130,007,000 (2016: 120,421,000 7T ) A F B & §JJ U &%
HK$165,271,000) and impairment loss amounting to HK$14,256,000 (2016: 130,007,000 # 7T ( = & — /\ F
HK$15,381,000). 165,271,000 7 7T ) i} £ & B 15 W =

114,256,000 %8 70 ( =& — X &F -
15,381,000/ 7 ) A (EE1E ©
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INFORMATION ON THE GROUP’S PROPERTIES

The following tables set out the Group’s material properties held for REBFEEREEMEINTE
investment:

Group’s interest

GFA (m?) REBEFEER
Location Existing use Tenure MM 2017 2016
2 EEARE A (SEAK) —B—+t&FE —ZT—RF
(%) (%)
Delta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shek Mun, Office Medium term lease 33,000 100% 100%
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong BEIE A HAFA AP

FRIAY BAPIRIREREZNE

One Aldgate, No. 1 Aldgate, London, Office Freehold 5,000 100% 100%
EC3N1AA, United Kingdom BTE K AEERE

88 to 93 Fenchurch Street, Office Freehold 8,000 69% 74%
5 and 7 Carlisle Avenue and BT KA EEHE

Part of Saracens Head Yard,
London, EC3M 4ST, United Kingdom

Moor Place, Fore Street, Office Freehold 21,500 100% 100%
London EC2Y 5BJ BTiE N

Shanghai Modern Plaza, Office Medium term lease 17,000 100% 100%
369 Xian Xia Road, Changning District, % F1& R HAFE B

Shanghai, the PRC*
hE HETmRERIIEK3695%

FERRES
Guangzhou Dongzhao Building, Shop, Office Medium term lease 91,000 100% 100%
No. 515 Dong Feng Central Road, A BFE PHIAEA

Yuexiu District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Privince, the PRC*

Fh B B B A N T B S [ SRR AP B 51557
BEINRRAE

Zhanfeng Commercial Building, Shop, Office Medium term lease 72,000 100% 100%
Zhujiang New Town 11-3, i BFiE FRHRFEHR
Tianhe District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC*
R ER G BN RN &
TRLETEI-34 R B R K E

Shanghai Kingboard Plaza Phase |, Shop, Office Medium term lease 297,000 100% 100%
224 Xin Jing Road, Changning District, i @ &% R EAFE AR
Shanghai, the PRC*

B BT RER TS IE22458
ERERES—H

Huagiao Kingboard Plaza Phase |, Shop, Office Medium term lease 178,000 100% 100%
Kunshan City, Jiangsu SOHO & Hotel A HAFEHER
Province, the PRC* i - BT

EDLT#E R ILT SOHOKJE &

TEfEEEES
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INFORMATION ON THE GROUP’S PROPERTIES
SEYMEER

The following tables set out the Group’s material properties under RNEBFBEHFEREINTE
development:

Approximate
percentage of
completion Year of
as at the date of expected Gross floor Group’s interest
this report  completion area (m? rEEEAER
Location HEARHERE fast HEREWR Expected use 2017 2016
i 2 IERRBAE R TIFE (¥HX) HARE “B-tF CZTF
(%) (%) (%)
Nansha Kingboard Plaza, 17% 2019 110,000 Shops, & SOHO 100% 100%
East of Fenghuang Main Road, ## Rk SOHO

West of Power Supply Bureau,
Nansha District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC*
HEEREENTEYEEABUR -
HERFAEIRERES

Kau To Sha Project, Sha Tin Town 30% 2019 30,000 Residential 68% 68%
Lot No. 579, Area 56A, Kau To Shan, FE
Sha Tin, New Territories

FRDENAILS6ARSTIF R AL
EH

Huagjiao Kingboard Garden Phase V, 40% 2019 180,000 Residential 69% 74%
Guixi Road, Huagjao District, FE
Kunshan, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC*
HENL &S BILMIER R ARSI R R
BERTEE DS

Kunshan Development Zone 55% 2019 151,000 Shops & Residential 100% 100%
Kingboard Yu Garden Phase |, BEREE
South of Bai Shi Pu Lake,
West of Tai Hu Road,
Development District, Kunshan City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC*
HEIIHERILMRER
BOETEAAREARNRLRAER
BEREE—H

* denotes English translation of Chinese addresses in the PRC for identification * FRED Y% 2 B BN R B R i
purposes only
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£

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HILEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

—T—=F —TNFE —ZT—FHF —ZT—RF ZEBE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAETT TR T THET FTHET

Revenue EER 35,689,457 35,905,766 32,788,186 35,830,320 43,159,473
Profit before taxation R AR A 3,899,973 3,513,621 2,622,559 7,237,226 8,365,361

Income tax expense FriSHifsE (608,350) (692,615) (669,464)  (1,075,209) (1,531,177)
Profit for the year NS F 3,291,623 2,821,006 1,958,095 6,162,017 6,834,184
Attributable to: JEAEINTE

Owners of the Company FiN/NCIESYEUN
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A

2,961,409 2,536,800 1,650,323 5,026,831 5,593,434
330,214 284,206 302,772 1,135,186 1,240,750

3,291,623 2,821,006 1,953,095 6,162,017 6,834,184

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERER

At 31 December
R+=—A=t+-—8
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

—T—=F ZZT—NF ZT—HF ZT—FRF ZET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHBT FAT FAET FHT

Total assets BERE 74,860,241 75,632,742 72,920,997 76,420,553 88,294,383
Total liabilities afEeE (34,000,282) (33,659,552) (31,580,270) (32,467,881) (34,570,663)
40,859,959 41,973,190 41,340,727 43,952,672 53,723,720

Equity attributable to PAN/NCIEST SN
owners of the Company JEfh S 34,158,243 35,676,308 35,246,168 37,587,004 46,039,519

Non-controlling interests ElRiiyFa

6,701,716 6,296,882 6,094,559 6,365,668 7,684,201

40,859,959 41,973,190 41,340,727 43,952,672 58,723,720
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